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WATERFRONT
PHILIPPINES

August 29. 2018

Dear Stockholder:

AND

I f?'-•'>'_

^irKET - ^IMJ
r!".ic.

Please be advised that the annual meeting of the stockholders of WATERFRONT
PHILIPPINES, INC. (the "Corporation"), will be held on Saturday, October 13. 2018 at
10:00 a.m. at the Waterfront Cebu City Hotel, Lahug, Cebu City for the purpose of
transacting the following business:

1. Call to Order

2. Report on Attendance and Quorum
3. Approval of Minutes of Previous Stockholders' Meeting
4. Report to Stockholders for the Year 2017
5. Ratification of Resolutions and Acts of the Board and Management for 2017
6. Election of Board of Directors for the Ensuing Term 2018-2019
7. Appointment of External Auditor
8. Appointment of External Counsel
9. Other Business

10. Adjournment

The record date for the purpose of determining the stockholders who are entitled to vote
in said stockholders' meeting is September 20, 2018. The stock and transfer book will
be closed from September 21, 2018 to October 13, 2018.

If you are not attending, you may submit a proxy instrument to the office of the
Corporate Secretary of this Corporation at the address below. Corporate stockholders
are requested to attach to the proxy instrument, their respective board resolutions in
support of their proxies.

On the day of the meeting, you or your proxy are hereby requested to bring this notice
and any form of identification with picture and signature (e.g. driver's license, SSS ID,
company ID, etc.) to facilitate registration.

ART^R R. PONSARAN
Corporate Secretary
Waterfront Cebu City Hotel
Lahug, Cebu City



SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC FORM 20-IS

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTI0N-2a^^nt;lWtl\siOA'
OFTHE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE " ' • -~i

TT'

i AnG30 20181. Check the appropriate box: ^̂ jIJ
[ / ] Preliminary Information Statement

[ ] Definitive Information Statement

2. Name of Registrant as specified in its charter WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES. INCORPORATED

3. PHILIPPINES

Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization

4. SEC Identification Number A$-0994-8678

5. BIR Tax Identification Code D80-0Q3-978-254-NV

6. No.1 Waterfront Drive. Off Salinas Drive. Lahug. Cebu City 6000
Address of principal olfice Postal Code

7. Registrant's telephone number, including area code
f02) 559-0130

8. October 13. 2018 at 10:00 a.m. at Waterfront Cebu City Casino Hotel. Inc. Lahug. Cebu City
Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders

9. Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security
holders: September 24. 2018

10. In case of Proxy Solicitations:

Name of Person FUins the
Statement/Solicitor:

Address and Telephone
No.:

11. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA
{information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to corporate
registrants):

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock

Outstanding or Amount of Debt Outstanding

Common Shares - PI .00 par value 2.498.991.753 .

12. Are any or all of registrant's securities listed in a Stock Exchange?

Yes X No

If yes, disclose the name of such Stock Exchange and the class of securities listed therein:
Philippine Stock Exchange - Common shares
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PART I.

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Date, time and place of meeting of security holders
a.) The annual meeting of the stockholders of Waterfront Philippines, Incorporated is

scheduled to be held on October 13, 2018 at 10:00 a.m. at the Waterfront Cebu City Casino
Hotel, Inc. Lahug, Cebu City. The complete mailing address of the principal office of the
registrant is No.l Waterfront Drive, Off Salinas Drive Lahug, Cebu City.

b.) Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security
holders: September 24,2018.

Item 2. Dissenter's Right of Appraisal

The shareholders shall have appraisal right or the right to dissent and demand payment of the
fair value of their shares in the manner provided under Section 81 of the Corporation Code, under
any of the following circumstances:

• In case any amendment to the Articles of Incorporation has the effect of changing or
restricting the rights of any stockholders or class of shares, or of authorizing
preferences in any respect superior to those of outstanding shares of any class, or of
extending or shortening the term of corporate existence;

• In case of sale, lease, exchange, transfer, mortgage, pledge, or other disposition, of all
or substantially all of the corporate property and assets as provided in the
Corporation Code; and

• In case of merger or consolidation.

Under Section 81 and 82 of the Corporation Code, stockholders who dissent to certain
corporate actions are given the right appraisal as provided in the Corporation Code. Among
others, appraisal rights are available to dissenters in case the corporation invests its funds in
another corporation or business for any purpose other than its primary purpose. The
appraisal right may be exercised by any stockholder who shall have voted against the
corporate action, by making a written demand on the corporation within (30) days after the
date on which the vote was taken for the payment of the fair value of his shares.

"Indication whether there is any matter to be taken up which will give rise to the exercise of
the dissenter's right of appraisal-there is none.

Item 3. Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matter to be Acted Upon

1. Other than election to office, no director or officer has any substantial interest in any matter to
be acted upon during the Annual Meeting of stockholders on October 13, 2018.

2. No director intends to oppose any action to be taken at the said meeting.

Item 3. Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matter to be Acted Upon

Other than election to office, no director or officer has any substantial interest in any matter to be acted
upon during the Annual Meeting of stockholders on October 13, 2018.

No director intends to oppose any action to be taken at the said meeting.

Wateifront Philippines, Inc.
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B. CONTROL AND OTHER INFORMATION

Item 4. Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof

The number of shares outstanding and entitled to vote in the stockholders' meeting is 2,498,991,753 shares
as of July 31, 2018. The record date for purposes of determining stockholders entitled to vote is
September 20, 2018. Stockholders are entitled to cumulative voting in the election of directors, as
provided by the Corporation Code.

Under Section 24of the CorporationCode, cumulative voting is allowed in the electionof Directors. Thus,
a stockholder may vote such number of shares for as many persons as there are directors to be elected, or
he may cumulatehis shares and giveone candidateas manyvotesas the number of directors to beelected
multiplied by the number of shares shall equal, or he may distribute them on the same principle among as
many candidates as he shall see fit, provided, that the total number of votes cast by him shall not exceed
the number of shares owned by him as shown in the books of the corporation multiplied by the whole
number of directors to be elected.

Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners and Management. There is no change in
control of the registrant since the beginning of the last calendar year.

Item 4. Security Ownership of Certain Record and beneficial Owners:
(As of July 31,2018)

The following persons are known to the Company to be directly or indirectly the record or beneficial
owner of more than 5% of any class of the Company's voting securities:

Title of

Class

Common

Common

Common

Name & Address of

Record Owner &

Relationship with
Issuer

The Wellex Group, Inc.
35*^ Fir One Corporate
Center, Dona Julia
Vargas Ave. cor.
Meralco Ave., Ortigas
TWGI is the holding
company and major
stockholder ofWPL

PCD Nominee

Corporation (Fil.)
37/F Tower 1,
The Enterprise Center
6766 Ayala Ave.,
Paseo de Roxas,
Makati City
(PCD Nominee is not
related to WPI)
Silver Green

Waterfront Philippines, Inc.

Name of Beneficial

Owner & Relationship

with Record Owner

The Wellex Group, Inc.
35th Fii- One Corporate

Center, Dona Julia
Vargas Ave. cor.
Meralco Ave., Ortigas
Center, Pasig City

• Represented by Miss
Elvira A. Ting, loho is a
nominee ofsaid company.
Directors & Officers are
William T. Gatchalian,
Dee Hiia T. Gatchalian,
Kenneth T. Gatchalian,
Arthur R. Ponsaran &

Yolanda T. de La Cruz

Various Clients

As of the date of this

Citizenship

Filipino

Filipino

Non

No. of

Shares Held

1,128,466,800

594,260,373

180,230,000

%of

Class

45.157%

23.780%

7.212%
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Investments LTD.

Commence Overseas

LTD.

Commence Chambers

P.O Box 2200, Road
Town Tortola, BVI

definitive report the
authorized person to
vote is not yet known.

Filipino

Common Chesa Holding, Inc
Unit 401 Joy bldg., No.6
Joy St, Grace Village
Brgy. Balingasa

As of the date of this

definitive report the
authorized person to
vote is not yet known.

Filipino 175,924,000 7.040%

Common Tybalt Investment LTD
Scotia Ctr 4/F P.O 2804
George Town Grand
Cayman Island British
West Indies

As of the date of this

definitive report the
authorized person to
vote is not yet known.

Filipino 135,010,000 5.403%

Natural persons authorized to vote the shares of SilverGreen Investments LTD., Chesa Holding, Inc. and
Tybalt Investment LTD cannot be identified until the proxy shall have been appointed in writing by the
stockholder himself or by his duly authorized attorney-in-fact.

None on the listed above do foreigners own directly or indirectly of more than 5% of any class of the
Company's voting securities. PCD Nominee (Non-Filipino) constitutes only a 1.326%.

Security Ownership of Management
(As of July 31,2018)

Title Of Name of beneficial Owner Amount and nature of Citizenship % of Class

Class Beneficial Ownership
Common Renato B. Magadia 200 direct Filipino 0.000

Common Kenneth T. Gatchalian 30,000,100 direct Filipino 1.200

Common Weslie T. Gatchalian 30,000,000 direct Filipino 1.200

Common Arthur M. Lopez 1 direct Filipino 0.000

Common Elvira A. Ting 10, 000,009 direct Filipino 0.400

Common Lamberto B. Mercado, Jr. 100 direct Filipino 0.000

Common Arthur R. Ponsaran 110 direct Filipino 0.000

Common Dee Hua T. Gatchalian 350,000 direct Filipino 0.014

Common Reno I. Magadia 10,000 direct Filipino 0.000

Common Sergio R. Ortiz-Luis Jr. 110 direct Filipino 0.000

Common Ruben D. Torres 1,000 direct Filipino 0.000

Total Beneficial Ownership 70,361,630 2.814

There is no voting trust holder of 5% or more.
There are no persons holding a certain class of stocks under a voting trust or similar agreement. There are
also no arrangements that may result in a change in control of the registrant.

Item 5. Directors and Executive Officers

Nominees for Election as Members of the Board of Directors:

Name Position Age Citizenship

Renato B. Magadia Chairman of the Board 80 Filipino
Elvira A. Ting Treasurer/Director 58 Filipino
Lamberto B. Mercado, Jr. Director 54 Filipino
> Sergio R. Ortiz-Luis, Jr. Independent Director 75 Filipino
> Ruben D. Torres Independent Director 77 Filipino

Waterfront Philippines, Inc.
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Reno I. Magadia Director 48 Filipino

> Arthur M. Lopez Independent Director 72 Filipino

Kenneth T. Gatchalian President/Director 42 Filipino

Dee Hua T. Gatchalian Director 70 Filipino

Arthur R. Ponsaran Corporate Secretary 75 Filipino

They are in the final listof nominees as pre-screened by NOMELEC. They are being nominated
by Ms. Elvira Ting, all of whom are not related with her.

Independent Directors should possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as
such as provided for in Section 38 of the Securities Regulation Code and its implementing Rules and
Regulations.

Nominations Committee

Chairman - Arthur M. Lopez -Independent Director
Member - Ruben D. Torres -Independent Director
Member - Lamberto B. Mercado, Jr.

The Company has complied with the Guidelines on the Nomination and Election of the Independent
Directors as outlined in SRC Rule 38.

Directors and Executive Officers:

a) There are 9 seats in the Board of Directors. The term of office of each member is one year.
b) The current members of the Board of Directors are now as follows:

Office Name Age Citizenship Position in Other Listed Companies

Chairman

of the

Board

Renato B. Magadia 80 Filipino Director-Phil. Estate Corporation, Chairman of
the Board of Metro Alliance Holdings and
Equities Corporation, Mercator Holdings and
Equities Corporation, 2007-2008 Rotary
Governor for district 3930; Vice-Chairman of

Acesite (Phils.) Hotel Corp.; Director of Misons
Industrial and Development Corp., All Oceans
Maritime Agency, Inc., Howden Insurance and
Reinsurance Brokers (Phils.), Inc., Cunningham
Toplis Philippines, Inc., Metro Combined
Logistics Solutions, Inc. and President of The
Zuellig Corporation. An active member of
Rotary Club of Makati North.

Director Kenneth T.

Gatchalian

42 Filipino Director-Wellex Industries Inc.; President &

CEO of Acesite (Phils.) Hotel 2007-present;
President and Chief Excutive Officer of

Philippine Estates Corporation 2010-2011;
Director-Forum Pacific Inc.

Director > Arthur

M.Lopez
72 Filipino Owner and Principal Consultant of AML Hotel

Consultancy, Management and Technical
Services Consultant of Federal Land and

owner of Grand Hyatt Projects and Marco Polo
Cebu; Director-Philippine Estates Corp.,
Chairman- Acesite Phils. Hotel Corp, Hotel
Management Consultant of the B Hotel Manila,
Bellevue Bohol Resort in Panglao, B Hotel
Quezon City, Bellevue Baguio (opening in

Waterfront Philippines, Inc.
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Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

and

Treasurer

Dee Hua T.

Gatchalian

Reno 1.Magadia

Lamberto B.

Mercado, Jr.

> Sergio R.
Ortiz-Luis,

Jr.

> Ruben D.

Torres

Elvira A. Ting

Waterfront Philippines, Inc.

70 Filipino

48 Filipino

54 Filipino

75 Filipino

77 Filipino

58 Filipino

2018) and Bloomberry Casino Hotels &
Resorts; Regional Director of Asia Pacific Top
Management International Resources Corp.;
Hotel Management Consultant of Double
Dragon properties Corporation. President of
Legoli Holdings Inc and Arleff Holdings Inc.
and President of Phil. Hotel Federation Inc.

Director- Philippine Estates Corporation,
Acesite (Philippines) Hotel Corporation; EVP-
Finance and Admin The Wellex Group, Inc., &
Plastic City Corporation. Chairperson of Jesus
Our Life Ministries, Inc.

Managing Director- Misons Industrial &
Development Corp., Metro Combined
Logistics Solutions, Inc.; Director - Metro
Alliance Holdings and Equities Corp. Vice-
President and Director of Mercator Filter

Manufacturing Corporation.
Director-The Wellex Group, Inc., Metro
Alliance Holdings & Equities Corp., Forum
Pacific, Inc. Director- Acesite (Phils.) Hotel
2004-present, Air Philippines Corporation,
Philippine International Airways, Inc,
Consumer Products Distribution Services Inc.,

Mabuhay Vinyl Corp. and Pacific Wide Realty
& Development Corp.
Independent Director-Waterfront Philippines,
Inc., President & CEO - Philippine Exporters
Confederation, Inc. (PHILEXPORT); Honorary
Chairman - Philippine Chamber of Commerce
& Industry, Employers Confederation of the
Philippines, Integrated Concepts and
Solutions, Inc., Vice-Chairman of Alliance

Global, Inc.; Director - International Chamber

of Commerce of the Philippines, Manila
Exposition Complex, Inc., Lasaltech Academy,
BA Securities, Rural Bank of Baguio, GSl.;
Gov't Affiliations: Vice-Chairman - Export
Development Council; Civic Organizations:
Chairman - Rotary Club of Green Meadows,
Director - PILAK Foundation, Universal

Access Center for Trade Others: Honorary
Consul General - Consulate of Romania in the

Philippines.
Independent Director Waterfront Philippines,
Inc., President -BPO Workers Association of

the Phils..; Senior Partner - Torres Caparas
Torres Law Offices; Secretary General-
Katipunan ng Manggagawa at Magsasaka ng
Pilipinas; Chairman/CEO - Service Exporters
Risk Management & Consultancy Co., Towers
Corporation and Optimus Medical Care and
Trading Corporation.
President & CEO - Philippine Estates
Corporation; Director-Wellex Industries, Inc.,
Forum Pacific, Inc., Orient Pacific Corporation,
Crisanta Realty and Development Corporation,
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Recovery Development Corporation, The
Wellex Group, Inc., Plastic City Industrial
Corporation.

Corporate
Secretary

Arthur R. Ponsaran 75 Filipino Director-Philippine Estate Corporation, Wellex
Industries, Inc., Forum Pacific, Inc. Acesite
(Phils.) Hotel, Managing Partner-Corporate
Counsels, Phils., Chairman of Value
Management and Options Corp and Corp
Secretary of Producers Rural Banking Corp.,
The Wellex Group, Inc., MRL Gold Phils., Inc.,
Village Foundation, Shuylkill Assets
Strategists (SPV-AMC), Inc., Petrolift Corp.

Key Officers

Name Office Age Citizenship

Kermeth T. Gatchalian President 42 Filipino

Precilla O. Toriano Corporate Finance Director 49 Filipino

Maria Socorro R. Cotelo Corporate Planning Director 42 Filipino

Lanelle Cristina M. Barba Corporate Peers Resources and
Development Director

39 Filipino

On the year 2016, Ms. Ma. Theresa S. Fernandez resigned without any disagreements on any proposed
action of the Board.

A brief description of the directors' and executive officers' business experience and other directorship
held in other reporting companies for the last five years are provided as follows:

Renato B. Magadia Chairman of the Board

A graduate of the University of the Philippines Diliman with a degree in Business Administration major
in Accounting and a Certified Public Accountant. He is concurrently, the Chairman of the Board of Metro
Alliance Holdings and Equities Corporation, Waterfront Philippines, Inc. and Mercator Securities
Corporation. He is a Director of various companies like Howden Insurance and Reinsurance Brokers
(Phils.), Inc., All Ocean Maritime Agency, Inc., Cunningham Toplis Philippines, Inc., The Zuellig Group,
Misons Industrial & Dev't Corp., Phil. Accident Managers, Inc. and Philippine. Estates Corp. He is also a
trustee in The Zuellig Foundation, Inc. He has been a director of Waterfront since April 1999- present
from 2006-2008 he is the Rotary Governor for district 3930.

Kenneth T. Gatchalian President

Mr. Kenneth T. Gatchalian is a President of the Company. He is a member of the Board of Forum Pacific,
Inc. and Wellex Industries, Inc., and The Wellex Group, Inc. Holds a Degree in Bachelor of Science in
Architecture from University of Texas in San Antonio, Texas, USA. He's been the Director of Waterfront
since February 2001.

Arthur M. Lopez Director

Hotel management consultant specializing in general hotel management consultancy services, marketing,
hotel design development/technical services, gaming, hotel feasibility study, pre and post hotel opening
management services, asset management/owner's representative, food and beverage concept and service,
mergers and acquisitions, travel and tours, theme parks and third party management and branding. The
Owner and Principal Consultant of AML Hotel Consultants. Hotel Management and Development
Consultant - Double Dragon Properties Corporation (PSE listed) - Hotel of Asia Inc. - Jin Jiang Ortigas,
Jin Jiang Inn Makati, Injap Tower Iloilo, Hotel 101 Manila (500 rooms). Hotel 101 Fort project (600 rooms,
under construction); Hotel 101 Bohol (250 rooms, under construction); Hotel Management and
Development Consultant - Bellevue Bohol Resort, The Bellevue Hotel Manila, The B Hotel Manila, B
Hotel Quezon City; Bellevue Baguio (under construction) opening in 2018; Bellevue Bohol Resort
extension (140rooms) opening 2019. Hotel Management and Development Consultant - Wydham Garden

Waterfront Philippines, Inc.
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(Wellworth Properties and Development Corporation) QuezonCity (200 rooms) openingin 2020 and in a
resort hotel in Mactan, Cebu City (300 rooms) opening in 2021. The Chairman - Philippine Estates
Corporation (PSE listed) and Acesite Philippines HotelCorporation, owner of Manila Pavilion Hotel (PSE
listed). Director - Waterfront Hotels and Casinos (PSE listed) - Waterfront Cebu City Hotel & Casino,
Manila Pavilion Hotel & Casino, Waterfront Airport Hotel & Casino and Waterfront Insular Hotel Davao.
President - Philippine Hotel Owners Association, Inc. (PHOAI) - the largest group of hotel owners and
developers in the Philippines. Holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Commerce, major in Management,
and a Master'sDegree in Business Administration (MBA), both from the University ofSantoTomasin the
Philippines. He completed a Tourism Management courseat the East-West Center,University of Hawaii,
Honolulu, Hawaii and Cornell University, Ithaca, New York, USA.

Dee Hua T. Gatchalian Director

Mrs. Gatchalian was elected director of the Company since 24 June 2004-present. She is the Executive
Vice-President of The Wellex Group, Inc., and also the Executive Vice-President of Plastic City
Corporation. She is a board of director of Philippine Estates Corporation, and Acesite (Phils.) Hotel Corp.
She graduated with a degree in Medical Technology from the Far Eastern University in 1970. In addition
to her numerous positions in business firms, she is the Chairperson of Jesus Our Life Ministries, Inc., a
non-profit, non-stock organization duly registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Reno 1. Magadia Director
A Master's degree holder in Business Administration from Pepperdine University in Los Angeles,
California, Mr. Magadia is currently the Managing Director of holding firm, Misons Industrial and
Development Corp. He is also the Managing Director of Metro Combined Logistics Solutions, Inc. He is
on the Board of Directors of Metro Alliance Holdings and Equities Corporation. He held the posts of Vice
President and Director of Mercator Filter Manufacturing Corporation. He also worked as Head Portfolio
Manager of stock brokerage firm. Papa Securities Corporation. He was also the President and Founder of
the Youth Leaders for Change, a non-profit and multi-sectoral organization for youth leaders in Quezon
City. He was elected as Director of Waterfront Philippines, Inc., since September 17, 2005-present.

Lamberto B. Mercado, Jr. Director
A lawyer and a CPA by profession, Atty. Mercado is a member of the Board of Directors of several
publicly-listed companies namely: Waterfront Philippines, Inc., Metro Alliance Holdings & Equities
Corp., Forum Pacific, Inc., Acesite (Philippines) Hotel Corporation and Wellex Industries, Inc. He is
currently the Vice-President for Legal Affairs of the Wellex Group, Inc. In the past as Deputy
Administrator for Administration, he had supervised the largest group in the Subic Bay Metropolitan
Authority (SBMA). He had also, helped in the drafting of Administrative Orders to effectively implement
R.A. 7227 (the law creating the Subic Bay Freeport Zone) and its implementing rules and regulations. He
was the President of Freeport Service Corporation, a subsidiary of SBMA and helped in the creation and
organization of this service corporation. He was also a Director of Acesite (Phils.) Hotel Corporation since
June 24, 2004-present. Associate Lawyer of Gascon, Garcia and Associates. He studied BSC Major in
Accountancy at the University of Santo Tomas and Bachelor of Laws (LLB) at the Ateneo de Manila
University School of Law, graduated in 1985and 1990, respectively. He has been a director of Waterfront
Philippines Inc., since July 2003-present.

Sergio R» Ortiz-Luis,Jr. Director
He has degrees of Bachelor of Arts and Bachelor of Science in Business Administration from De La Salle
University; PhD Humanities from Central Luzon State University, and PhD Business Technology from
Eulogio "Amang" Rodriguez Institute of Science and Technology. He is the President and CEO of
Philippine Exporters Confederation, Inc. An Honorary Chairman of Philippine Chamber of Commerce &
Industry, Employers Confederation of the Philippines as wellas IntegratedConcepts &Solutions, Inc. He
is the Vice Chairman of Alliance Global, Inc., Export Development Council. He is a Director of Manila
Exposition Complex, Inc., Lasaltech Academy, Philippine Estate Corporation, BA Securities, Rural Bank
of Baguio, PILAK Foundation, and Universal Access Center for Trade and Philippine International
Training Corporation. He is a Council Adviser Member of Philippine Foundation, Inc., a Founding
Director of International Chamber of Commerce of the Philippines and GSl. He is also a member of the
Board of Advisers of Southville International School and Colleges. He is a commissioner of Patrol 117, a
Financing Championof NationalCompetitiveness Council and a PrivateSector Representative of Bamboo

Waterfront Philippines, Inc. l
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Council. He is also a Chairman of Rotary Club of Green Meadows Foundation and also a Chairman of
Council of Advisers Eastern Police District. He is the Past President of Rotary Club of Green Meadows
Quezon City RI District 3780; a Board of Advisers Member of Council of Advisers Philippine National
Police, a senator of PhilippineJaycee Senate, Captain of Philippine Coastguard Auxiliary and a member
of the League of Corporate Foundation. He is the Honorary Consul General of Consulateof Romania in
the Philippines, a Treasurer of Consular Corps of the Philippines and an Honorary Adviser of
International Association of Education for World Peace. Some awards that he received were International
PeaceAward for Economic Developmentin 2005, MostOutstanding Citizen of Nueva Ecija in the Fieldof
Business in 2005 also. Most Outstanding Pasigueno in 2006, Ulirang Ama also in 2006 and Presidential
Merit Award Medal in 2007. He became an Independent Director of Waterfront Philippines, Inc. since
August2006-present. In 2014, heattendedExporter's Partner in Gearing theCountry for the AEC Markets
of the World 2, Technology Innovation and Entrepreneurship as Competitive Strategies PHILAAS 63"^^
Annual Convention and lastly. Bringing the Buy Pinoy Campaign to the Next Level.

Ruben D. Torres Director

Mr. Ruben Torres graduated in the University of the Philippines with a degree of Bachelor of Arts
(PoliticalScience)after which, he finished the degree of Bachelorof Laws at the same university. Presently
he is also the President of BPO Workers Association of the Philippines and Senior Partner of Torres
Caparas Torres Law Office. He is also the Secretary General of Katipunan ng Manggagawa at Magsasaka
ng Pilipinas. He is associated with the Integrated Bar of the Philippines and Philippine Academy of
Professional Arbitrators. His former positions include being a Memberof the House of Representativesof
the 2nd District of Zambales, Executive Secretary of the Office of the President in Malacahang, Secretary
of the Department of Labor and Employment. Mr. Torres became an Independent Director of Waterfront
Philippines, Inc. since August 2006-present.

Elvira A. Ting Director and Treasurer
Ms. Elvira A. Ting earned her Bachelor'sDegree in Business Administration major in Management from
the Philippine School of Business Administration. Has been the Director of Waterfront Philippines, Inc.,
since October 2000-presenL She is also the President/Director of Philippine Estates Corp., a director
Wellex Industries, Inc., The Wellex Group, Inc., and Forum Pacific, Inc. She is also a Director/CFO of
Acesite Phils. Inc. since 2004-present.

Executive

Kenneth T. Gatchalian President

(see above description)

Precilla O. Toriano Corporate Finance Director
Ms. Toriano joined Waterfront in September 10, 2001 as Asst. Financial Controller of Waterfront Cebu
City Casino Hotel. After five (5) months, she became the Financial Controller before she was promoted as
Corporate Finance Director for the group. Before joining Waterfront, she has already been working with
the group; she worked as Internal Auditor at Air Philippines Corp. and eventually transferred to The
Wellex Group, Inc. to join the Corporate Internal Audit team, which paved the way for her coming in the
Waterfront Hotels and Casinos. She is a CPA by profession; she graduated at the University of tfie East
with a degree of Bachelor of Science in Business Administration Major in Accounting. She took up MBA
units in the Polytechnic University of the Philippines. After graduation, she worked as an accounting staff
at Liberty Corrugated Boxes Manufacturing, Inc. Then, she moved to Control Management Inc. as an
Internal Auditor. After which, she worked for Philippine Remnants Corp. as an Accounting Manager. She
had several trainings in the following fields: Managerial Leadership and Decision Making Skills, the
Basics of Management Audit, Supervisory Effectiveness, Accounting and BIR Regulations, Accounting
and Bookkeeping Audit, Operations Audit, Living and Working in Balance, Management Development
Program, Accounting & Administrative Control, and Lean Six Sigma. In 2005, she acquired a
Certification in Financial Management for Hotels at Cornell University School of Hotel Administration, in
New York USA focusing on High Performance Financial Management For Hotels Operations, Hospitality
Financial Management & Operations Decision Making, and Fraud Controls for Managers. She attended
the CFO Congress 2007 at Malaysia. In 2010, she was sent to Singapore to attend the Strategic &
Sustainable Cost Control Training. She attended the Financial ModelingSeminar in Singapore in 2011. In

Waterfront Philippines, Inc. 8
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the year 2012 in June-July, she was sent by the company to New York to attend the Management
Development Program at Cornell University thus granting her the "Certification in Strategic
Management". On June 2015, she took the 3-day MBA for ChiefFinance Officers held in Kuala Lumpur,
Malaysia. Attended Corporate Governance on August 15, 2018.

Maria Socorro R.Cotelo CorporatePlanning Director
Ms. Cotelo is the CorporatePlanningDirector for Waterfront Hotels& Casinos. She joined Waterfront in
2003 as Sales Accounts Manager before she moved to help establish Revenue Management in the
company from there she continued to work in the Corporate Planning Division undertaking
Standardization, Business Development, Reservation & Distribution and Corporate Information
Technology. She earned her Bachelor's Degree in Economics at the University of San Carlos and took up
masteral units for the same course before pursuing her Bachelor of Laws from Southwestern University,
Cebu City. After completing her Bachelor of Laws, she worked for the Davide, Calderon, and Tolentino
Law office in 2002 and as part-time instructor for the University of San Carlos, Economics Department.
She had significant training in Hotel Management and Distribution Systems and attended Revenue
Management seminars specifically on Pricing, Travel distribution and technology. Project Management,
Branding, and SellingSkillsworkshops. Her speaking engagement to two of these international seminars
& forums under the Travel Distribution Summit Asia in 2008 and 2009 include topics on Revenue
Management in Tough times and Integrating Sales and Marketing in Revenue Management. She
completed her Certificationin Revenue Management at Cornell University, New York in 2011 with focus
on hotel and restaurant revenue management, strategic pricing, demand management, strategic
marketing and financial management. As part of SEC Compliance, she completed the seminar on
Corporate Governance on August 15,2018.

Lanelle Cristina M. Barba Corporate Peers' Resources and Development
Director

Ms. Barba, joined Waterfront on June 2006-April 2008 as Employee/Labor Relations Officer in Waterfront
Pavilion Hotel and Casino, and was appointed as Peers Resources' and Development Director of the same
property on April 30,2008. Currently, she is the Corporate Peers' Resources and Development Director of
Waterfront Hotels and Casinos. She earned her Bachelor's Degree in Elementary Education at the
University of Santo Tomas. Prior joining with Waterfront, she is the HR Officer of Asia Select Inc. and
Research Analyst under Employee Relations and Benefits Division of Metrobank. She was sent to various
trainings and seminars and in 2009, she was sent to Nanyang University, Singapore to attend the PDP
2009 Building the Human Capital Base: Essential HR Practices for Managers. In 2011 to Bangkok,
Thailand for HR Audit training. On August 15, 2018, she completed the seminar on Corporate
Governance.

Significant Employees

There are no employees of the Company who is not an Executive Officer but expected to make significant
contribution to the business of the Company.

Family Relationship

Mr. Kenneth T. Gatchalian is the son of Ms. Dee Hua T. Gatchalian. Ms. Elvira A. Ting is a sister of Ms.
Dee Hua T. Gatchalian and an aunt of Kenneth T. Gatchalian.

Mr. Reno Magadia is also a son of Mr. Renato B. Magadia.

There are no other relationships among the officers listed.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

As of July 31, 2018, none of the directors and officers/nominees was involved in any bankruptcy
proceedings. Neither have they been convicted by final judgment in any criminal proceedings, or been
subjected to any order, judgment or decree of competent jurisdiction, permanently or temporarily
enjoining, barring, suspending, or otherwise limiting their involvement in any type of business, securities
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or commodities or bankingactivities, nor found in an action by any court or administrative bodies to have
violated a securities and commodities law.

Certain Relationship and Related Transactions

Relationship
to the Issuer

Natiure of Advances Amount of Advances

The Wellex Group, Inc.
(TWGI)

Ultimate Parent Unsecured; interest-bearing;
subject to re-pricing; due in
one year subject to renewal

2017- P 882,189,000

2016 ~P 861,550,000

Pacific Rehouse Corporation
(PRC)

Stockholder Unsecured; interest-bearing;
subject to re-pricing; due in
one year subject to renewal

2017-P 541,781,000

2016-P 531,158,000

Philippine Estate (PHES) Stockholder Unsecured; non-interest

bearing; due on demand
2017-P 104,554,000

2016 - P 92,054,000

Crisanta Realty Stockholder Unsecured; interest-bearing;
subject to re-pricing; due in 5
years

2017-P 347,928,000

2016-P 340,197,000

See notes 8 on Consolidated FS 2017

Term of Office

The Directors of WPI are elected at the annual stockholders' meeting to hold office until the next
succeeding annual meeting and until they're respective successors have been elected and qualified.
Officers are appointed or elected annually by the Board of Directors at its first meeting following the
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, each to hold office until the corresponding meeting of the Board of
Directors in the next year or until a successor shall have been elected, appointed or shall have been
qualified.

Item 6. Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

None of the Directors receive compensation for serving as Directors of the Company.

The aggregate paid to the Five

Aggregate Compensation paid
to the 5 highly compensated
executive officers

Principal Position Year Salary (P) Bonus

(P)

Other annual

compensation

PreciUa O. Toriano

Maria Socorro R. Cotelo

Ms. Lanelle M. Barba

Anders Goran Helge Hallden
Rex Benhur M. Caballes

Corporate Finance
Director

Corporate Planning
Director

Corporate Peers'
Resources and

Development Director
General Manager
Hotel Manager

2017

2016

2015

11,249,070.00

10,713,400.00

10,912,500.00

None

None

None

None

None

None

The President has no remuneration benefit.

Compensation Plan of Directors

Themembers of the Board ofDirector are elected for a termofoneyear. Director per diemare at a
rate of Php8,000.00 (netof 20% ewt) per board meeting. Except for theChairmanand the CEO,
Directors,are not entitled to compensation package. Exceptas herein mentioned, no director received
bonusesor profit sharing plans for the yearsended 31December 2017 and December 2016.

Waterfront Philippines, Inc. 10
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Item 7. Independent Public Accountants

The external auditor of WaterfrontPhilippines, Inc. (WPl) for the most recently completed calendar year
endingDecember 2017 is KPMG R.G. Manabat and Co., previously KPMG Manabat Sanagustin and Co.,
under Mr. Tireso Randy F. Lapidez, Partnerin-charge, and theyare being recommended by the board of
directors for the approval of stockholders for this coming year. The firm also audited the Company's
previous calendar year.

The company is in compliance with SRCRule 68, Paragraph 3(b)(iv).

Therewere no changes in and disagreements with the accountants nor with the current accounting firm
relating on accounting and financial disclosure.

Representatives of said firm are expected to be present at the stockholders' meeting, and they will have
the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so and are expected to be available to respond to
appropriate questions.

Audit Committee

The Board is authorized to create an Audit Committee, composed of at least three (3) directors, at least
one (1) of whom shall be an independent director. Each member of the Audit Committee shall have
adequate understanding, at least, or competence at most, of the company's financial management systems
and environment. The Audit Committee shall have the functions, powers and authorities as may be
prescribed by the Board, or as provided in the Corporation's Manual of Corporate Governance, and as
may be prescribed by applicable law and regulations.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee

Review all financial reports against compliance with both the internal financial management policy and
pertinent accounting standards, including regulatory requirements. Review management policy on
financial management, specifically in the areas of managing credit, market, liquidity, operational, legal
and other risks of the Corporation, crisis management. Review audit plans, scope and frequency of the
external audit to the extent advisable, interface with the internal and external auditors. Develop a plan to
elevate to international standards the accounting and auditing processes, practices and methodologies,
including: a realistic timetable within which the accounting system of the Corporation will be 100%
International Accounting Standards (IAS) compliant; an accountability statement that will specifically
identify officersand /or personnel directly responsible for the accomplishment of such task;

Develop a transparent financial management system that will ensure the integrity of internal control
activities throughout the Company through a step-by-step procedures and policies handbook that will be
used by the entire organization.

The Board constituted the following committees:

Audit Committee

Chairman - Sergio R. Ortiz-Luis, Jr - Independent Director
Member - Arthur M. Lopez - Independent Director
Member - Dee Hua T. Gatchalian

Audit and Audit-Related Fees

FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR Eh

2017

JOED DECEMBER 31,

2016

Aggregate Fees Billed for the
external audit of the Company's
financial statements

3,770,000.00 3,755,000.00

SRC Rule No.68fParagraph 3(b)(iv)

Waterfront Philippines, Inc. 11



SEC 20IS 2018 Preliminary

Item 8. Compensation Plans

Todate WPI has not issued any optionsor implemented any optionschemeto its directorsand officers.

TheCompany has no immediate plan with regard to any bonus, profit sharing, pension/retirement plan
granting of extension of any option, warrant or right to purchase any securities.

C ISSUANCE AMD EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

Item 9. Authorization or Issuance of Securities Other than for Exchange

As ofJuly31,2018, Waterfront Philippines, Inc. has no plansyet to increase its authorized capitalstock.

Item 10. Modification or Exchange of Securities

Waterfront Philippines, Inc. has no plans to modify any of each authorized and issued securities or to
exchange them to another class.

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AS TO CERTAIN ISSUES AND ISSUER

As of December 31, 2017 the company has a net worth of P6.02 billion and is not planning to issue
unsecured bond for 2017.

Properties
The Company, being a holding company, has no real properties under its name. Properties under WPI are
under the ownership or lease holdings of the respective subsidiaries. WPI is renting an office in the City
of Manila.

Information and terms of the rent/lease are as follows:

Location 7ih Fir Manila Pavilion Hotel

U.N. Avenue corner Maria Y Orosa St.

Ermita Manila

Size 538.7 square meters with parking spaces
Terms of Rent From October 1,2011 to December 31,2021

(10 years); renewable within 90 days before the lease period expires
permissible by the laws of the Philippines.

Rental On the office spaces: Php 250,000 per month with an escalation of 5%
per year.

WCCCHI and WMCHI have separate contracts of lease for the use of parcels of land in the province of
Cebu.

WCCCHI Land Lease;

Location Former airport site at Lahug in Cebu City

Size Approximately 4.6 hectares

Lessor Mactan Cebu International Airport Authority

Terms of Lease 50 years with an option for renewal for another 25 years, permissible by
the laws of the Philippines

Lease Agreement Fixed rental per month of Php 11.00 per square meter or a total amount
per annum of Php 6,072,000.00 + Percentage rental of 2% of the annual
Gross Revenue as defined under the Land Lease Agreement

Waterfront Philippines, Inc. 12
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WMCHILandLease:

LocationInfrontofMactan-CebuInternationalAirport,Lapu-LapuCity

SizeApproximately3.2hectares

LessorMactanCebuInternationalAirportAuthority

TermsofLease50yearswithanoptionforrenewalforanother25years,permissibleby
thelawsofthePhilippines

LeaseAgreementFixedrentalpermonthofPhp18.75persquaremeteroratotalamount
perannumofPhp7,875,000.00+Percentagerentalof2%oftheAnnual
GrossRevenuesasdefinedundertheLandLeaseAgreement.

DIHCIWhoUyOwned:

LocationLanang,DavaoCity

SizeApproximately12.29hectares

butwithforeshoreareaof4.3hectares

TitleArea(InSq.Meters)

TCT0-255*2,997

0-256*404

0-256*304

0-257*113

0-258*50

0-259*404

T-10250*44,511

T-10250*47,320

T-10251*2,091

T-102510*2,043

T-10252*1,133

T-10252*300

T-10252*300

T-10252*1,580

T-10252*643

T-10254*500

T-10254*400

T-10303-A*304

T-10303*108

T-30874*223

T-10264*18,959

T-10379*140

T-0303-A4,319

ACESITELandLease

LocationCornerofUnitedNationsAvenue&MariaY.OrosaStreetinErmita,
Manila

SizeTotallandareaof6,500squaremeters

LessorCimaRealtyPhilippinesInc.

TermsofLeaseLeaseisvaliduntilJanuary2031,renewableforanother20years.
LeaseAgreementPhp250,000permonth;escalationof5%peryear

WaterfrontPhilippines,Inc.13
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Event After the Reporting Period
On March 18,2018, a fire broke out in Acesite (Phils.)Hotel Corporation's hotel property that
damaged the lower floors of the main building as well as the Podium building occupied by the casino
area and restaurants in the APHC's hotel property that resulted to the suspension of its hotel operations.

CIMA Realty

Location Corner of United Nations Ave. & Maria Y. Orosa St., Ermita,

Manila

Size Approximately 6,500 square meters

Title TCT 184100

The building is mortgaged in favor of the Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company-Trust Department, as
the trustee for the Singapore Branch of the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (ICBC), a banking
corporation organized under the laws of the People's Republic of China (PROC), to secure a loan in the
original principal amount of Fifteen Million USDollars (US$15,000,000.00). ICBC loan was also fully paid
March 31,2016.

Legal Proceedings

SSS vs. WPI. Et al civil case no. Q-04-52629 at regional trial court, Quezon City. On October 28,1999, the
Parent Company obtained a five-year term loan from SSSamounting to P375.00 million originally
due on October 29, 2004. The SSS loan bears interest at the prevailing market rate plus 3% or 14.5% per
annum, whichever is higher. Interest is repriced annually and is payable semi-annually. Initial interest
payments are due 180 days from the date of the release of the proceeds of the loan. The repayment of the
principal shall be based on eight (8) semi-annual payments, after a one-year grace period.

The SSS loan was availed to finance the completion of the facilities of WCCCHI. It was secured by a first
mortgage over parcels of land owned by WII and by the assignment of 200 million common shares of the
Parent Company owned by TWGI. The common shares assigned were placed in escrow in the possession
of an independent custodian mutually agreed upon by both parties.

On August 7, 2003, when the total loan obligation to SSS, including penalties and interest, amounted to
P605.00 million, the Parent Company was considered in default with the payments of the loan obligations,
thus, on the same date, SSSexecuted a foreclosure proceeding on the mortgaged parcels of land. The SSS's
winning bid on the foreclosure sale amounting to P198.00 million was applied to penalties and interest
amounting to P74.00 million and P124.00 million, respectively. In addition, the Parent Company accrued
penaltiescharged by SSS amounting to P30.50 million covering the month of August until December2003,
and unpaid interest expense of P32.00 million.

The Parent Company, WII and TWGI were given the right to redeem the foreclosed property within one
(1) year from October 17, 2003, the date of registration of the certificate of sale. The Parent Company
recognized the proceeds of the foreclosure sale as its liability to WII and TWGI. The Parent Company,
however, agreed with TWGI to offset this directly against its receivable from the latter. In August 2004,
the redemption period for the Parent Company, WIIand TWGI expired.

Theremaining balance of theSSS loanissecuredby the sharesofstock of the ParentCompany owned by
TWGI and shares of stockof WII numbering 235 millionand 80 million shares, respectively.

TheParentCompany, at various instances, initiated negotiations with the SSS for restructuring of the loan
but was not able to conclude a formal restructuring agreement.

On January 13, 2015, the RTC of Quezon City issued a decision declaring null and void the contract of
loan and the related mortgages entered into by the Parent Company with SSS on the ground that the
officers and the SSS are not authorized to enter the subject loan agreement. In the decision, the RTC of
Quezon City directed the Company to return to SSS the principal amountof loan amounting to P375.00
million and directed theSSS to return to theCompany and to its related parties titles and documents held
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by SSS as collaterals.

OnJanuary22,2016, SSS appealedwith the CAassailing the RTC ofQuezonCitydecision in favorof the
Parent Company, et al. SSS filed its Appellant's Briefand the Parent Company filed a Motion for
Extension of Time to file Appellee's Brief until May 16, 2016.

On May16,2016, the Parent Companyfiled its Appellee's Brief with the CA,furnishing the RTC of
Quezon City and the Office of the Solicitor General with copies.SSS was given a period to reply but it did
not file any.

On September 6,2016, a resolution for possible settlement was received by the Parent Company from the
CA. However, on February 7,2017 a Notice to Appear dated December 7, 2016was received by the Parent
Company from the Philippine Mediation Center Unit - Court of Appeals (PMCU-CA) directing the Parent
Company and SSS to appear in person and without counsel at the PMCU-CA on January 23, 2017 to
choose their mediator and the date of initial mediation conference and to consider the possibility of
settlement. Since the Notice to Appear was belatedly received, the parties were not able to appear before
the PMCU-CA.

On February 27,2017, a Second Notice to Appear issued by the PMCU-CA directing all parties to appear
on February 27,2017 at a specified time was received by the Parent Company only on February 27,2017
after the specified time of the meeting. The Parent Company failed to appear.

On June 30,2017, a resolution issued by the CA, resolved to submit the appeal for decision.

As at the report date, there had been no updates on the matter.

BIR Assessment

On November 10,2008, the Parent Company received a preliminary assessment notice from the BIRfor
deficiency taxes for the taxable year 2006. On February 9, 2009, the Parent Company sent a protest letter to
BIRcontesting the said assessment. On February 18, 2009, the Regional Office of the BIRsent
a letter to the Parent Company informing the latter that the docket was returned to Revenue District
Office for reinvestigation and further verification.

On December 8,2009, the Parent Company received BlR's Final Decision on Disputed Assessment for
deficiency taxes for the 2006 taxableyear. The final decisionof the BIR seeks to collectdeficiency
assessments totaling to P3.30 million. However, on January 15, 2010, the Parent Company appealed the
final decisionof the BIR with the Court of TaxAppeals (CTA) on the grounds of lack of legal and factual
bases in the issuance of the assessments.

In its decision promulgated on November 13,2012, the CTA upheld the expanded withholding tax (EWT)
assessment and cancelled the VATand compromise penalty assessments. The Parent Company decided
not to contest the EWT assessment. The BIRfiled its motion for reconsideration (MR) on December 4, 2012
and on April 24, 2013, the Court issued its amended decision reinstating the VATassessment. The Parent
Company filed its MRon the amended decision that was denied by the CTAin its resolution promulgated
on September 13,2013.

The Parent Company appealed the case to the CTA sitting En Bancon October 21,2013.The CTA En Banc
decision promulgated on December 4, 2014 affirmed the VAT and EWT assessments. The EWT
assessment was paid on March 3, 2013.

TheCTA En Banc decision was appealed to theSCon February 5, 2015 covering the VAT assessment
only.

As at December31,2017, the Parent Company is still awaiting the SC's decision.
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On May 02,2018, the legal counsel servedcopies of the replyin thecase pendingbefore theCourt ofTax
Appeals.

Managementand its legal counselsbelieve that the position of the Parent Company is sustainable, and
accordingly, believethat the Parent Company does not have a present obligation(legalor constructive)
with respect to the assessment.

Item. 11. Financial and Other Information

The consolidated financial statements are filed as part of this FORM SEC 20IS, attached hereto and
marked as "Annex A."

Item 12. Mergers, Consolidations, Acquisitions and Similar Matters

As of July 31, 2018 Waterfront Philippines, Inc. has no plans to merge, and consolidate with other
company, to acquire other compan/s securities, to acquire any other going business or of the assets
thereof, to sell or transfer any substantial part of its assets and to liquidate or dissolve the Company.

Item 13. Acquisition or Disposition of Property

The Company acquired 100% interest of CIMAR, a former subsidiary of Acesite Limited (BVI) or ALB, in
October 2011. In July 2011, the Company and CIMAR executed a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA),
which effectively settle all pending cases and controversies between the two parties. In fulfillment of all
the terms and conditions of the MOA, CIMAR's stockholders including all their nominees, agreed to
assign, sell, transfer and convey all existing shares of stocks of CIMARto the Company.

Item 14. Restatements of Accounts

The Consolidated Financial Statements of Waterfront Philippines, Inc. has been prepared in accordance
with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). In particular there have no restatements of
Accounts.

D. Other Matters

Item 15. Action with Respect to Reports

1. Annual report for the year ending December 31, 2017 will be presented to the stockholders for
approval.

2. Minutes of the 2016 Annual Stockholders' Meeting will also be presented to the security holder for
approval.

3. Interim Report as of June 30, 2018 will be presented to the security holder for information regarding the
actual situation of the business.

Item. 16. Matters Not Required to be Submitted-NONE

Item 17. Amendments of Charter, By-Laws & Other Documents

a. Except for the amendments that the Corporation has made to its by-laws. Article III, Board of Directors,
Sections 3-7, as per Board of Directors meeting held on September 1, 2004 and Stockholders' meeting held
on September 4, 2004, And it was filed and approved with SEC last September 6, 2005. Since then there is
no other amendments made by the corporation.

b. On May 25, 2012, the application for the increase in Acesite (Phils.) Hotel Corp.'s authorized capital
stock, one of Waterfront Philippines Inc.'s subsidiaries, from P310 million to P1.21 billion was approved
by SEC. Accordingly, the Company distributed the 250% stock dividends or 246,248,212 shares on July
19, 2012 for stockholders of record as of June 25, 2012.
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The Board of Directors and the stockholders of Acesite (Phils.) Hotel Corporation approved on June 11,
2009 and July 2, 2009, respectively, the increase of the authorized capital from PI, 210,000,000.00 to P2,
010,000,000.00 via stock rights offering at an entitlement ratio of 0.58:1.

In a special meeting held last July 14, 2014, the Board of Directors approved the amendment of the
entitlement ratio from 0.58:1 to 1:1.

The proceeds will be used for the renovations of rooms, facilities, repair and replacement of equipment
and working capital.

c. In a special meeting also held last July 14, 2014, the Board of Directors approved the proposal to
increase the authorized capital stock of Waterfront Mactan Casino Hotel, Inc, one of Waterfront
Philippines Inc.'s subsidiaries, from P13,800,000.00 to P500,000,000.00, which increase will be paid-up via
declaration of stock dividends in the amount of P262,200,000.00.

d. Waterfront Philippines Inc.'s principal office address is located at No.l Waterfront Drive,OffSalinas
Drive, Lahug, Cebu City as amended in the Articles of Incorporation on December 19, 2001.

Item 18. Other Proposed Action

For the coming Stockholders meeting on October 13, 2018 at Waterfront Cebu City Hotel, these are the
following proposed action to be taken:

a. Approval of Minutes of the previous stockholders meeting.

b. Presentation of the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for the calendar year 2017
and during the meeting a copy of the 2"<^ quarterly report for 2018 will be furnished to the
stockholders.

c. Election of the board of directors for the ensuing term:
- Mr. Renato B. Magadia
- Mr. Kenneth T. Gatchalian

- Ms. Elvira A. Ting
- Ms. Dee Hua T. Gatchalian

- Mr. Arthur R. Ponsaran

- Mr. Lamberto B. Mercado, Jr.
- Mr. Reno I. Magadia
- Mr. Arthur M. Lopez
- Mr. Sergio R. Ortiz-Luis, Jr.
- Mr. Ruben D. Torres

d. Appointment of External Auditors
The board will recommend KPMG R.G. Manabat & Co., previously KPMG Manabat Sanagustin
and Co., as the Corporate External Auditor for the year 2018.

e. Appointment of External Counsel
For the year 2018, the Board will recommend Corporate Counsels, Philippines as the Legal
Counsel of the Company.

f. Ratification of the acts of the Board of Directors and Management

Acts of Management and resolutions of the Board including:

• To appoint and constitute BODTrust and Investment Group as our Stock Transfer Agent
to issue shares of the company in scrip less or uncertificated form in accordance with
Section 43 of the Securities Regulation Code and to link our database to the
EDR(Electronic Direct Registration) system of Pastra Net. Inc.
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• Renewal of licenses with government agencies/offices and other contracts and
designation of the authorized signatories.

• All other administrative matters concerning Waterfront Philippines, Inc.

Other than the above mentioned proposed actions there are no other matters that the Board of Directors
intends to present or have the reason to believe others will present at the meeting.

Item 19. Voting Procedures

Thevote of stockholders representing at leastmajority of the issuedand outstanding capitalstockentitled
to vote is required.

At every meeting of the stockholders of the corporation, each share of stock entitles its owner to one vote,
provided, however, that in the case of election of directors, every stockholder entitled to vote shall be
entitled to cumulate his shares and give one nominee as many votes as the number of directors to be
elected multiplied by the number of his shares, or he may distribute them on the same principle among as
many nominees as he shall see fit, provided that the entire number of votes cast by him shall not exceed
the number of shares owned by him multiplied by the entire number of directors to be elected.

Every stockholder entitled to vote at any meeting of the stockholders may so vote in person or by proxy,
provided that the proxy shall have been appointed in writing by the stockholder himself or by his duly
authorized attomey-in-fact. Unless otherwise provided in the proxy, it shall be valid only for the meeting
at which it has been presented to the Secretary. The instrument authorizing a proxy to act must be in the
hands of the Secretary not later than forty-eight (48) hours before the time for the meeting axe (Article II,
Sec. 7 of the By-Laws). Voting shall be by raising hands and need not be by ballot, the Corporate Secretary
shall duly count any action authorized upon the vote of the majority of the votes cast, except in the
election of directors, which shall be on the basis of cumulative voting hitch.

It is being noted that all items in the agenda shall be voted majority of the stockholders.

THE COMPANY'S ANNUAL REPORT ON SEC FORM 17 A WILL BE PROVIDED WITHOUT

CHARGE UPON WRITTEN REQUEST OF ANY SHAREHOLDERS OF RECORD ENTITLE TO
NOTICE OF AND VOTE OF AT THE MEETING, AT THE DISCRETION OF THE MANAGEMENT,
A CHARGE MAY BE MADE FOR EXIBFTS, PROVIDED SUCH CHARGE IS LIMITED TO
REASONABLE EXPENSES INCURRED BY THE REGISTRANT IN FURNISHING SUCH EXHIBITS.

Such written request may be directed to our Corporate Secretary, Atty. Arthur R. Ponsaran, with Office
Address at unit 3104 31®' floor Antel Global Corporate Center # 03 Dona Julia Vargas, Ortigas Center
Center Pasig City.

PART II

"WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE NOT

REQUESTED NOT TO SEND A PROXY."
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PART III

SIGNATURE PAGE

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, I certify that the information set
forth in this report is true, complete and correct. This report is signed in the City of Cebu on
August 28, 2018.

Waterfront Philippines. Inc. 19

By:
(Signa^re)

Precilla O. Toriano/Corporate Finance Director
(Printed Name / Title)
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Financial and Other Information

Management Discussion and Analysis (SeeAnnex I)
Financial Statements (See Annex II)
Changes In and Disagreements with Accounts on Accounting and Financial Disclosure-
NONE.
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MANAGEMENT REPORT
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Interim Periods and Comparable Discussions to Assess Material Changes:

Discussion and analysis on the operating results for the 1st quarter of 2018 is briefly
discussed on the attached SEC Form 17Q while for the 2nd quarter ended June 30,2018
will be attached on or before the scheduled date of 2017 Annual Stockholders Meeting which is
duly received by SEC beforeits deadline on September 04,2018. Attached herewith in this report
is a Letter of Undertaking which states the distribution of SEC Form 17-Q2nd quarter of 2018
during the Annual Stockholders Meeting.

OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Market for Registranfs Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters
1. The stocks of WPI shares which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange for the last two calendar
years are as set out hereunder:

Peso High Low

2018

January - March 2018 1.350 0.790

April- June 2018 1.030 0.720

Peso High Low

2017

January - March 2017 0.650 0.335

April-June 2017 1.080 0.375

July- September 2017 1.520 0.810

October- December 2017 1.230 0.870

Peso High Low

2016

January - March 2016 0.360 0.305

April- June 2016 0.410 0.320

July- September 2016 0.380 0.320

October- December 2016 0.365 0.320

The number of stockholders of record as of December 31, 2017 on the Register of Shareholders was 402
but the company is not able to identify the actual number of beneficial owners who are registered under
the name of the member companies of the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE). Common shares outstanding
as of December 31, 2017 were 2,498,991,753. There are no sales for the last three years of unregistered
securities.

2. The List of top 20 stockholders of record as of July 31,2018 is as stated hereunder:

Name of Stockholder of Record No. of Shares %

1 The Wellex Group, Inc. 1,128,466,800 45.157

2 PCD Nominee Corporation (Filipino) 594,260,373 23.780

3 Silver Green Investments LTD 180,230,000 7.212

4. Chesa Holdings, Inc. 175,924,000 7.040

5. Tybalt Investment LTD 135,010,000 5.403

6. Pacific Wide Realty Development Corp. 36,445,000 1.458

7. PCD Nominee Corporation (Non-Filipino) 33,146,501 1.326

8. Kenneth T. Gatchalian 30,000,100 1.200

9. Rexlon T. Gatchalian 30,000,000 1.200

10. Weslie T. Gatchalian 30,000,000 1.200
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11. Forum Holdings Corporation 20,626,000 0.825

12. Primary Structures Corporation 16,212,500 0.649

13. Pacific Rehouse Corporation 15,598,900 0.624

14. Rexlon T. Gatchalian 14,740,000 0.590

15. Metro Alliance Holdings & Equities, Inc. 14,370,000 0.575

16. Mizpah, Holdings Inc. 10,489,200 0.420

17. Elvira A. Ting 10,000,009 0.400

18. Catalina Roxas Melendres 6,246,000 0.250

19. Manuel H. Osmena 1,400,000 0.056

20. Rolarido M. Lim 1,142,500 0.046

3. The common stock of the company is being traded currently in the Philippine Stock Exchange. On June
16, 1999, the Parent Company declared cash dividend of Php 0.02 per share on its Common Shares
outstanding as of May 15,1999. This amounted to Php 19.23 million. The Parent Company also declared a
10% stock dividend as of September 15,1999 record date.

Company has not issue dividends since the year 2000.However, it promises to declare dividends once the
deficit is offset and the market for the coming years proper.

There is no restriction made by the company with regards to the declaration of giving a dividend to
stockholders.

4. Issuance and Exchange of Securities

In 2008, the Parent Company sold its investment in APHC totaling 4,900,000 shares at varying selling
price through the PSE. Total proceeds from the sales transactions, net of related expenses and taxes,
amounted to P 48.2 million. Gain on sale of APHC shares amounting to PlO.l million was recognized in
the December 31, 2008 consolidated statements of operations. The total proceeds from the sale transaction
amounting to P48.2 million, which was provided to TWGI s cash advances was recorded as receivable
from TWGI and part of the "Due from related parties" account in the consolidated balance sheets (see
Note 9). As of December 31,2008, the Parent Company's equity interest in APHC decreased to 69% FROM
75% IN 2007.

Date of Sale and Title

and

Amount of Securities

Sold

Names of Underwriters

of Identity to whom it
May Sold

Share # of Swap SEC FORM

December 22, 2008 -

Common-4,700,000
Not applicable 500,000 @ P9.40 10.1

June 19, 2008 -

Common-20,000,000
Not applicable 2,000,000 @ PIO.OO 10.1

June 26, 2008
Common-7,000,000

Not applicable 700,000 @ PIO.OO 10.1

June 30, 2008

Common-7,610,000
Not applicable 761,000 @ PIO.OO 10.1

July 2, 2008
Common - 9,390,000

Not applicable 9,390,000 @ P15.00 10.1
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The Compensation and Remuneration Committee has provided armual reports, information and proxy
statements on the disclosure of the compensation for the executives and officers of the Company.

The Audit Committee has been composed of three members, one of whom is independent. The said
Committee has reviewed all financial reports against compliance with both the internal financial
management policy and pertinent accounting standards. The Committee has also reviewed management
policies on financial management, audit plans, interface with the internal and external auditors. The
Committee has also developed a financial management system that ensured the integrity of internal
control activities throughout the Company.

The Corporate Secretary of Waterfront Philippines, Inc. is Atty. Arthur R. Ponsaran, a Filipino citizen. He
possesses the administrative and interpersonal skills. He is also a Certified Public Accountant. He
gathered all documents with regard to the discharge of his duties and responsibilities, prepared board
meeting notices, submitted through the SEC17-C the annual certification as to attendance of the directors
during Board meetings.

The External Auditor for the year 2017 and 2016 is KPMG R.G. Manabat & Co., and was chosen by the
Board and approved by the stockholders upon recommendations of the Audit Committee.

The Internal Auditor reporting directly to the Audit Committee provided reasonable assurance that the
key organizational and procedural controls were effective, appropriate and complied.
The Manual for Corporate Governance has been made available to discerning stockholders during office
hours of Waterfront Philippines, Inc.

The reports required for the Manual were prepared and submitted to the Commission.
All material information that could potentially affect shares were publicly disclosed in accordance with
the rules of the Philippine Stock Exchange and the Commission. The Annual Reports were properly
disseminated to the stockholders.

The stockholders were given the right to elect, remove and replace directors in accordance with the
Corporation Code. Cumulative was used during the last annual stockholders' meeting. They were also
provided the power of inspection of the corporate books and records including the minutes of the Board
Meetings, without costs and restrictions.

Other Matters

The Compliance Officer was deemed to have reported grave violations of the Manual but since there was
none, none was reported.

The Compliance Officer was deemed to have appeared before the Securities and Exchange Commission
upon summons but since there was none, said Officer was not compelled to, or Waterfront Philippines,
Inc.beinga holding company and limited in terms of physicaloffice space with only a few people holding
keyfunctions, it was enough that a fewcopies were available for inspection by all of its fewemployees.

The company did not issue any additional shares during the year to make use of the pre-emptive right for
the stockholders.

The shareholders had been granted the right to propose the holding of a meeting, right to propose items
in the agenda, but to date none has been communicated to the management of the Company regarding
such proposals.

None so farhas expressed to exercise his right to Appraisal in the lastannualmeeting of thestockholders.

The company has submitted its Revised Manual on Corporate Governance in accordance with SEC
Memorandum Circular No. 6, series of 2009 "Revised Code of Corporate Governance.
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ANNEX 1

The year 2017 delivered mixed results for WPI. Your company has accomplished major milestones this
year—foremost of which is our flagship property, Wattfrtjront Cebu Citv ti< )ttl and t_asmo, txrelacin nSlh;

PHP 1 billion mark in gross revenue for the first time ii g s histcgy,a bi rough can a
the upward h ryseeninthepisbyeirproud of. For most aspects of operations, 2017 continue

Concurrently, however, challenges have presented thd ns
areas of our operations. We are confident that these clg 11 ;nges (Sn be r^:
strategies towards setting the entire group back in sync and on track.

elves, ^owinj j ^ rowth ^tentia
vid by eiSployinj^ § i"

WaterfrontCebu City Hotel and Casino(WCCHC), our largest hotel, remains an excellentperformer
overall, withdouble-digit increases insignificant aspects ofoperations. Occupancy hasgrown 12%, from
61% in 2016 to 73% thisyear.Revpar is up an impressive 20%, from PHP1,537 the previousyear to PHP
1,852 thisyear.Rooms generated PHP359.42 million in 2017 wellabove PHP300.67 million in 2016,
another remarkableleap of 20%. F&B contributed PHP 348.54 million this year, compared to PHP 308.33
million the past year—yet anotherdouble-digit gain of 13%. ARR has increased by1%,from PHP2,508 in
2016 to PHP 2,530 in 2017. Rentand related incomegenerated PHP 334.19 million in 2017 compared to
PHP328.21 million in 2016, up by 2%. Otheroperating departmentsproduced PHP11.36 million.

As previously mentioned, grossrevenuecrossed the PHP1 billion mark for the first time: fromPHP
951.44 million in 2016, it has surged to PHP1.05 billion in 2017—a pivotalachievement and signifying a
leap of PHP102.07 million in annual revenue. Weare optimistic that the uptrend beyond the one billion
point willcontinueas the company movesforward and builds on its momentum. GOPis up 7%, from
PHP 393.27 million in 2016to PHP 422.16 million this year, which makes for PHP 28.88 million of added
revenue. NOP has grown by double digits, from PHP 157.62 millionin the past year to PHP 184.29 million
this year—a rise of 17% or PHP 26.66 million in revenue.

These impressive numbers are reinforcedby effective cost control measures. Despite the high growth,
WCCHC as a property managed to limit costs to relatively low figures. In 2017, cost and expenses for the
property only increased by 13%,at PHP 631.35 million in 2017compared to PHP 558.17 million in 2016.
Payroll and energy cost were also kept in check, despite the growth in demand and operations.

Waterfront Airport Hotel and Casino (WAH) demonstrates outstanding production for another year.
High demand for the property has resulted in one of our best-ever annual records for occupancy. From
the previous year's 91%, the occupancy rate for this property skyrocketed to 97%,a growth of 6%.Revpar
is up by 23%, from PHP 2,298 in 2016 to PHP 2,838 in 2017. The double-digit growth trend continues for
other categories. ARR reflects a 15% increase from PHP 2,534 in 2016 to PHP 2,927 in 2017. Rooms
revenue is up 21%, from PHP 129.42 million in 2016 to PHP 156.53 miUion in 2017. F&B revenue
increased from PHP 76.89 million in 2016 to PHP 77.52 million in 2017, a rise of 1%. Rent and related

income is up by 10% at PHP 160.62miUion versus PHP 145.49million the past year. Other operating
departments collectively grew revenue by 17%, from PHP 11.38 million in 2016 to PHP13.36 million in
2017.Gross revenue for the property grew by 12%, from PHP 363.17 million in the previous year to PHP
408.03million this year. GOP is up a staggering 24%,from PHP 165.92million the past year to PHP
205.03million in 2017. NOP increased by double digits as well, growing by 19% at PHP103.86 million,
from PHP 87.52 million in 2016.

Cost and expenses at the property were kept at a minimum, increasing by merely 3% despite the
heightened operations resulting from building demand. Payroll cost increased by a modest 13% and
energy cost increased by only 2%.
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Waterfront Insular Hotel Davao (WIHD) shows conservative yet still positive overall growth this year.
The property has performed well despite competition from newer properties in the Davao area. ARR is at
PHP 2,212 in 2017, up 5 %from last year's PHP 2,104. Revpar increased by 4% from PHP 1,468in 2016to
PHP 1,530in 2017. Rooms revenue is up by 5% as well, from PHP 80.43million in 2016 to PHP 84.62
million this year. F&Brevenue increased by 1%, from PHP 105.64 million in 2016versus PHP 106.98
million in 2017. Occupancy this year is at 69%. Gross revenue is at PHP 196.63 million, up 3% from PHP
191.54 million in 2016.GOP is at PHP 28.83 million. NOP decreased by 2%, from PHP 12.40 million in the
past year to PHP12.09 million this year.

Cost control measures have contributed to sustaining overall profitability. Payroll cost was effectively
dropped by 30%, from PHP 42.95million the past year to PHP 29.89million currently. Energy cost was
kept almost level at PHP 27.34 million versus PHP 27.03 million in 2016, a 1% increment.

Manila Pavilion (MPH) has faced considerable stresses this year, resulting in lower performance in
comparison to our provincial properties, which posted double-digit strides, yet the property still
managed to deliver positive figures in some aspects of operations. Occupancy rate is at 50%.Revpar is at
PHP 1,189. ARRincreased by 5%from PHP 2,274 in 2016to PHP 2,378 in 2017. Rooms revenue also
increased by 0.3% from PHP 151.60 million in 2016to PHP 152.12 million in 2017. Rent and related income
is at PHP 182.34 million. F&Brevenue is at PHP 93.85 million. Other operating departments generated a
210% increase in income, from PHP 2.66 million in 2016 to PHP 8.25 million in 2017. Gross revenue for the

property is at PHP 436.56 million. GOP is at PHP 65.29 million and NOP is at PHP -43.96 million.

Cost control measures have successfully reduced expenses for the company, with payroll cost and energy
cost decreasing by 3% and 5% respectively. Overall cost and expenses was reduced by 1%.

The difficulties faced by MPH in 2017 were in part due to infrastructure challenges in Metro Manila and
the tourism climate, which were not favorable to our Manila property. MPH also experienced a decline in
revenue due to the expiry of its long-term contract with PAGCOR. We resolved this by immediately
acting upon a new contract to supplant lost revenue streams.This gap between corporate agreements

reflected on 2017's figures, but the property's productivity would have turned around in 2018had the
contracts materialized.

In the spirit of transparency and timely disclosure, we must bring up the incident of the fire at the
Pavilion on March of 2018. While beyond the usual scope of this report, it is a topic that needs to be
addressed. The fire resulted in significant damage to our Manila property, resulting in its temporary
closure. Rest assured, however, that we have been working tirelessly towards resuming our Manila
operations and are on the path to not merely rebuilding but transforming it into an even better property.

In previous years, limitations of the product—the Pavilion, upon acquisition, having already been an
older property—also limited the infrastructure development of the hotel. Now that there is a chance to
start from a completely new blueprint, we are taking the opportunity to rebuild in a revolutionary way.
We plan to modernize and truly maximize the hotel's strategic advantages. The Pavilion's unique location
advantage, having the potential to tap markets among Manila's neighboring districts for recreation,
historical tourism and business, is about to be harnessed to its fullest potential.

A new and transformed hotel will be the main attraction in this captured market. The Pavilion is set for a
full upgrade and redesign of facilities to create an optimal experiencewith an impressively wide range of
options for guests. Full modernization will make it state-of-the-art in its class. The new additions and
upgrades will ensure the buildup of new market interest and solidify its competitive edge.
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Among its new luxurious facilitiesare a brand-new, fully modernized swimming pool area and recreation
floor, exciting new dining outlets within a fully redesigned casino area, al fresco rooftop dining and a cafe
with an exhilarating view. Roomswill be outfitted with all-new equipment and amenities, and designed
to fit modem cosmopolitan tastes. The hotel area will undergo a design transformation that will delight
and surprise the market. The new Pavilion will be 360-degreeleisure, entertainment, relaxation, business
and hospitality experienceas never before.The property being situated in historic Old Manila,one of the
most dynamic business and leisure centers in the Philippines, will once more shine as its crown jewel.

Waterfront's consolidated revenues for the year reflect this mixed outcome among the properties.
Occupancy for the group increased by 3%, from 69% in 2016 to 72% in 2017.Gross revenue is at PHP 2.10
billion. GOP is at PHP 684.15 million. Net income is at PHP 198.73 million. Rental revenue is at PHP

675.83 million. Rooms revenue was boosted by double digits, from PHP 662.12 million in 2016to PHP
752.69million in 2017, an increase of 14%. F&B revenue is also strong overall, increasing from PHP 595.04
million in 2016to PHP 629.40 million in 2017, a growth of 6 %. Other income is at PHP 47.02million.
Revpar increased by 13%,from PHP 1,643in 2016to PHP 1,852in 2017. ARRrose by 7%,from PHP 2,355
last year to PHP 2,512 in the current year.

Operating expenses are at PHP 1.42 billion. Energy cost was effectively controlled for the group overall,
increasing only by 3%, from PHP 330.68million in the past year to PHP 339.74million this year. Payroll
cost dropped by 3%, a decrease from PHP 336.52 million in 2016 to PHP 326.88million this year.

Despite the challenges, the Waterfront brand remains as robust as ever. Our new tagline, "We're at the
center of it all." and our new revitalized brand signify our leadership in the industry, our strength and
ability to draw the market. What does this mean for our company? It demonstrates an alignment of
objectives,a powerful, unified message and a confident voice. Waterfront continues to leverage its
strengths, both of its infrastructure and its network, to maintain a competitive edge in the hospitality
industry.

Being at the center of it all requires innovation. We continue to be iimovative in reaching our market. Our
online production this year remains consistent with the growing global trend with an 23% growth rate on

revenue at PHP 329.15 million from last year's PHP 268.29 million contributing 43% of the total Rooms
gross revenue. We are highly confident in this area of growth for our company as we continue to shift our
focus to tech-savvy markets, which are proving to be ideal markets, and leverage the power of new
technology to open doors for our brand.

Maintaining a positive trajectory requires effective and strategic decision-making. Our group continues to
forge ahead as a market leader by strategically optimizing our assets, locations,organization, operations
and brand to deliver a superior product and emerge at the top of our game. We have already carved out
our vision for the company. Waterfront Properties is on a clear trajectory to driving further growth by
moving on our path with decisiveness—the ability to respond immediately and effectively to whatever
challenge lies ahead, and the confidence to rebrand and rebuild better than ever.

Management's Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation

Figures for Waterfront Properties, however, continue to show overall strength. The performance of our
provincial properties provided a much-needed counterbalance,signifying the distribution of growth in
the hospitality market, which is no longer confined to the capital and is moving towards tourism hotspots
in the South.The political climatehas also fueled this growth and confidence in the Philippine provinces
as the new gateways for tourism.
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Consolidated figures among the properties reflect this mixed profile. Gross revenue is PHP 2.10billion.
GOP is PHP 684.15million. Net income is PHP 198.73million. Occupancy for the group grew by 3%, from
69% in 2016 to 72% in 2017. Rooms revenue surged from PHP 662.12 million in 2016 to PHP 752.69 million
in 2017, an increase of 14%. Rental revenue is at PHP 675.83 million. F&B revenue increased from PHP

595.04million in 2016 to PHP 629.40 million in 2017,a 6% positive growth. Revpar grew by 13%,from
PHP 1,643 in 2016 to PHP 1,852this year. Other income is at PHP 47.02 million. ARRincreased by 7%,
from PHP 2,355 in 2016 to PHP 2,512 in 2017.

Below are the results of operations of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries, for the years ending
December31,2017 and 2016 together with its financial conditions as of the same period.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (Amounts in P)

2017 2016

Revenues 2,104,932,423 2,135,345,241

Less: Costs and Expenses 1,420,782,863 1,362,379,137

Gross Income 684,149360 772,966,104

Other Expenses (Income) 384,967,631 301,577,757

Net Income (Loss) Before Income Tax 299,181,929 471,388,347

Income Tax Expense (Benefit) 100,448,728 152,503,361

NET INCOME (LOSS) 198,733,201 318,884,986

Earnings (Loss) Per Share 0.087 0.115

UNCIAL CONDITION (Amounts in P)

2017 2016

ASSETS

Current Assets 2,502,900,348 2,096,232,446

Non Current Assets 6,849,909,245 7,011,111,868

Total Assets 9,352,809,593 9,107,344,314

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities 1,929,206,522 1,828,565,697

Non-current Liabilities 1,406,088,464 1,444,411,625

Total Liabilities 3,335,294,986 3,272,977,322

Total Stockholders' Equity 5,150,133,268 4,940,346,932

Minority Interest
867,381339 894,020,060

Total Liabilities & S/H Equity 9,352,809,593 9,107,344,314
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Calendar Year -ended December 31.2017 as compared with Calendar Year ended December 31,2016

RESULTS OF OPERATION

Revenues and Earnings per share
Total revenues for year ended Dec. 31, 2017, was lower than the previous year. In actual
performance, revenues from hotel & other subsidiaries for the year 2017 is at P2.10B compared to
2016's P2.14B,decreased by 1.42%

Earnings per share for 2017, P0.087 and P0.115 for 2016. There are no potentially dilutive shares as
of December 31,2017,2016,2015.

Cost and expenses
Cost and expenses of 2017 is at 1.42Bwith 4.29% increased from last year.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Cash and cash equivalents - This account increased by P141.63M which is higher from last year
by 69.33%.

Receivables - Decreased by 3.01% from P235.45M in 2016 to P228.36M in 2017.

Notes Receivable - The Group extended loans to Acesite Leisure and Entertainment Corporation
(ALEC) amounting to P195.01 million payable on December 31, 2018, and bear interest at 4% per
annum (see Note 21). The loan is guaranteed by another entity in behalf of ALEC.

Inventories - Inventories increased by 20.33% from last year.

Duefrom relatedparties-current portion - The account increased to P64.22M an amount equivalent
to 4.18%.This represents interest bearing advances to TWGI, PRC and Crisanta Realty. It also
includes from PHES which is non-interest bearing. This year of 2017, these advances are due in
one year, subject to yearly renewal and re-pricing.

Prepaid expenses and other current assets - An increased of P7.16M from last year's P90.40M.
Prepaid expenses are defined as payment for services and/or benefits yet to be performed or
received; it also includes prepaid taxes and insurance.

^ Property plant & equipment - This year at 2.95% decreased from last year's P6.59B. In compliance
with PAS 27, property and equipment (except operating and transportation equipments) were
carried at revalued amounts effective 2009.

Othernon currentassets - There is an increased of P2.56M on this account, an amount equivalent to
9.14% compared from last year.

Current Liabilities - The account consisted of trade payable, income tax payable, accruals and loans
payable. The account increased by 5.50% from last year; P1.83B in 2016to P1.93B in 2017.

Loans Payable - Remainedstatic at P375M.This consisted of SSS Loan only. PBB loan was fully
paid on April 29, 2016while ICBCloan was also fully paid March 31,2016.

Other current liabilities - The account resulted a decreased of 40.03%. This refers to
concessionaire, other deposits and deferred income.
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Calendar Year ended December 31,2016 as compared with Calendar Year ended December 31,2015

RESULTS OF OPERATION

Revenues and Earnings per share
Total revenues for year ended Dec. 31, 2016, was higher than the previous year. In actual
performance, revenuesfrom hotel &other subsidiaries for the year 2016 is at P2.14B compared to
2015's P2.10B. Increase of 34.44M or 1.90%

Earnings per share for 2016, P0.115 compared to 2015 at P0.051. There are no potentially dilutive
shares as of December 31,2016,2015, 2014.

Cost and expetises
Cost and expenses of 2016 is at 1.36B with 42M decrease from last year or 2.99%.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Cash and cash equivalents - This account increasedby P31.13M which is higher from last year by
17.97%.

Receivables - Increased by 10.33% from P213.71M in 2015 to P235.45M in 2016.

Inventories - Inventories decreased by 3.79% from last years P29.30M.

Duefrom related parties-current portion - The account decreased to P72.31M an amount equivalent
to 4.49%.This represents interest bearing advances to TWGI, PRC and Crisanta Realty. It also
includes from PHES which is non-interest bearing. This year of 2016, these advances are due in
one year, subject to yearly renewal and re-pricing.

Prepaid expenses and other current assets - An increased of P13.42M from last year's
P76.98M.Prepaid expenses are defined as payment for services and/or benefits yet to be
performed or received; it also includes prepaid taxes and insurance.

Property plant & equipment - This year at 11.13% increased from last year P5.93B. In compliance
with PAS 27, property and equipment (except operating and transportation equipments) were
carried at revalued amounts effective 2009.

Availablefor sale investments - In July and August 2005, the BOD approved the conversion of
APHC's net receivables from related parties amounting to P43.30 million into 86.71 million shares
of stock of WII which are listed in the PSE. The conversion resulted to a loss on exchange of assets
of P31.10 million for APHC. The fair market value of the shares based on closing market price as
at December 31,2016 and 2015 amounted to PI6.82 million and P18.21 million, respectively.
Valuation loss recognized in OCI in 2016 and 2015amounted to P1.39 million and P4.77 million,
respectively, while a valuation gain amounting to P6.07 million was recognized in 2014.

Other non current assets - There is a decreased of P12.71Mon this account, an amount equivalent
to 31.24% compared from last year.

Current Liabilities - The account consists of trade payable, income tax payable, accruals and
loans payable. The account decreased by 25.16% from last year; P2.44Bin 2015 to P1.83B in 2016.

Loans Payable - Decreased by 24.40% or P121.03M. This consists of SSSLoan only. PBB loan was
fully paid on April 29, 2016while ICBCloan was also fully paid March 31, 2016.

Other airretit liabilities - The account resulted a decreased of 95.27%. Decreased of P516.91M
was attributable to Concessionaires' and other deposits and Current portion of advance rental.
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TOP 5 PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

As of December 31,2016,2015 and 2014

December 2017 December 2016 December 2015

Occupancy percentage 72% 69% 66%

Average Room Rates 2,512 2,355 2,270

Average Food Covers 321,947 304,378 324,326

Average Food Checks 402.26 368.34 368.28

Average Food Costs 36% 36% 42%

Occupancy Percentage
The Company's occupancy percentage for 2017 was 71%, higher by 3% as compared to last year's 69%.
This is computedby dividingthe totalnumber of rooms sold over the total numberof rooms available for
sale.

Average Room Rate
Average room rate increased by 7% compared to last year's balance of 2,355. It is computed by dividing
the total rooms revenue over total number of rooms sold.

Average Food Covers
Food covers increased by 6%.This pertains to increasing number of guests that availed our outlets.

Average Food Checks
The average food checks or the average consumption per guest increased by 9%. As always, the Company
has doubled its efforts in satisfying the eclectic tastes of the guests and marketing them by various
promotions.

Average Food Costs
Food costs for 2017 at 36%. The Company is continually contemplating ways to avoid higher food costs
without jeopardizing the quality of its products. Total cost of food sold divided by food revenue.

Key Variable and Other Qualitative and Quantitative Factors:

(i) Any known Trends, Events or Uncertainties-(material impact on liquidity)-NONE

(ii) There are no events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is
material to the company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.

(iii) There are no material off-balancesheet transactions, arrangements, obligations
(including, contingent obligations), and other relationships of the company with
unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

(iv)There are no material commitments for capital expenditures, general purpose of
such commitments, expected sources of funds for such expenditures.

(v) From continuing operations, the Company is not exposed to any significant elements of
income or loss except for those already affecting profit or loss.

(vi)Causes of material changes in the items in the financialstatements from the year ending 31
December 2017 - NONE
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Corporate Governance

The followingare the point-by-pointcomplianceof the Company to the Manual:

TheCompany has a compliance officer in the name of Precilla O.Toriano as required by the Manual for
Corporate Governance. Said Compliance Officer reported directly to the Chairman of the Boardand in his
absence, to the executives of the Company.

The Compliance Officer monitored the compliance regarding the provisions and requirements of the
Corporate for Governance Manual.

The Compliance Officer is issuing this certification to the extent of compliance of the Company to this
Manual.

The Compliance Officer has identified, monitor and controlled the compliance risks involved in the
Company considering the large scope of its operations and the accounting procedures that have to be
done correspondingly.

The Board of Directors has taken care of its responsibility to foster long-term success of the Corporation
through its meeting every other month. Each meeting has been carefully recorded in minutes. The
authority given to each Board member has been within the by-laws of the Company and within the limits
of the law.

The Board of Directors has implemented a process of selection to ensure the combination of its directors
and officers.

The Corporation through the Board and the Corporate Secretary has complied with all the relevant laws,
regulations and codes of best business practices.

The Board of Directors has implemented the proper disclosure of information to its stockholders as
exemplified in the General Information Statement sent to each of them.

According to Company's assessment, the directors have conducted fair business transactions with the
Corporation, seen to it that personal interests did not prejudice their Board decisions, have devoted time
and attention needed for the discharge of their duties and responsibilities, acted judiciously, exercised
independent judgment, observed confidentiality, and ensured the continuing soundness, effectiveness
and adequacy of the Corporation's internal control environment.

The Board has created committees, namely: the Nomination Committee, Compensation & Remuneration
Committee, and the Audit Committee.

The Nomination Committee, composed of 3 voting directors (one is independent), is in charge of the
screening of the candidatesfor a seat in the Boardof Directors in accordance to the qualifications set in the
Manual.Said Committee has also considered the disqualifications specifically enumerated.

The Compensation and Remuneration Committee is composed of three members, one of them is
independent as provided for in the guidelines.

The Compensation and Remuneration Committee hasmade sure that thecompensation of thekey officers
and executives of theCompany was in linewith theculture and policies of theCompany.

TheCompensation and Remuneration Committee has developed a formal and transparent procedure for
developing a policy on executive remuneration and for fixing the remuneration packages of individual
directors and officers. The Committee has also developed a system regarding disclosure of all the
incoming officers as to their business interests which might be in conflict with that of the Company. No
director or officer has been allowed to decide on his own remuneration.
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CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

I, ARTHUR M. LOPEZ, Filipino, of legal age and a resident of The Ritz Tower
Condominium, 6745 Ayala Avenue, Makati City, after having been duly sworn to
in accordance with law do hereby declare that:

1. I am a nominee for independent director ofWaterfront Philippines Inc. and
have been its independent director since 2014.

2. I am affiliated with the following companies or organizations

COMPANY/ORGANIZATION POSITION/RELATIONSHIP PERIOD OF SERVICE
AML Hotel Consultancv Principal/Owner 2010 - present
Waterfront Phils. Inc Independent Director 2002 - present
Aceslte CPhils.) Hotel Corporation Chairman/ Independent Director 2004- present
Phil. Estates Corporation Director 1996 - present
Phil. Hotel Owners Association Inc. President 2006 - present
Hotel Management and Development
Consultant (Double Dragon Properties Corp)

Consultant 2013-present

Hotel of Asia Inc- Hotel 101 Manila, Hotel 101
Fort, Hotel 101 Management Corp.

Hotel Management Consultant 2013 - present

^Bellevue (Bohol, Manila, Quezon City, Bagulo) Hotel Management Consultant 2003 - present
Wydham Garden Quezon City ( Wellworth
Properties and Development Corporation)

Hotel Management and Development
Consultant and Project Consultant

2016 - present

LP3 Emerald Hotel & Casino Mactan, Cebu
City

Hotel Management and Development
Consultant and Project Consultant

2017-present

Sweetwater Corporation - Azumar Resort
Hotel and Tahanan Resort, Siargao

Hotel Management, Technical Services
and Project Consultant

Present

3. I possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as
an Independent Director of Waterfront Phils. Inc., as provided for in
Section 38 of the Securities Regulation Code, its Implementing Rules and
Regulations and other SEC issuances.

4. I am related to the following director /officer/substantial shareholder of
(covered comoanv and its subsidiaries and affiliates) other than the
relationship provided under Rule 38.2.3 of the Securities Regulation Code,
(where applicable)

NAME OF

DIRECTOR/OFFICER/SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDER

COMPANY NATURE OF

RELATIONSHIP

N/A N/A N/A

•

5. To the best of my knowledge, I am not the subjectof any pending criminal
or administrative investigation or proceeding/I disclose that I am the
subject of the following criminal/administrative investigation or proceeding
(as the case may be):



. /*

OFFENSE
CHARGED/INVESTIGATED

TRIBUNAL OR AGENCY

INVOLVED

STATUS

N/A N/A N/A

6. (For those In government service/affiliated with a government agency or
GOCC) I have the required written permission or consent from the (head
of the aqencv/deoartment) to be an independent director in

, pursuant to Office of the President
Memorandum Circular No.17 and Section 12 Rule XVIII of the Revised
Service Rules.

7. I shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as
independent director under the Securities Regulation Code and its
implementing Rules and Regulations, Code of Corporate Governance and
other SEC issuances.

8. I shall inform the Corporate Secretary of of any
changes in the abovementioned information within five days from its
occurrence.

Done, this
AUG 2 8 2018

_day of at cEBOcrr?

Affiant

AUG 2.8 2018
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of

at

and exhibited to me his

Doc. No. /jC
Page No. jjj
Book No. y/
Series of ^ It

on

cT.-

* 40417
NOTARY l*.

^ PUBLIC /j?;

., affiant personally appeared before me
issued at

JOSELITO RAT
NOTARY PUBLI

NOTARIAL COMMISSION Na 78^081 UNTlMlGi lii 2918
LOWER LEVEL, WATERFRONT CEBU Cl'n^OTSL

ONE SALINAS DRIVE, LAHUQ, CEBU OfTV
ROLL OFATTORNEY'S NO. 40417

PTR NO 1433813/CEBU CITY/12/28/17
IBP LIFETIME MEMBER NO.05244



CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

I, SERGIO ORTIZ- LUIS JR, Filipino, of legal age and a resident of 151 corner 3"^ St., and lO '̂' Ave.,
Riverside Village, Pasig, after having been duly sworn to in accordance with law do hereby declare
that:

I am a nominee for independent director of Waterfront Philippines Inc. and have been its

independent director since 2013.

I am affiliated with the following companies or organizations

COMPANY/ORGANIZATION POSITION/RELATIONSHIP PERIOD OF

SERVICE
Acesite (Phils.) Hotel Corporation Independent Director 2013- present
Alliance Global Vice Chairman 2007- present
Phil.Chamber of Commerce & Industry Honorary Chairman/Treasurer 2008- present
PHILEXPORT President/ CEO 1991- present
ECOP Past President/ Honorary

Chairman
2010- present

Philippine Estates Corporation Director 2015- present
International Chamber of Commerce of
the Philippines

Founding Director present

Manila Exposition Complex inc ( World
Trade Center)

Director present

Consulate of Romania in the Philippines Honorary Consul General 2015- present

The Wellex Group Director present

I possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an Independent
Director of Waterfront Philippines Inc as provided for in Section 38 of the Securities
Regulation Code, its Implementing Rules and Regulations and other SEC issuances.

1am related to the following director /officer/substantial shareholder of (covered comoanv and
its subsidiaries and affiliates) other than the relationship provided under Rule 38.2.3 of the

NAME OF

DIRECTOR/OFFICER/SUBSTANTIAL

SHAREHOLDER

COMPANY NATURE OF

RELATIONSHIP

N/A N/A N/A

To the best of my knowledge, I am not the subject of any pending criminal or administrative
investigation or proceeding/I disclose that I am the subject of the following
criminal/administrative investigation or proceeding (as the case may be):'

OFFENSE

CHARGED/INVESTIGATED
TRIBUNAL OR AGENCY

INVOLVED
STATUS

N/A N/A N/A



6. (For those in government service/affiiiated with a government agency or GOCC) I have the required
written permission or consent from the (head of the aqencv/department) to be an independent director
in , pursuant to Office of the President Memorandum Circular No. 17 and
Section 12 Rule XViii of the Revised Service Rules.

7.1 shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as independent director
under the Securities Regulation Code and its implementing Rules and Regulations, Code of Corporate
Governance and other SEC issuances.

8.1 shall inform the Corporate Secretary of
abovementioned information within five days from its occurrence.

2 8JQJ8 OTD

of any changes in the

Done, this

Doc. No.
Page No
Book No

Series

.^ / 40417 I
' \ notary

.. at.

JOSELITO RAlltoM
NOTAPV Pt "VvSTjuLO

N0TARIALC0^1^;>^.^ '
tOWER LEVEL, ^VATERffiowJ

^
^ Affiant-^

AUG 2 8 2018
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of at

CEBO affiant personally appeared before meand exhibited to me his / her
issued at on .



. r

CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

I, RUBEN D. TORRES, Filipino, of legal age and a resident of #22 Kalaw Ledesma Circle, Tierra
Verde Homes, Tandang Sera, Quezon City, after having been duly sworn to in accordance with
law do hereby declare that:

1. I am a nominee for independent director of Waterfront Philippines Inc. and have been its

independent director since 2014.

2. I am affiliated with the following companies or organizations

COMPANY/ORGANIZATION POSITION/RELATIONSHIP PERIOD OF

SERVICE

BPO Workers Association of the Phils.

(BWAP)
President Present

Trade Union Congress of the Philippines VP- International Affairs Present

Services Exporters Risk Management &
Consultancy Co (SERMC)

Chairman / CEO Present

Torres Caparas Torres Law Offices Senior Partner 1998- present
Waterfront Philippines Inc. Board of Director 2006- present

Acesite Philippines Hotel Corp Board of Director 2014- present

3. I possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an
Independent Director of Acesite Phils Hotel Corp, as provided for in Section 38 of the
Securities Regulation Code, its Implementing Rules and Regulations and other SEC
issuances.

4. I am related to the following director /officer/substantial shareholder of (covered comoanv

of the Securities Regulation Cod e. (where applicable)
NAME OF

DIRECTOR/OFFICER/SUBSTANTIAL

SHAREHOLDER

COMPANY NATURE OF

RELATIONSHIP

N/A N/A N/A

To the best of my knowledge, I am not the subject of any pending criminal or
administrative investigation or proceeding/I disclose that I am the subject of the following
criminal/administrative investigation or proceeding (as the case may be):

OFFENSE

CHARGED/INVESTIGATED

TRIBUNAL OR AGENCY
INVOLVED

STATUS

N/A N/A N/A

6. (For those in government service/affiliated with a government agency or GOCC) I have the
required written permission or consent from the (head of the aqencv/deoartment) to be an



independent director in
Memorandum Circular No.17 and Section 12 Rule XVIII of the Revised Service Rules.

pursuant to Office of the President

7.1 shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as independent
director under the Securities Regulation Code and its implementing Rulesand Regulations, Code
of Corporate Governance and other SEC issuances.

8.1 shall inform the Corporate Secretary of
abovementioned inforrnation v^thin five days from its occurrence.

AUG 2 8 2018Done, this day of , at

of any changes in the

AUG 2 8 2018
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this dayof at

CirV affiant personally appeared before me and exhibited to me his / her

Doc. No

Page No
Book No

Series

issued at

•*

W ROLL No \^\
. 40417 , '

NOTARY / ^
PUBLIC

on

jomiTO Ry

atlVSL, WATERFB0M7CEBU C% HOrEI.
©.iygfAUN AS DRIVg,LAHUG,CEBUXnY

ROLL OF ATTORNEY'S NO. 40417

PTRNO 1433813/CEBU CrrY/12/28/17
IBP LIFETIMEMEMBER NO. 05244

Affiatlt



UNDERTAKING

Waterfront Philippines, Inc. hereby undertake to distribute a copy of SEC FORM 17-Q
for the 2"*^ quarter of 2018 to WPI Stockholders during the Annual Meeting to be held
on October 13. 2018.

TH T. GATCHALIAN



CERTIFICATION

I, ARSENIC A. ALFILER, JR., of legal age and with office address at Unit 3104 Antel Global
Corporate Center, #3 Dona Julia Vargas Avenue, Ortlgas Center, Pasig City, after being duly sworn to
in accordance with law, do hereby certify:

I am the duly elected Assistant Corporate Secretary of WATERFRONT PHILIPINES, INC., a
corporation duly organized and existing under Philippine laws with principal office at 1 Salinas Drive,
Lahug Cebu City (the "Corporation")-

Ail incumbent directors and officers of the Corporation are not connected with any
government agency or instrumentality.

I execute this Certification to comply with the requirements of the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Ihave hereunto set my hand this ^ day ofAugust 2018 in
the City of Pasig.

ARSENIC A. ALFILER, JR.

Assistant Corporate Secretary

Subscribed and sworn to before me this Allfi ? PASIG CHY , affiant
exhibiting to me his TIN with No. 108160743.

^rrV-NlNAcS^^COTO
Notary Public fot Pasig Ci^

« MmSGlo^f^ Cit
No. 69725, njan20l8
FTRNo. 3872127. Pasig City. 17 J»d2

Doc. No. : U^t3104AntelGlo^Cor^"«^^C^^

Book No. T *

Series of 2018.



COMPANY NAME : WATERFRONT PHILS., INC.

STOCKHOLDER'S NAME

)

OUTSTANDING &

ISSUED SHARES

(FULLY PAID)

LIST OF ALL STOCKHOLDERS

As Of July 31, 2018

OUTSTANDING &

ISSUED SHARES

(PARTIALLY PAID)

TOTAL

HOLDINGS

(SUBSCRIBED)

Page

PERCENTAGE NATIONALIT

TO

TOTAL

THE WELLEX GROUP, INC. 1,128,466,800 0 1,128,466,800 45.157 FILIPINO

PCD NOMINEE CORP. (FILIPINO) 594,260,373 0 594,260,373 23.780 FILIPINO

SILVER GREEN INVESTMENTS LTD. 180,230,000 0 180,230,000 7.212 OTHERS

CHESA HOLDINGS, INC. 175,924,000 0 175,924,000 7.040 FILIPINO

TYBALT INVESTMENT LTD. 135,010,000 0 135,010,000 5.403 BRITISH

PACIFIC WIDE REALTY DEVELOPMENT CORP. 36,445,000 0 36,445,000 1.458 FILIPINO

PCD NOMINEE CORP. (NON-FILIPINO) 33,146,501 0 33,146,501 1.326 OTHERS

KENNETH T. GATCHALIAN 30,000,100 0 30,000,100 1.200 FILIPINO

REXLON T. GATCHALIAN 30,000,000 0 30,000,000 1.200 FILIPINO

WESLIE T. GATCHALIAN 30,000,000 0 30,000,000 1.200 FILIPINO

FORUM HOLDINGS CORPORATION 20,626,000 0 20,626,000 0.825 FILIPINO

PRIMARY STRUCTURES CORPORATION 16,212,500 0 16,212,500 0.649 FILIPINO

PACIFIC REHOUSE CORPORATION 15,598,900 0 15,598,900 0.624 FILIPINO

REXLON GATCHALIAN 14,740,000 0 14,740,000 0.590 FILIPINO

METRO ALLIANCE HOLDINGS & EQUITIES, INC. 14,370,000 0 14,370,000 0.575 FILIPINO

MIZPAH HOLDINGS, INC. 10,489,200 0 10,489,200 0.420 FILIPINO

ELVIRA A. TING 10,000,009 0 10,000,009 0.400 FILIPINO

CATALINA ROXAS MELENDRES 6,246,000 0 6,246,000 0.250 FILIPINO

MANUEL H. OSMENA &/0R MANUEL L. OSMENA II 1,400,000 0 1,400,000 0.056 FILIPINO

ROLANDO M. LIM 1,142,500 0 1,142,500 0.046 FILIPINO

FELIPE A CRUZ JR. 1,100,000 0 1,100,000 0.044 FILIPINO

MARIA CONCEPCION CRUZ 876,000 0 876,000 0.035 FILIPINO

FREYSSINET PHILIPPINES, INC. 770,000 0 770,000 0.031 FILIPINO

BENSON COYUCO 605,000 0 605,000 0.024 FILIPINO

LUCENA B. ENRIQUEZ 552,000 0 552,000 0.022 FILIPINO

EMILY LIM 500,000 0 500,000 0.020 FILIPINO

DEE HUA T. GATCHALIAN 350,000 0 350,000 0.014 FILIPINO

MARVIN J. GIROUARD 330,000 0 330,000 0.013 FILIPINO

ARTHUR H. OSMENA &/0R JANE Y. OSMENA 330,000 0 330,000 0.013 FILIPINO

JOSE YAP &/0R CONCHITA YAP 330,000 0 330,000 0.013 FILIPINO

DAVID LAO OSMENA 314,600 0 314,600 0.013 FILIPINO

ANA L. GO 300,000 0 300,000 0.012 FILIPINO

SEGUNDO SEANGIO &/0R VIRGINIA SEANGIO 297,000 0 297,000 0.012 FILIPINO

CHARTERED COMMODITIES CORPORATION 294,999 0 294,999 0.012 FILIPINO

DOMINGO C GO 275,000 0 275,000 0.011 FILIPINO

DAVID LAO OSMENA 275,000 0 275,000 0.011 FILIPINO

GARY GO DYCHIAO 200,000 0 200,000 0.008 FILIPINO

MERIDIAN SEC., INC. A/C# 844 200,000 0 200,000 0.008 FILIPINO

CRISTINO NAGUIAT, JR. 181,500 0 181,500 0.007 FILIPINO

WILLIE TIO 159,500 0 159,500 0.006 FILIPINO

BETO Y. LIM 150,000 0 150,000 0.006 FILIPINO



)PIERCE INTERLINK SECURITIES, INC. ^ 150,000 0 150,000 0.006 FILIPINO

AURORA V. SAN JOSE 143,000 0 143,000 0.006 FILIPINO

YAN TO A. CHUA 132,000 0 132,000 0.005 FILIPINO

CELY S. LIM 112,200 0 112,200 0.004 FILIPINO

DEWEY CHOACHUY, JR. 111,300 0 111,300 0.004 FILIPINO

WILSON CHUA &/0R BECKY QUE CHUA 110,000 0 110,000 0.004 FILIPINO

WANG YU HUEI 110,000 0 110,000 0.004 OTHERS

KENSTAR INDUSTRIAL CORPORATION 110,000 0 110,000 0.004 FILIPINO

JOHN CRHISTOPHER D. WEIGEL 110,000 0 110,000 0.004 FILIPINO

WATERFRONT NOMINEES SDN BHD A/C#6 107,800 0 107,800 0.004 OTHERS

CATHAY SEC. CO., INC. A/C# 1030 100,000 0 100,000 0.004 FILIPINO

CARRIE LIM 100,000 0 100,000 0.004 FILIPINO

MANUEL H. OSMENA i/OR GRELINA L. OSMENA 100,000 0 100,000 0.004 FILIPINO

PACIFIC CONCORDE CORPORATION 100,000 0 100,000 0.004 FILIPINO

PACIFIC IMAGES, INC. 100,000 0 100,000 0.004 FILIPINO

HANSON G. SO &/0R LARCY MARICHI Y. SO 100,000 0 100,000 0.004 FILIPINO

CHONG PENG YNG 100,000 0 100,000 0.004 OTHERS

ALVIN TAN UNJO 88,000 0 88,000 0.004 FILIPINO

TERESITA GO &/0R SATURNINA GO 87,000 0 87,000 0.003 FILIPINO

GEORGE U. YOUNG, JR. 82,500 0 82,500 0.003 FILIPINO

ROLANDO D. DE LEON 66,000 0 66,000 0.003 FILIPINO

LIPPO SECURITIES, INC. 56,500 0 56,500 0.002 FILIPINO

PRIMITIVO C. CAL 55,000 0 55,000 0.002 FILIPINO

VICKY L. CHAN 55,000 0 55,000 0.002 FILIPINO

MA. TERESA P. CRUZ 55,000 0 55,000 0.002 FILIPINO

RENATO C. GENDRANO S/OR GENDRANO BERNADETTE 55,000 0 55,000 0.002 FILIPINO

L.M. GARCIA & ASS., INC. A/Cff 160 55,000 0 55,000 0.002 FILIPINO

LUISA CO LI 55,000 0 55,000 0.002 FILIPINO

KIRBY YU LIM 55,000 0 55,000 0.002 FILIPINO

LYDIA J. SY 55,000 0 55,000 0.002 FILIPINO

EDILBERTO &/0R ROSITA TANYU &/0R WELLINGTON HO VELASCO 55,000 0 55,000 0.002 FILIPINO

LIM TAY 55,000 0 55,000 0.002 FILIPINO

FRUTO M. TEODORICO, JR. 55,000 0 55,000 0.002 FILIPINO

LEONG JEE VAN 55,000 0 55,000 0.002 OTHERS

UY TIAK ENG 50,000 0 50,000 0.002 FILIPINO

SANDRA E. PASCUAL 50,000 0 50,000 0.002 FILIPINO

FRANCISCO C. SAN DIEGO 50,000 0 50,000 0.002 FILIPINO

ROBERTO L. UY 50,000 0 50,000 0.002 FILIPINO

RAMESES VICTORIUS G. VILLAGONZALO 50,000 0 50,000 0.002 FILIPINO

NEIL JOHN A. YU 50,000 0 50,000 0.002 FILIPINO

EBC SECURITIES CORPORATION 48,400 0 48,400 0.002 FILIPINO

TAN DAISY TIENG 46,500 0 46,500 0.002 FILIPINO

EAST ASIA OIL & MINING COMPANY, INC. 40,000 0 40,000 0.002 FILIPINO

OCBC SECURITIES PHILS., INC. 40,000 0 40,000 0.002 OTHERS

JAY JACOBS 39,600 0 39,600 0.002 FILIPINO

ROBERT KLING 39,600 0 39,600 0.002 FILIPINO

ADRIAN LONG 39,600 0 39,600 0.002 FILIPINO

GLADYS MAY L. OSMENA 39,600 0 39,600 0.002 FILIPINO

MANILYNN L. OSMENA 39,600 0 39,600 0.002 FILIPINO

MEGHANN GAIL L. OSMENA 39,600 0 39,600 0.002 FILIPINO

MANUEL L. OSMENA, II 39,600 0 39,600 0.002 FILIPINO

STEVE WOODWARD 39,600 0 39,600 0.002 FILIPINO

LUZ YAMANE 38,500 0 38,500 0.002 FILIPINO

LILY S. HO 36,300 0 36,300 0.001 FILIPINO
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) )ORION-SQUIRE CAPITAL, INC. - 0267 ^ 200 0 200 0.000 FILIPINO

ROSE LUZELLE PAPA 200 0 200 0.000 FILIPINO

NORA ROSS 200 0 200 0.000 FILIPINO

MA. THERESA L. ARGUELLES 110 0 110 0.000 FILIPINO

SERGIO R. ORTIZ-LUIS JR. 110 0 110 0.000 FILIPINO

ARTHUR R. PONSARAN 110 0 110 0.000 FILIPINO

CARLOS BENEDICT K. RIVILLA IV 110 0 110 0.000 FILIPINO

TOMAS F. TUASON IV 110 0 110 0.000 FILIPINO

RIZA C. VILLEGAS 110 0 110 0.000 FILIPINO

RODOLFO L. CRUZ 100 0 100 0.000 FILIPINO

IMELDA GAPASIN 100 0 100 0.000 FILIPINO

RUBEN MEDRANO 100 0 100 0.000 FILIPINO

LAMBERTO B. MERCADO, JR. 100 0 100 0.000 FILIPINO

DONATO ALMEDA 1 0 1 0.000 FILIPINO

ARSENIO BARTOLOME III 1 0 1 0.000 FILIPINO

ERIC FILAMOR 1 0 1 0.000 FILIPINO

PATRICK C. GREGORIO 1 0 1 0.000 FILIPINO

ARTHUR LOPEZ 1 0 1 0.000 FILIPINO

MACARIO TE 1 0 1 0.000 FILIPINO

GRAND TOTAL (438) 2.498.991.753 0 2.498.991.753 100.000

THIS IS A COMPUTER GENERATED REPORT AND IF ISSUED WITHOUT ALTERATION, DOES NOT REQUIRE ANY SIGNATURE.
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WATERFRONT
phiupi^esTB^

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The managemeni of Waterfront Philippines Inc. is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation ofthe consolidated financial statements including the schedules attached therein, for
the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, in accordance with the prescribed financial
reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessar>' to enable the preparation of financial statements that are "free from material
misstatemeni, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
abilit)' to continue as agoing concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, orhas no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board ofDirectors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reponing process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the schedules
attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders or members.

R.G. Manabat &Co., appointed by the stockholders, has audited the financial statements of the
company in accordance_with the Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its report to the
stockholders or members, has e.\pressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upon
completion ofsuch audit. '

ed underoath by the followiiu

lafo B. Magadia
Chairman ofthe Board

fecilla O.jTormno
>rporate Finance Director

ctli T. Gathalian

1 reasur

' y^osi-: T
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WATERFRONT
PHILIPPINES, INC.

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY

FOR ANNUAL INCOME TAX RETURN

The Management of Waterfront Philippines, Inc. is responsible for all information and
representations contained in the Annual Income Tax Return for the year ended December 31,
2017. Management is likewise responsible for all information and representations contained in
the financial statements accompanying the Annual Income Tax Return covering the same
reporting period. Furthermore, the Management is responsible for all information and
representations contained in all theother tax returns filed for the reporting period, including, but
not limited, to the value added tax and/or percentage tax returns, withholding tax returns,
documentary stamp tax returns,and any and all other tax returns.

In this regard, the Management affirms that the attached audited financial statements for the year
ended December 31,2017 and the accompanying Annual Income Tax Return are in accordance
with the books and records ofWaterfront Philippines, Inc., complete and correct in all material
respects. Management likewise affirms that:

(a)

(b)

(c)

the Annual Income Tax Return has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of
the National Internal Revenue Code, as amended, and pertinent ta.x regulations and other
issuances of the Department of Finance and the Bureau of Internal Revenue;
any disparity of figures in the submitted reports arising from the preparation of financial
statements pursuant to financial accounting standards Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards and the preparation of the income tax return pursuant to tax accounting rules
has been reported as reconciling items and maintained in the company's books and
records in accordance with the requirements of Revenue Regulations No. 8-2007 and
other relevant issuances;
Waterfront Philippines, Inc. has filed all applicable tax returns, reports and statements
required to be filed under Philippine tax laws for the reporting period, and all taxes and
other impositions shown thereon to be due and payable have been paid tor the reporting
period, e.xcept those contested in good faith.

4»ned under oath by the following:

IJ'enato B. Magac
iliairman of the Board

foriano

jrporale Ifinance Director
Vecilla O.

Signed this th M-PR 2 4 2018"^
SUBSCRIBED sk'in rn t^EFQRP
HIS CEBa CITY

t5oc. Wo.

Book No. fO
Series of

/ Kenneth T. Gatchalian

resiaent

Elvira

Treasurer
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES)
)S.S

TREASURER'S CERTIFICATION

1,ELVIRA A TING» of legal age, Filipinoand with officeaddressat the
The 35/F One Corporate Center Julia Vargas Comer Meralco Avenue Ortigas Center,
Pasig Cityafterbeing swom inaccordance with law, hereby certify that:

1. I am the Treasurerof Waterfront Philippines, Inc. (the "Company'*), a
corporation duly organized and existing under and byvirtue of the laws of the
Republic of thePhilippines under SEC Certificate of Registration No.AS094-
8678 with principal office address at No. 1 Waterfront Drive Lahug, Cebu
City.

2. I am executing this certification to attest to the truth of the foregoing and in
compliance with the reportorial requirements of the SEC.

WITNESS MY HAND on this

1^D.^^ND SWORN to before me on this day of

2018 at

ATI

Treasurer

it./

AfHant exhibited to me her Community Tax Certificate No.
23493219 issued on January 10,2018.
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R.G. Manabat & Co.

The KPMG Center, 9/F
6787 Ayala Avenue, Makati City
Philippines 1226
Telephone +63 (2) 885 7000
Fax +63(2)894 1985
internet www.kpmg.com.ph
Email ph-inquiry@kpmg.com.ph

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Waterfront Philippines, incorporated and Subsidiaries
No. 1 Waterfront Drive
Off Salinas Drive, Lahug
Cebu City, Cebu

Opinton

We have audited the consolidatedfinancial statements ofWaterfront Philippines,
Incorporated and Subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise theconsolidated statements
of financial position as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, and theconsolidated
statements of profit orloss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows for each of thethree years in theperiod ended December 31,2017, and
notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statemente present feiiiy, in all
material respects, theconsolidated financial position ofthe Group as at
December 31,2017 and 2016, and its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows foreadi ofthe three years inthe periodended
December 31,2017, in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted ouraudit inaccordancewith Philippine Standardson Auditing (PSAs).
Our responsibilities under those standards arefurther described in the Auditors'
Raspon^biliUes for Via Audit oftha Consoiidatad Financial Stataman^ section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code ofEthics) together with theethical
requirements that arerelevant toour audit ofthe consolidated financial statements in the
Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements andtheCode ofEthics. We believe thattheaudit evidence wehave
obtained is suffident and appropriate to provide a basis forour opinion.

PRC-6QARagUnflon No.OOOS, vKUisnl Mmti 19,2ea0
SEC Acoatftiflaa No. oao«-n(4. Onwp A, oaa Nancm&afIS. 2020
ICAcoadSaSan Na l>.2S17X)t04l,nH unOAavat 2S, 2020

R.GMtnibat&Co â Phillppina pannenhip anda msniber liini d 8mKPMG nsNMtk «(independsnl bsp •SotadadedatmlAodaeta, CitaeaiyA,Mfld eor3.i(aarauda padad
tiwffltoffbmt aflBaM wiSiKPMG InternationalCaopaittiva fWMG Intemalionan. a Saiss anflty. (2017toJOtp)



Key Audit Matter
Key audit matter is a matter that, in our professional judgment, was of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. This matter
was addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and informing our opinion thereon, and we do not providea separate opinion on
this matter.

Revenue recognition
(P2.10 billion, see consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and Notes 22 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements)

The n'sk

Market expectations and profit based tai^ets may place pressure on
management to distort revenue recognition. Although the Group's revenue
transactions are noncomplex and nosignificant judgement is applied overthe
amount recorded, we however considered the potential formanagement override
to achieve revenue targets.

Our response
As part ofour audit procedures, weevaluated and tested theinternal controls
over the completeness, existence and accuracy ofrevenue recognized in the
consolidated financial statements. We performed analytical procedures, cutoff
testing toensure whether transactions occurring near yearend were recorded in
theproper period and journal entries testing around revenue to identify any
unusual or irregular items posted. We assessedwhether theGroup's revenue
recognition policies are inaccordance with PFRS.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included inthe Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) Form 20-IS
(Definitive Inforrtiation Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report for the year
ended December 31,2017, but does not include theconsolidated financial statements
and our auditors' report thereon. The SEC Form 20-IS (Definitive Information
Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report for the year ended December 31,2017

•areexpected tobemade available tousafter the date of this auditors' report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information andwe will not express any form ofassurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with ouraudit ofthe consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the otherinformation identified abovewhenitbecomesavailatsle and, indoing
so, consider whether theother information ismaterially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statementsor our knowledge obtained inthe audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities ofManagement and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation oftheconsolidated
financial statements in accordance with PFRS, and for such intemal control as
management determines is necessary toenable the preparation ofconsolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.



In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

Auditors'Responsibilitiesfor the Auditof the Consolidated FinancialStatements

Ourobjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance aboutwhetherthe consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or emor, and to issue an auditors' reportthat includesour opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level ofassurance, but is nota guaranteethat an audit conducted in
accordancewith PSAswill always detect a material misstatement when itexists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably beexpected to influence theeconomic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part ofanaudit in accordance with PSAs, weexercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess therisks of material misstatement of theconsolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud orerror, design and perform audit procedures
responsive tothose risks, and obtain audit evidence that issufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

• Obtain an understanding ofinternal control relevant totheaudit in order todesign
audit procedures that areappropriate in the circumstances, but not for thepurpose
of expressing anopinion on the effectiveness of theGroup's internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude ontheappropriateness ofmanagement's useofthegoing concern basis
ofaccounting and, based ontheaudit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related toevents orconditions that may castsignificant doubt on
theGroup's ability tocontinue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report tothe
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, ifsuch disclosures
are inadequate, to modify ouropinion. Our conclusions are basedon the audit
evidence obtained upto the date ofourauditors' report. However, future events or
conditions maycause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content ofthe consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, andwhether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions andevents in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.



• Obtain sufficient appropriate auditevidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance ofthe group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the plannedscope and timing of the audit and significant auditfindings, including any
significant deficiencies ininternal control that we identify during ouraudit.

Wealso provide thosecharged with govemance with a statement thatwe havecomplied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them
all relationships and othermatters that may reasonably be thoughtto bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance inthe auditofthe consolidated financial
statements ofthe current period and are therefore the key auditmatters. We describe
those matters inourauditors' report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,we determinethat a matter
should not be communicated inour reportbecause the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits ofsuch
communication.
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WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES. INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31

Note 2017 2016

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 4. 21 P345,929,975 P204,295.153
Receivables - net 5, 21 228,360,959 235.447,147

Notes receivable 8, 21 195,007,214 -

Inventories 6 33,918,796 28,187,104

Due from related parties - current portion 8. 21 1,602,120,064 1,537,900.077

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 7, 21 97.563,340 90,402,965

Total Current Assets 2,502,900,348 2,096.232,446

Noncurrent Assets

Available-for-sale investment 8, 21 15,954,640 16.821,740

Due from related parties - noncurrent portion 8, 21 347,927,681 340,197.163

Property and equipment - net 9 6,390,497,964 6,585,028.850

Deferred tax assets 19 64,994,497 41,086,003

Other noncurrent assets 10,21 30,534,463 27,978,112

Total Noncurrent Assets 6,849,909,245 7,011,111,868

P9,352,809,593 P9,107,344,314

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities
PI.358,365.891Accounts payable and accrued expenses 11, 21 PI ,468,215,052

Loan payable 13, 21 375,000,000 375.000,000

Income tax payable 70,613,726 69,555,622

Other current liabilities 12, 21 15,377,744 25,644.184

Total Current Liabilities 1,929,206,522 1.828,565.697

Noncurrent Liabilities
1.339,315.801Deferred tax liabilities 19 1,275,069,230

Retirement benefits liability 18 124,481,905 98,517,865

Other noncurrent liabilities 14, 21 6.537,329 6,577,959

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 1,406,088,464 1,444,411,625

3,335,294,986 3.272.977,322

Forward

APR ?. ? 20'®
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Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the
Parent Company

Capital stock
Additional paid-in capital
Revaluation surplus on property and equipment
Retirement benefits reserve

Foreign currency translation adjustment
Fair value reserve

December 31

Note 2017

16 P2,498,991,753
706,364,357

9 2,211,108,991
83,695,458
52,542,000

2,063,223

2016

P2,498,991,753
706,364,357

2,349,524,496
102,082,569
41,686,179

2,683,245

Total Equity Attributable to Equity
Holders of the Parent Company 5,150,133,268 4,940,346,932

Noncontrolling Interests 16 867.381.339 894.020.060

Total Equity 6,017,514,607 5,834,366,992

P9,352,809,593 P9,107,344,314

See Notes to the Consoffdated Financial Statements.



WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES. INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

Note 2017 2016 2015

REVENUES
Rooms P752,685,023 P662,116,109 P606.473,995
Rent and related income 22,23 675,827,680 805,703,911 827,620,396
Food and beverage 629,397,919 595,040,745 585.764,307
Others 47.021.801 72.484.476 81.049.092

2,104,932,423 2,135,345,241 2,100,907,790

COSTS AND EXPENSES
OTHER THAN INTEREST,
DEPRECIATION AND
AMORTIZATION,
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES AND
INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Energy costs 339,742,550 330,679,391 333,238,825
Personnel costs 18 326,883,250 336,524,229 354,949,699
Food and beverage 6 222,565,682 208,718,438 173,788,840
Repairs and maintenance 6 48,696.483 48,610,121 75,627,236
Rooms 30,336,459 37,016,392 48,926,506
Rent 23 37,408,179 47,932,759 66,778,509
Others 17 415,150,260 352.897.807 351.064,421

1,420,782,863 1,362.379,137 1,404,374,036

INCOME BEFORE INTEREST,
DEPRECIATION AND
AMORTIZATION,IMPAIRMENT
LOSSES AND INCOME TAX
EXPENSE

DEPRECIATION AND
AMORTIZATION, INTEREST
AND IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

Depredation and amortization
Interest expense
Foreign exchange losses - net
Impaimient losses, bad debts

written off and provisions
Interest income

9

13,22

5

4.8

684.149.560 772.966.104 696.533.754

355,307,819
60,222,509
10,365,853

632,751
(42,276,067)

255,392.265
80,144,299
12,007,679

3,442,842
(39,859,178)

333,683,900
136,933,256

18,318,204

2,587,635
(33,711,906)

« B-WfW WW

384,967,631 .

VW.WWW, .ww,

301,577,757 461,01.8,951

INCOME BEFORE
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 299,181,929 471,388,347 235,514,803

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 19 100.448.728 152.503.361 76.807.708
NET INCOME 198,733,201 318,884.986 158,707,095
Forwaid



Years Ended December 31

Note 2017 2016 2015

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

(LOSS) INCOME

Items that will never be
reclasslfled to profit or loss

Appraisal increase on property
and equipment

Actuarial (losses) gains on
defined benefit plan

Deferred tax effect

9

18

19

P -

(36,634,724)
10.960.417

P913,101,845

8.322,675
(276.427.356)

P -

19,796,982
(5.939.095)

(25,574,307) 644,997.164 13,857,887

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss

Foreign currency translation
differences for foreign operations

Net change in fair value of
available-for-sale investment 8.21

10,855,821

(867.100)

9,243,210

(1.387.360)

8,272,530

(4.769,050)

9,988,721 7,855,850 3,503,480

(15,585,586) 652,853,014 17,361,367

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME P183,147,615 P971,738,000 PI 76,068,462

Net Income attributable to:

Equity holders of the Parent
Company

Noncontrolling interests 16

P217,937,648
(19.204.447)

P287,392.497
31.492,489

P127,211,459
31.495.636

PI98,733,201 P318,884,986 P158,707,095

Total comprehensive income
attributable to:

Equity holders of the Parent
Company

Noncontrolling interests 16

P209,786,336
(26.638.721)

P854,154,052
117.583.948

P144,747,910
31.320,552

P183,147,615 P971,738,000 PI 76,068,462

EARNINGS PER SHARE -

Basic and Diluted 20 P0.087 P0.115 P0.051

See Notes to the Const^kS^lsd Finendal Ststoments.
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WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year Ended December 31

Eauity Attributable to Equity Holdera of the Parent Company

Capital
Stock

fNote 16)

Additional
Pald-tn
Canltal

Revaluation
Surplus on

Property and
Eiiulpmant

Retirement
Benefits
Reserve

Foreign
Currency

Trenslabon
Adiustment

Fair Value
Reserve Deficit Total

Non-

controlling
Interests
fNote 16)

Total
Eaultv

As at Januaiv 1.2017 P2,498.891.763 P706.384JS7 P2^^j498 P102.082.568 P41.6e8.178 P2.883.245 fP760.885.687) P4.940.348.932 P884.020.080 P5.834.386.882

Total Comprehanslve Incoma for the Year -
Net Income for the year
Other comorehenetve income - net of tax effect

- - -

f16.387.111) 10.855.821 1620.022)

217,837,648 217,837,648
f8.151.312)

(19,204,447)
17.434.274)

198,733,201
115.585.588)

♦ - - (18,387,111) 10,855,821 (820,022) 217,937,648 209,788,338 (26,638,721) 183,147,815

Transfer of revaluation surplus absortred through
deoredafion for the veer - net of tax effect f138.415.58S) 138.415.505

As at December 31,2017 P2.iW8.991,753 P708,364,357 P2,211,108,981 P83,89S,458 P52,542,000 P2,083,223 (P404,632,514) P5,150,133,268 P887.381,339 P6,017,514,607

See to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES. INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EOUITY

Year Ended December 31

Eouitv Attfibutabla to Eouitv Haiders of the Parent Company

Capita!
Stock

fNote 161
AddMonal

Paid-in Cadtal

Revaluation
Surplus on

Prop^and
Eautoment

Reffrement
Benefits
Reserve

Forelon
Currency

Transtafion
Adiustment

Fair Value
Reserve Deficit Total

Non-
controlting

interests
(Note 16)

Total
Eaultv

As atJanuaiv 1.2016 P2.498.601.763 P708.364.357 91.841.118.443 9101.280.259 932.442.689 93.458.005 (91.097.480.008) 94.088.102.880 9776.436.112 94.882.626.802

Total C(»nprehensiv8 Incoms for the Year
Net Incoms for fta year
Other comorehensiva income - net of lax e^ct

- •

557.282.121 1.008.984 9.243.210 /772.760)

287,302,497 287,302,407
568.781.555

31,402,489
88.091.459

318,884,088
652.853.014

- - 557,282,121 1,008,684 0,243,210 (772,760) 287,302,497 854,154,052 117,583,046 071,736,000

Transfer of revaluation surplus absortrad througti
dapredation for the year-nat of tax effect .

Channe in reSrement benaiits reserve
- •

(48,876,068)
(208.674)

• -
48,676,088

206.674
- - -

As at Deo^ber 31,2016 92,498,991,753 9706,384,357 92,340,524,408 9102,082,580 941,698,170 92,683,245 (9760,985,687) 94,040,348,932 9894,020,060 95,834,388,002

See Notes to the ConsoOaeled Financial Statanents.
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WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year Ended December 31

Eaultv Attrfbutalile to Eoulty Holders of the Parent Company

Capital
Stock

fNote 16)

AdttiSonal

Patd-ln Cattital

Revaluation
Su^uson

Property and
Eoulpment

Retirement
Benehts
Reserve

Fon^n
Currency

Translation
Adiustmant

Fair Value
Resanre Deficit Total

Non>
controlling

Interests
(Note 18)

Total

Eouitv

As atJanuaiv 1.2016 P2.4e8.e81.753 P708.384.3S7 PI .035.865.721 P8e.2S0.26e P24.170.43e P8.222.0S4 fPI .310.210.843) P3.e41.444.e70 P74S.116.680 P4.8B8.680.S30

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year
Net Income for the year
Other comnrehenslve income • net of tax effect

- - -

12.020.070 8.272.630 f2.786.048)
127.211,456 127,211,450

17.638.451
31,405,838

(176.084)
168,707.006

17.381.387

- - - 12.026.070 8.272.530 (2.788.040) 127,211,450 144,747.010 31,320,652 178,088,482

Transfer of revaluation surplus atrsoitied through
deoreciafion for the year - net of tax effect fe4.547.278) 04.547.278

As at December 31,2016 P2,4e8.e81.763 P708.384.357 P1.841.118.443 P101.280.2Se P32.442,e88 P3.4S8.00S (P1.007.480.008) P4.G88.102.880 P778.438.112 P4.882.828.002

See Notes to the ConsoSdated Flnaneta! Statements.



WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES. INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

Note 2017 2016 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM

OPERATING ACTIVmES

Income before Income tax
expense P299,181,929 P471,388,347 P235,514,803

Adjustments for
333,683,900Depreciation and amortization 9 355,307,819 255,392,265

Interest expense 13,22 60,222,509 80,144,299 136,933,256

Retirement benefits cost 18 21,196,913 20,814,752 40,342,055
Unrealized foreign exchange

loss - net 10,855,821 9,243,210 8,272,530
Impairment losses 5 632,751 3,442,842 2,587,635
Provisions 25 - - (45,575,012)
Gain on disposal of property

and equipment - (947,110) -

Interest Income 4,8 (42,276,067) (39.859.178) (33,711,906)

705,121,675 799,619,427 678,047,261

Changes In:
Receivables 6,453,437 (25,188,037) (16.328,580)
Inventories (5,731,692) 1,111,077 (1,482,280)
Prepaid expenses and other

(26,858,888)current assets (7,160,375) (13,420,759)
Accounts payable and

accrued expenses 49,626,652 (14,410,832) 64,127,114
Other current liabilities (10,266,440) (523,576,556) 468,612,863

738,043,257 224,134,320 1,166,117,490
Interest received 4 1,902,783 505,729 3,456,946
Retirement benefits paid 18 (10,317,597) (9,606,808) (8,945,198)
Retirement contributions paid 18 (21,450,000) (21,050,000) (11,250,000)
Income taxes paid (176,585,272) (85,130,822) (50,947,041)
Interest paid - (63.195,329) (96,477,022)

Net cash provided by operating
activities 531,593,171 45,657,090 1,001,955,175

CASH FLOWS FROM

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Changes In:

Due from related parties (31,577,221) 99,298,558 30,892,282
Other noncurrent assets (2,556,351) 12,710,611 26,002,418

Additions to property and
equipment 9 (160,776,933) (9,668,747) (25,043,772>

Notes receivable 8 (195,007,214) - -

Proceeds from sale of property
and equipment - 8.928.615 -

Net cash (used In) provided by
Investing activities (389,917,719) 111,269,037 31,850,928

Forwatd



Years Ended December 31

Note 2017 2016 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Changes in:
Loans payable
Other noncurrent liabilities

P -
(40.630)

(PI 21.030,050) (P351.776,392)
(4.769.144) (648.551.702)

Cash used In financing
activities (40,830) (125.799.194) (1.000,328.094)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 141,634,822 31,126,933 33.478.009

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 204.295.153 173.168,220 139.690.211

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 4 P345,929,975 P204.295.153 P173.168.220

See Atotes to too ConsofiidSated Hnandel S^ments.



WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES. INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Reporting Entity

Waterfront Philippines, Incorporated (the Parent Company) was incorporated and
registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on
September 23. 1994 as an investment holding company for hotel, leisure, and
tourism businesses. The Parent Company is listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange
(PSE) and is46%-owned by TheWellex Group, Inc. (TWGI), an entity registered and
domiciled in the Philippines.

The details of the equity interest of the Parent Company in its subsidiaries as at
December 31,2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Percentage of Ownership
Direct indirect

Hotels and Resorts

Waterfront Cebu City Casino Hotel, Incorporated
(WCCCHI)

Waterfront Mactan Casino Hotel, Incorporated
(WMCHI)

Davao Insular Hotel Company, Inc. (DIHCI)
Aceslte (Phils.) HotelCorporation (APHC)
Grand llocandia Resort and Development, Inc. (GIRDI)

100

100

98
56

54

-

Real Estate
CIMARealty Phil., Inc. - 56

Fitness Gym
Waterfront Wellness Group, Inc. (WWGI) 100 -

international Marketing and Promotion of Casinos
Mayo Bonanza, Inc. (MBI)
W^erfront Promotion Ltd. (WPL)
Club Waterfront Intemational Limited (CWIL)

100
100

100

Pastries Manufacturing
Waterfront Food Concepts Inc. (WFC) 100 -

Hotel Management and Operation
Waterfront Entertainment Corporation (WEC)
Waterfront Hotel Management Corporation (WHMC)

100

100

-

All of the above subsidiaries were incorporated and registered in the Philippines
except for WPL and its subsidiary, CWIL, which were registered in the Cayman
Islands.

Management decided to temporarily cease the operations of MBI, WHMC, WPL,
CWIL and GIRDI In 2016, 2014, 2003, 2001 and 2000, respectively, due to
unfavorable economic conditions.



On March 18, 2018, a fire broke out in APHC's hotel property that damaged the
lower floors of the main building as well as the Podium building occupied by the
casino area and restaurants in the APHC's hotel property resulting to the suspension
of its hotel operations. Based on the Rre Certification issued by the Bureau of Fire
Protection - National Headquarters on April 23, 2018, the cause of the subject fire
has been declared and classified as "accidental In nature." APHC is in the process of
preparing the requirements for its insurance claims, the proceeds of which shall be
used to restore APHC's hotel for its continued operation.

The registered office ofthe Parent Company is at No. 1 Waterfront Drive, Off Salinas
Drive, Lahug, Cebu City, Cebu.

2. Basis of Preparation

Basis of Accountino

The consolidated financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries,
collectively herein referred to as the Group, have been prepat^ in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). They were approved and
authorized for issue by the Parent Company's Board of Directors (BOD) on
April 25,2018.

Details of the Group's accounting policies are included in Note27.

Basis of Measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis
of accounting, except for the following items which are measured on an altemative
basis at each reporting date:

Items Measurement Basis
Land, landimprovements, hotel buildings Revalued amount less accumulated

and improvements, fumlture, fixtures depreciation and impairment losses
and equipment, and transportation

Available-fbr-sale (AFS) investment Fair value
Retirement benefitis liability Present value of thedefined benefits

obligation (DBO) less fair value of
plan assets (FVPA)

Functional and Presentation Currencv

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippinepeso, which is the
Group's functional currency except for WPL and CWIL, the functional currency of
which is the United States (U.S.) dollar. All financial Information presented in
Philippine peso has been rounded offto the nearest peso, unlessothenMse stated.

3. Use of Judgments and Estimates

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect tiie application of the Group's
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assete, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to estimates are recognized prospectively.

-2



Judgments

Information about Judgments made tn applying accounting policies that have the
most significant effect in the amounts recognized In the consolidated financial
statements is as follows;

Transactions with PhiiippineAmusement and Gaming Corporation (PAGCOR)
The Group has significant transactions with PAGCOR. Under Presidential Decree
(PD) No. 1869, othenAflse known as the PAGCOR Charter, PAGCOR Is exempted
from payment of any form of taxes other than the 5% franchise tax Imposed on the
gross revenue or earnings derived by PAGCOR from its operations under the
franchise. The amended Revenue Regulations (RR) No. 16-2005 which became
effective in 2006, however, provides that gross receipts of PAGCOR shall be subject
to the 12% value-added tax (VAT). In February 2007, the Philippine Congress
amended PD No. 1869 to extend the franchise term of PAGCOR for another 25
years but did not include any revocation of PAGCOR's tax exemption privileges as
previously provided for in PD No. 1869. In accounting for the Group's transactions
with PAGCOR, the Group's management and its legal counsel have made a
judgment that the amended PD No. 1869 prevails over the amended RR No. 16-
2005 (see Note 22).

Operating Lease Commitments- Group as Lessor
The Group has leased out its commercial spaces to third parties. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
these commercial spaces and thus, accounts for the contracts as operating leases
(see Note 23).

Distinguishing investment Properties and Owner-occupied Properties
TheGroup detentiines whether a property qualifies as an Investment property. In
making itsjudgment, the Group considers whether the property generates cash flows
largely independent ofthe otherassets held byan entity. Owner-occupied properties
generate cash flows that are attributable not only to the properties but also to ^e
other assets used in the delivery of senrice.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation and another portion that is held for use In the delivery ofservices or for
administrative purposes. If these portions cannot t}e sold separately, ttie property is
accounted foras investment properly only ifan insignificant portion is held for use in
the delivery of services or for administrative purposes. Judgment is applied in
determining whether anciiiary services are so significant that a property does not
quaitfy as Investment property. The Group has classified its properties as owner-
occupied (see Note 23).

Resdution of Tax Case Involving TaxAssessment from the Treasurerof die City of
Manila

in consultation with legal counsels, the Group management believes that the
compromise agreementexecuted on December 8,2015 between APHC and the City

- of Manila to resolve the tax deficiency assessment filed by the latter against APHC
was an adjusting event as at December 31, 2015 as the legal counsels and
management have no reasons to believe that the City Council of Manila will not ratity
the compromise agreement Accordingly, APHC recognized the gain on the reversal
of the provision it previously setup for the case amounting to P39.73 million which
was presented as part of "Others" in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive Incomefor the year ended December 31,2015 (see Note 25).

-3



Provisions and Contingencies
The Group has received assessments from the Bureau of Intemal Revenue(BIR) for
deficiency taxes and is also a defendant in various legal cases which are still
pending resolutions. The Group's management and legal counsels have made a
judgment that the positions of the Group are sustainable and, accordingly, believe
that the Group does not have a present obligation (legalor constructive)with respect
to such assessments and claims (see Note 24).

Ciassifying Financial Instruments
The Group exercises judgmentin classifying a financial instrument, or its component
parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset a finandal liability, or an equity
instrument in accordance with the substance of^e contractual agreement and the
definition of a financial asset, financial liability or an equity instrument. The substance
of a financial instrument, rather than its legal form, governs its classification In the
consolidated statement of financial position.

ClassifyingReceivables fromRelated Parties
The Group exercises judgment in classifying the receivables from related parties as
under current assets or noncurrent assets based on the expected realization of the
receivables. The Group takes into account the credit rating and other financial
information about the related parties to assess their ability to settle the Group's
outstanding receivables. Related party receivables that are expected to be realized
within twelve months after the reporting period or within the Group's normal
operating cycleare consideredcurrentassets (see Note8).

Estimation Uncertainties

information about estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustmentwithin the next financial year is as follows:

Allowance forimpairment Losses on Receh/abies and Duefrom Re/afed Parties
The Group maintains an allowance for impairment losses on receivables, at a level
considered adequate to provide for potential uncollectible receivables. The level of
this allowance is evaluated by the Group on the basis of frictors that affect the
coilectability oftherelated accounts. These factors include, but are not limited to, the
length of the Group's relationship with its customers or debtor, their payment
behavior and known market factors. The Group reviews the age and status of
receivables, and identifies accounts that are to be provided with allowance on a
continuous basis. The arnount and timing of recorded expenses for any periodwould
differ ifthe Group made different judgments or utilized different estimates.

For due from related parties, the Group uses judgment, based on the available facts
and circumstances, including but not limited to, assessment of the related parties'
operating activities, business viability and overall capadty to pay, in providing an
allowance against the recorded receivable amount.

Further details on the allowance for impairment losses are disclosed in Notes 5
and 8.

Net Realizable Value (NRV) ofinventories
The Group carries its inventories at NRV whenever such becomes lower than cost
due to damage, physical deterioration, obsolescence, changes in price levels or
othercauses. E^mates of NRV are based onthe mostreliable evidence available at
the time the estimates are made of the amount the inventories are expected to be
realized. These estimates take into consideration fluctuation of prices or costs
directly relating to events occuning after the reporting date to the extent that such
events confirm conditions existing at the reporting date. The NRV is reviewed
periodically to reflect the accurate valuation in the financial records.

4-



The carrying value of the inventories are disciosed in Note 6.

Revaluation ofProperty and Equipment
The Group carries certain classes of property and equipment at fair value, with
changes in fair value being recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI). The
Group engaged independent valuation specialists to assess fair value. Fair value Is
determined with references to transactions involving properties of a similar nature,
location and condition.

The key assumptions used to determine the fair value of properties are provided in
Note 9.

Useful Lives ofProperty and Equipment
The Group estimates the useful lives ofproperty and equipment based on the period
over which the assets are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful
lives ofproperty and equipment are reviewed at each reporting date and are updated
ifexpectations differ from previous estimates dueto physical wearand tear,technical
or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the assets. In
addition, estimation of the useful lives of property and equipment is based on the
collective assessment of Industry practice, intemal technical evaluation and
experience with similar assets. It is possible, however, that future results of
operations could be materially affected by changes in estimates brought about by
changes in the factors mentioned above.

Thecarrying amounts ofproperty and equipment are disclosed inNote 9.

ImpalrmentofNonfinancialAssets
Impairment e)dsts when thecarrying value ofan asset orcashgenerating unit (CGU)
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is
based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm's length,
for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs of disposing of
the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow (DCF)
model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next years and do not
include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant
future investments that will enhance the performance of the assets of the CGU being
tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF
model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for
extrapolation purposes.

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, there is no indication of impairment on the
Group's prepaid expenses and other current assets, property and equipment and
other noncurrent assets.

Fair Value Estimation

If the financial instruments are not traded in an active market, the fair value is
determined using valuation techniques. Where valuation techniques are used to
determine fair values,- they are validated and periodically reviewed by qualified
personnel, independent of the area calibrated to ensure that outputs reflect actual
data and comparative market prices. To the extent practical, models use only
observable data, however areas such as credit risk (both own and counterparty),
volatilities and correlations require management to make estimates. Change In
assumptions about these factors could affect reported fair values of financial
instruments.
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ReHrement Benefit Cost

The cost of the defined benefit pension plan and the present value of the pension
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and
future pension increases. Due to the complexities involved In the valuation and its
long-term nature, a DBO is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. Ail
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. The discount rate
assumption is based on the Philippine Daily Exchange benchmark market yields on
government bonds considering average years of remaining working life of the
employees as the estimated term of the DBO.

Furtherdetails about pension obligations are provided in Note 18.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognized for consolidated financial statement and tax
differences to the extent that it is probablethat taxable profit will be available against
which these differences can be utilized. Significant management Judgment is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized,
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits, together with
future tax planning strategies.

Further details on deferred taxes are disclosed in Note 19.

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of:

Cash in banks

Short-term placements
Cash on hand

Note

21

21

2017

P214,768,039
128,090,117

3,071,819

2016

P159,803,886
26,407,387
18.083.880

P345,929,975 P204,295,153

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates.

Short-term placements eam interest at annual average of 0.13% to 2.88% in 2017
and 2016and have average maturities ranging fifom 30 to 35 days for bothyears.

Related interestincome recognized in profit or loss amounted to PI .90 million, P2.03
million and PI .98 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.



5. Receivables

This account consists of:

Note 2017 2016

Trade P237,612,791 P248,757,489
Advances to employees 3,751,079 6,852,387

Others 8,581,003 2,148,399

21 249,944,873 257,758,275
Less allowance for impairment losses on

trade receivables 21.583.914 22,311,128

21 P228,360,959 P235,447,147

Trade receivables are nonlnterest-bearing and are generally on a 30-day term.

Movements in the allowance for Impairment losses on trade receivables are as
follows:

2017 2016 2015

Beginning balance P22,311,128 P20,024,340 PI7,436,705
Impairment lossduring the year 632,751 3,442,842 2,587,635
Write-off during the year (1,359,965) (1,156,054)
Ending balance

6. Inventories

This account consists of:

P21,583,914 P22,311,128 P20,024,340

20162017

Food and beverage
Operating supplies
Engineering and maintenance supplies

PI 6,992,646
16,487,829

438.321

P16.196,062
10,624,757

1.366.285

P33,918,796 P28,187,104

The cost offood and beveragecharged to profit or loss amounted to P222.57 million,
P208.72 million and P173.79 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively, and is
presented as "Food and tjeverage" account in the consolidated statements of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

The Group recognized expenses foroperating supplies amounting to P27.54 million,
P28.82 million and P41.30 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively, and are
presented as "Supplies", which Is part of expenses under "Others" account in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
(see Note 17), while the expenses for engineering and maintenance supplies
amounting to P48.70 million, P48.61 million and P75.63 million In 2017, 2016 and
2015, respectively, are included under "Repairs and maintenance" acxeunt in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive inceme.



7. Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

This account consists of;

Note 2017 2016

Input VAT P40,313,479 P43,455,636

Prepaid taxes 27,000,775 20,769,412

Short-term investment 21 12,359,747 12,251,466

Advances to suppliers 11,316,104 8,311,836
Prepaid expenses 4,597,307 5,001,755

Others 1.975,928 612.860

P97,563,340 P90,402,965

8. Related Party Transactions

The Group'srelated party transactions inciude transactions with its key management
personnel (KMP) and related parties in the table below:

Relationship with the
Related Party Group
TWGI Ultimate Parent
Pacific Rehouse Corp. (PRC) Stockholder
Crisanta Realty Development Corp. (CROC) Stockholder
Philippine EstatesCorporation (PHES) Stockholder
Metro Alliance Holdings and Equities Corp. (MAHEC) Stockholder
Forum Holdings Corporation (FHC) Stockholder
East Asia Oil &Mining Company, Inc. (East Asia) Stockholder
Plastic City Industrial Corporation (PCIC) Under common control
Wellex Industries, Inc. (Wll) Under common control
Acesite Leisure Entertainment Corporation (ALEC) Subsidiary*

*M£C is an unconsoSdsiBd prs-ofsorsSng subskSs/y incotpofatsd in 2017 thst is iiranstBrial to the Group's
cmsoSdatedSnand^stotomeras as at DecentoerOI, 2017.



)

Significant Transactions with Related Parties

The Group's transactions with related parties consists of (Inthousands):

)

Amount of the Due from Related Parties Notes Advances to Dusto

Catsflorv/TransBcUon Year Note Transaction Current Noncurrent Receivable Sutraidlarles* Subsidiaries* Terms and Conditions

Uttlmste Parent

• TWGl

Advances, interest and
settlement

2017
2010

2015

8a
Ba

8a

P20,639
24,301
13,245

P882,189
881,550
945,471

P - P - P - P - Secured; interest'beailng; subject to repridng;
due In one year subject to renewal; net oi
allowance tor impairment

Stockholders

- PRC
Advances, interest and
setttement

2017

2016
2015

8a

8a

8b

10,623
10,415
10,211

541,781
531,158
520,743

- • - • Secured; interest-bearing; subject to repridng;
due in one year subject to renewal

•CROC
Advances end interest
setdaments

2017

2016

2015

8b

8b

8a

15.188
14,885

332,797

14,030
7,465

347,928
340,197
332,797

- - - Unsecured; interest^beartng; subject to repridng;
due in five years

• MAHEC

- Advances and Interest 2015 8a 365,633 - - - - -
Secured; interest bearing; sulrjed to
repridng; dueinoneyearsul^^ torenewal

• PHES
Advances and interest 2017

2016
2015

60

60
6b

12,600

5,700

104,654
92,054
92,054

- •

-

- Unsecured; ncnlnterest-bearing; subject to
repridng; due on demand

• Others
Advances and interest 2017

2016
2015

60
60
60

12,993

778

68,666
45,673
51.643

-

-

- • Unsecured; nonlnterest-bearing; subject to
lepidng; due on demand

Subsidiariee

• WCCCHi

Advances and setdement

Deposits for future stock
sutocription

2017
2016

2016
»)17

2016
2015

8c

8c
8e

8d
8d

8d

169,974
560,525
135,053

-

310,847
510,821
560,525

1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000

Unsecured: nonlnterest-bearing; due on demand

Unsecured; nonlnterast-beaiing

•ALEC
Notes receivable 2017 195,007

• -
195,007 - - Unsecured; nonlnterest-bearing; subject to

reotidno: due on demand

during consoSdaSon

Fomaid
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Cateflorv/Transactlon

Subsidiaries

DIHCI

Year NotB

)

Amount of the
Transaction

Pua from Related Parties Notes
Current Noncurrent ttecelvable

)

Advances to Due to

Subsidiaries* Subsidiaries* Terms and Conditions

Advances and settlemants 2017 6c P7,171 P - P . p. P1.746 P -

2016 6e 10.257 - 5,425 Unsecured: noninterest-bearing; due on demand
2015 Be 5,167 -

15,682

•APHC
123Advances and settlements 2017 8c 173,570 •

2016 6e 186.887 - 173,447 Unsecured: ncninterest4>eadng; due on dttnand
2015 80 43.776 - 370,414

• GIRDl
205,888Advances and Beitlement 2017 So 1,842 -

2016 6e 1,803 - 207,838 Unsecured: noninterest-bearing; due on demand
2015 Be 1,738 - 208,641

• WHMC
Advances and settlement 2017 Be 72 •

2016 Be 1.303 • Unsecured; noninterest-bearing; due on demand
2015 Be 11,028 -

•MBI
Advances and settlement 2017 Be 344 -

2016 6c 6,087 • Unsecured: noninterest-bearing; due on demand
2015 Be 2,888 13,241

Deposits for future stock 2017 Bd - •

Unsecured; noninterest-bearingsubscdpOon 2016 Bd - -

2015 Bd -
35,000

• WWGI
Advances and settlement 2017 Be 165 -

2016 Be 165 - Unsecured; noninterest-bearing; due on demand
2015 Be 146 462

Deposits for future stock 2017 Bd • -

Unsecured; noninterest-bearingsubscription 2016 Bd - -

2015 Bd - -

13,000

•WMCHI
^17 215,530Advances and settlement Be 25,885 - -

2016 Be 16,038 - - 188,535 Unsecured; noninterest-bean'ng; due on demand
2015 Be 163,885 -

-
173,488

• WEC
2,348Advances and setdement 2017 Be 2,438 - -

2016 6c 6,681 - 81 • Unsecured; noninterest-bearino; due on demand
2015 6c 73 •

6,773 -

• WFC
. Advances end settlement 2017 Be 166 - - - -

2016 Be 164 . - - - Unsecured; noninterest-bearing; due on demand
2015 6e 153 - -

57 -

'Elmln^ed during eonsoUd^km

Fonrard
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)

Amount of the Due from Related Paittea Notes Advancesto Due to

Cateflofv/Transoctlon Year Mofe Transaction Current Noncurrent Receivable Subsidiaries* Subsidiaries* Terms and Condltiona

Deposits for ftiturestock
8tJ])8cripl!on

2017

2016
201S

at

ea
Bd

P - P - P - P - P -

6,000

P -
Unsecured; noninterest-beaitng

• VW»L
' Advances and settiement 2017

2016
201S

8a

Be

Be

127
283
212

- -

-

184,888
185,126
185,409

Unsecured; noninterest-beattng; due on demand

KMP
• Short-term employee

bene^

• Post-employment
benefits

2017
2016

2015

2017

2016
2015

32,821
26,681
22,153
7,807
6,105

11.168

: ; ; ; :
TOTAL 2017 21 PI,602,120 P347,82B P18S,C07 P1,312,718 P618,773

TOTAL 2016 21 PI ,537,800 P340.187 P- PI .510,812 P771.371

iiaiing consolidaUon

-11 -



a. Interest-bearing Advances to Related Parties

The Group granted interest-t)earing advances to TWGI, PRC, MAHEC and
CRDC.

TWGI, PRC and MAHEC
The advances granted to TWGI and PRC were substantially used to finance the
acquisition or development of real properties for the Parent Company. These
advances are payable on demand and charge interest at 2% per annum. TWGI
paid P25.49 million in 2017 and P82.33 million in 2016 while PRC had no
payments in 2017 and 2016.

In a Resolution dated February 6, 2015, the Parent Company, APHC, TWGI,
PRC and MAHEC entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
whereby the parties agreed that the outstanding balance of the advances from
TWGI, PRC and MAHEC will be settled using parcels of land owned by PRC.
Subject to the otherspecific terms ofthe MOU, the settlement shall l)e effective
upon completion of titling of the subject property by PRC, which is currently
ongoing. However, the advances to MAHEC was fully paid through cash
settlement as at December 31,2015.

On February 19, 2016, the parties made amendments to the previously issued
MOU for the settlement of all outstanding liabirities of TWGI and MAHEC to the
Parent Company. The amended MOU stated that MAHEC shall no longer be a
party to thesaid MOU, and all references toany obligation or rights thatMAHEC
shall have under the said MOU shall no longer be in force. All other terms and
conditions shail remain unchanged.

As at December 31, 2017, the fair vaiue of PRC's land based on valuation
performed by an accredited independent appraiser, with a recognized and
relevant professional qualification and with recent experience in the locations and
categories ofthe land being valued, amounted to PI.63billion.

On April 11, 2018, TWGI initiated to transfer certain parcels of land located in
Puerto Princesa, Paiawan as partial settlement of the advances.

Interest receivable from TWGI amounted to PI37.85 million and PI24.86 miliion
as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, while interest receivable from
PRC amounted to P66.27 million and P55.64 million as at December 31, 2017
and 2016, respectively. Allowance for Impairment losses on receivables from
TWGI amounted to P61.19 million as at December 31,2017 and 2016.

CRDC

On December 21, 2015, the Parent Company granted advances to CRDC with
an interest of 2% and maturity on Decemtier 21, 2020. interest receivable from
CRDC amounted to P14.93 million and P7.47 million as at December 31, 2017
and 2016, respectively. It was agreed that CRDC has the option to pay the
balance before maturity date without payment of penalty fees and in case the
latter refuses or fails to pay the principal and interest within the time agreed
upon, tiie sameshall bedueanddemandable. Accretion income ofP7.73 million,
and P7.40 million was recognized in 2017 and 2016, respectively and accretion
expense of P40.46 million was recognized in 2015 in profit or loss to show the
effect of the time value of money on the said advances.
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b. Noninterest-bearing Advances to Related Parties

The Group has noninterest-bearing. collateral-free advances to PHES, FHC,
PCIC and East Asia with no fixed term of repayment The said advances are due
and demandable at anytime.

The collectability of the aforementioned advances Is unconditionally recognized
and guaranteed by a stockholder of the Group, representing the majority
stockholders.

c. Advances to Subsidiaries

These mainly represent funds provided to supportsubsidiaries' dally operations
and to finance the construction and completion of certain hotel projects.

d. Deposits to Subsidiaries

These represent amounts set aside that will be used as subscription payments
by the Parent Company once the planned increase In the authorize capital
stock of the subsidiaries materialize (see Note 21).

e. Due to Subsidiaries

In the ordinary course of business, the Parent Company obtains
noninterest-bearing, collateral-free cash and non-cash advances from related
parties for working capital purposes. The above advances are due and
demandable at anytime.

f. AFS Investment

In July and August 2005, the BOD approved the conversion of APHC's net
receivables from related parties amounting to P43.30 million Into 86.71 million
shares of stock of Wll which are listed In the PSE. The conversion resulted to a
loss on exchange ofassets of P31.10 million for APHC. The fair market value of
the shares based on closing market price as at December 31, 2017 and 2016
amounted to PI 5.95 million and PI 6.82 million, respectively (see Note 21).
Valuation loss recognized in GCI In 2017, 2016 and 2015 amounted to P0.87

. million, PI .39 million and P4.77 million, respectively.

g. Notes Receivable

The Group extended loans to Aceslte Leisure and Entertainment Corporation
(ALEC) amounting to PI95.01 million payableon December31, 2018, and bear
Interest at 4% per annum (see Note 21).

The outstanding balanceof relatedparty transactions are generally settled In cash.
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9. Property and Equipment

Movements in this account are as follows:

)
)

For the Year Ended December 31.201T

Land

Land

Imorovements
Leasehsid

Imorovemants

Hotel
Buildings end
ImDrovements

Furniture,
Fixtures and

Eauloment
Operating

EoulDment
Transportation

Edulnment
Conatructlon*

In^Protirese

Ueasmement Basis: Revalued •Revalued At Coal Revalued Revalued At Cost Revalued At Cost Total

Beginning balance
Addltons
Dlsoosals

PI,076,280.000 P17.021.146 P24,e53,124
47,768

P8.802,539.197
6,261,627

(19.743.385t

P13S7,822,077
4,341,841

P266,231,654
4,710.219

P14,780.038
8,888,944

P -

137346,634
P11,269,327,23S

160,776,933
(19,743.385)

Entflng balance 1,076,280.080 17.021,145 24,900,892 8,788,067,339 1,071,063,918 270.941.873 23,648,982 137348,634 11,410380,783

Accumulated Deprecladon end
Amortization

Beginningbalance
Depredation and amortization
Dlsnosals

-
15,039,578

430,763
17,372,270

1,877,491
3,588,227,909

240313,048
(19.743.335)

768392,934
100,864,708

258395.081
8,786.663

10.070,633
2,636,168 .

4,684,298,386
368307,810
(19.743.385)

Ending balance - 15,470,341 19,249,761 3309,297,570 897,247,642 265.091,714 13,505,791 - 6,019,862,819

Carrying Amount P1,076.260.00Q P1,650,804 P5,651,131 P4,978,759,769 P174,716376 P5,850.159 P10.143.191 P137.546,634 P6,390,497,884

For the Year Ended December 31 .2016

Land
Land

Imorovmnents
Leasehold

ImDrovements

Hotel
Buildings and

Imorovements

Furniture,
Fixtures and

Eculoment
OpetBSng

Eoulnment
Transpcrtabcn

Equipment
Construction-

In-Pronress

Measummenl Basis: Revalued Revalued AtCosl Reve/tied Revalued AtCosf Revalued At Cost Total

Beginning balance
AddiSons

Disposals
Retirement
Aooralsal increase

P1,033.652.000

42.628.000

P16,e45,42S

75.720

P65,062,016
57,787

(40,268,670)

P83S0,247,440
1,107,180

(118,455,021)
689.540.600

PI ,035,778,038
4,387,230

(11,560,482)
(158,024,241)
197.083.512

P262,185,003
4,046,581

P11,010,643

(15,616)
2.885.013

P - P10,675,778,684
9,688,747

(51,627,141)
(277,304,880)
013.101.845

Ending tralance 1,076,280,000 17,021,145 24,653,124 8,602,539,197 1,087,822,077 266,231,654 14,780,038 11,260,327,235

Accumulated Depradafion and
Aimitizallon

Beginning balance
Depredaion andamortization
DIspmals
Retirement

14,808,670
232,690

48,183,253
3,820,607

(34,631,680)

3,510,581,083
187,121.887

(118.4SS.021t

023,751,004
40,780,127
(0,213,056)

(1Sa.024.241t

233,041,670
22,353,182

0,002,758
1,083,403

(15.618t

• 4,750,146,636
255,392,265
(43,845,638)

(277.394.880)

Ending balance 15,039,578 17,372,270 3,588,227,000 708,302.034 258,205,081 10,070,633 - 4,684,298,385

Carrying Amount P1.076,280,000 pi,6ai,se7 P7,480.8S4 PS,214,311388 P271,220,143 P0,938,593 P3,800.405 P - P6,58S,026,850
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The Group engaged an independent firm of appraisers to detemnine the fair value of
certain classes of its property and equipment, specifically hotel buildings and
improvement, land, furniture, fixtures and equipment, transportation equipment and
land improvements, which are earned at revalu^ amounts. Fair value was
determined by reference to market-based evidence, which Is the price that would be
received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. In determining fair value, an estimate was made in accordance
with the prevailing prices for materials, equipment, labor, and contractor's overhead
and all other costs associated with acquisition while taking into account the
depreciation resulting from physical deterioration, functional and economic
obsolescence. The latest revaluation was in July 2016 which resulted to the increase
in the gross carrying amount of property and equipment amounting to P913.10
million.

Had the following classes of property and equipment been carried at cost less
accumulated depredation, theircarrying amounts would been as follows:

2017 2016

Hotel buildings and improvements P1,860,144,558 PI ,946,061,894

Land 650,515,909 650,515,909

Fumiture, fixtures and equipment 106,081,301 133,061,735
Transportation equipment 3,438,967

1.144,493
982,809

Land improvements 8.622.705

P2,621,325,228 P2,739,245,052

Depreciation on cost charged to profit or loss amounted to P141.15 million, P161.15
million and P175.36 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Depreciation on
appraisal increase charged to profit or loss amounted to P214.16 million, P94.24
millionand PI58.32 million in 2017,2016 and 2015, respectively.

The revaluation increment absorbed through depreciation and transfarred directly to
retained eamings, net of deferred tax effect, amounted to PI38.42 million and
P48.88 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively. The carrying amount of the
revaluation surplus amounting to P2.21 billion and P2.35 billion as at December 31,
2017and 2016, respectively, is notavailable fordistribution to shareholders.

10. Other Noncurrent Assets

This account consists of:

Note 2017 2016

Refundable deposits 21 P15,276,436 PI 5,752,437

Special project deposits 7,515,468 636,721

Others 21 7.742.559 11,588,954

P30,534,463 P27,978,112

Refundable deposits refer to security deposits on utilities, electricity, rental,
returnable containers and others.

Special project deposits pertain to deposits to contractors in connection with the
renovation work of WCCCHI and APHC.

Others represent deposits to service providers such as security and janitorial
services.
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11. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

This account consists of:

Note 2017 2016

Trade payables 21 P350,726,958 P319,713,743
Accrued:

Interest and penalties 13,21 926,355,691 866,355,691
Salaries, wages and employee

benefits 21 36,737,784 14,319,024
Utilities 21 12,265,564 11,577,999
Rent 21 482,568 517,815

Other accruals 21 17,871,872 38,911,795
Local taxes and output VAT 34,514,014 26,340,803

Unclaimed wages 21 11,158,500 870,886

Guest deposits 21 10,922,577 4,556,859

Senrice charges 21 8,033,523 7,777,827

Withholding taxes payable 2,044,557 2,642,044

Other payables 21 57,101,444 64,781.405

PI,468,215,052 PI ,358,365,891

Trade payables are noninterest-bearing and are normally on 30-day terms and are
settled in cash.

Other payables include commissions, sponsorships, gift certificates issued and
sundry payables.

12. Other Current Liabilities

This account consists of:

2017 2016Note

Concessionaires' and other deposits 21 P12,623,373 P20,027,801

Deferred income 1,754,371 4,616,383

Others 21 1.000.000 1.000.000

P15,377,744 P25,644,184

Others represent a PI.00 million unsecured short-term loan obtained from a local
bank in 1996 with interestat prevailing market rate. The proceeds of the loan were
used for the working capital requirements of GIRDI. GIRD! Is a defendant in a
collection case filed bya local bank Involving an unsecured short-term loan obtained.
While the case is currently inactive and the latest assessment made by the legal
counsel is favorableto GIRDI, ttie payable is still retained until the case is completely
dismissed. Management believes ^at the carrying value of the liability retained in the
books as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 sufRcientiy represents the amount of
possible liability that GIRDI may settle in the event that this case will ultimately be
activated and decided against GIRDI.
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13. Loan Payable

Social Security System fSSS^ Loan

On October 28.1999, the Parent Company obtained a five-year term loan from SSS
amounting to P375.00 million originally due on October 29, 2004. The SSS loan
bears Interest at the prevailing market rate plus 3% or 14.5% per annum, whichever
Is higher. Interest Is repiiced annually and Is payable seml-annually. Initial Interest
payments are due 180 days from the date of the release of the proceeds of the loan.
The repayment of the principal shall be based on eight (8) semi-annual payments,
after a one-year grace period.

The SSS loan was availed to finance the completion of the facilities of WCCCHI. It
was secured by a first mortgage over parcels of land owned by Wll, a related party
and by the assignment of 200 million common shares of the Parent Companyowned
by TWGI. The commonshares assigned were placed in escrow in the possession of
an independent custodian mutuallyagreed upon by both parties.

On August 7, 2003, when the total loan obligation to SSS, including penalties and
interest, amounted to P605.00 million, the Parent Company was considered In
default with the payments of the loan obligations, thus, on the same date, SSS
executed a foreclosure proceeding on the mortgaged parcels of land. The SSS's
winning bid on the foreclosure sale amounting to PI 98.00 million was applied to
penaltiesand Interestamounting to P74.00 million and PI 24.00 million, respectively.
In addition, the Parent Company accrued penalties charged by SSS amounting to
P30.50 million covering the month of August until Decemtier 2003, and unpaid
interest expense of P32.00 million.

The Parent Company, Wll and TWGI were given the right to redeem the foreclosed
property within one (1) year from October 17, 2003, the date of registration of the
certificate of sale. The Parent Company recognized the proceeds of the foreclosure
sale as its liability to Wll and TWGI. The Parent Company, however, agreed with
TWGI to offset this directly against Its receivable from the latter. In August 2004, the
redemptionperiodfor the Parent Company,Wll and TWGI expired.

The remaining balance of the SSS loan Is secured by the shares of stod( of the
ParentCompany owned by TWGI and shares ofstockofWll totaling 235 million and
80 millionshares, respectively.

On May 13,2004, SSS filed a civil suit against the Parent Companyfor the collection
of the total outstanding loan obligation tiefore the Regional Trial Court (RTC) of
Quezon City. SSS likewise asked the RTC of Quezon City for the issuance of a writ
of preliminaryattachment on the collateral property.

On June 18, 2004, the RTC of Quezon City issued its first order granting SSS's
request and the issuance of a writ of preliminary attachment based on the condition
that SSS shall post an attachment bond in the amount of P452.80 million. After the
lapse of three (3) months from the Issuance of RTC order, no attachment bond was
prated. Thus on September 16,2004 and September 17,2004, the Parent Company
filed a Motion to Set Aside Order of Attachment and Amended Motion to Set Aside
Order of Attachment, respectively.

On January 10, 2005, the RTC of Quezon City Issued its second order denying the
Parent Company's petition after finding no compelling grounds to reverse or
reconsider Its initial findings dated June 18, 2004. In addition, since no writ of
preliminary attachment was actually Issued for failure of SSS to file a bond on the
specified date, the RTC granted SSS an extension of fifteen (15) days from receipt of
its second order to post the required attachment bond.
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On February 10, 2005, SSS filed a Motion for Partial Reconsideration of the Order
dated January 10, 2005 requesting that It be allowed to post a real property bond In
lieu of a cash/surety bond and asking for another extension of thirty (30) days within
which to post the said property bond. On March 7, 2005, the Parent Company filed
Its opposition to the said Motion.

On July 18, 2005, the RTC of Quezon City issued Its third order denying the Parent
Company's petition and granted SSS the 30 day extension to post the said
attachment bond. Accordingly, on August 25, 2005, the Parent Company filed a
Motion for Reconsideration (MR).

On September 12. 2005, the RTC ofQuezon City Issued Its fourth order approving
SSS's property bond In the total amount of P452.80 million. Accordingly, the RTC
ordered the corresponding Issuance of the writ of preliminary attachment. On
November 3,2005, the Parent Company submitted a Petition forCertioraii beforethe
Court of Appeals (CA) seeking tiie nullification ofthe orders ofthe RTC ofQuezon
City dated June18,2004, January 10,2005, July 18,2005andSeptember 12,2005.

On February 22, 2006, the CA granted the Parent Company's petition for the
issuance of the Temporary Restraining Order to enjoin the Implementation of the
orders of the RTC of Quezon City specifically on the Issuance of the writ of
preliminary attachment.

On March 28, 2006, the CA granted the Parent Company's petition for the issuance
of a writ of preliminary Injunction prohibiting the RTC of Quezon City from
Implementing the questioned orders.

On August 24,2006, theCA Issued a decision granting the Petition for Certioraii filed
by the Parent Company on Novemlier 3,2005 and nullifying the orders ofthe RTC of
Quezon City dated June 18, 2004, January 10, 2005, July 18, 2005 and
September 12, 2005 and consequently making the writ of preliminary Injunction
permanent.

Accoidlngly, SSS filed a Petition for Review on Certioraii on the CA's decision before
the Supreme Court (SC).

On November 15, 2006, the First Division of the SC Issued a Resolution denying
SSS's petition for failure of SSS to sufficiently show that the CA committed any.
reversible error In its decision which would warrant the exercise of the SC's
discretionary appellate jurisdiction.

The Parent Company, at various Instances, Initiated negotiations with the SSS for
restructuring of the loan but was not able to conclude a formal restructuring
agreement.

On January 13, 2015, the RTC ofQuezon City Issued a decision declaring null and
void the contract of loan and the related mortgages entered Into by the Parent
Company with SSS on theground thatthe officers and theSSS are notauthorized to
enterthe subject loan agreement In the decision, tiie RTC ofQuezon City directed
the Parent Company to return to SSS the principal amount of loan amounting to
P375 million and directed the SSS to retum to the Parent Company and to its related
parties titles and documents held by SSS as collaterals.

On January 22, 2016, SSS appealed with the CA assailing the RTC of Quezon City
decision in favor of the Parent Company, et al. SSS filed ItsAppellant'sBriefand the
Parent Company filed a Motion for Extension of Time to file Appellee's Brief until
May 16,2016.
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On May 16, 2016, the Parent Company filed its Appellee's Brief with the CA,
furnishing the RTC of Quezon City and the Office of the Solicitor General with
copies. SSS was given a period to reply but it did not file any.

On September 6, 2016, a resolution for possible settlement was received by the
Parent Company from the CA. However, on February 7, 2017 a Notice to Appear
dated December 7, 2016 was received by the Parent Company from the Philippine
Mediation Center Unit- Court of Appeals (PMCU-CA) directing the Parent Company
and SSS to appear in person and without counsel at the PMCU-CA on
January 23, 2017 to choose their mediator and the date of initial mediation
conference and to consider the possibility of settlement. Since the Notice to Appear
was belatedly received, the parties werenotableto appear before the PMCU-CA.

On February 27,2017, a Second Notice to Appear issued bythe PMCU-CA directing
all parties to appear on February 27, 2017 at a specified time was received by the
ParentCompany only on February 27, 2017afterthe specified timeof the meeting.
The Parent Company failed to appear.

On June 30, 2017, a resolution issued by the CA. resolved to submitthe appeal for
decision.

As at tiie reportdate, there had been no updates on the matter.

Outstanding principal balance of the loan amounted to P375.00 million as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016. Interest expense related to the SSS loan recognized
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
amounted to P60.00 million, P60.04 million and P59.88 million In 2017, 2016 and
2015, respectively. Accrued interest and penalties, presented as part of "Accru^
Inter^ and penalties" under "Accounts payable and accrued expenses" account in
the consolidated statement of financial position, amounted to P926.36 miillon and
P866.36 million as at December 31,2017 and 2016, respectively(see Note 11).

14. Other Noncurrent Liabilities

The account consists of:

Note 2017 2016

Concessionaires' deposit
Accrued rent

21 PS,342,247
1.195.082

P4,548,003
2.029.956

P6,537,329 P6,577,959
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16. Segment Information

The Group's operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of services provided, with each segment
representing a strategic business unit - the Hotel operations and the Marketing operations. The Corporate and Others segment includes
general and corporate income and expense items. Segment accounting policies are the same as the policies described In Note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The following table presents the revenue and profit information regarding industry segments for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016
and 2015 and certain asset and liability information regarding industry segments as at December 31,2017,2016 and 2015 (in millions):

Corporate and Other
Blmlnattons ConacHdatodHolrt OperaMonfl Maifcatlng OporaMena

2017 2018 2015 2017 2010 2015 2017 2016 2015 2017 2016 2015 2017 2016 2015

TOTAL REVENUES
Extems) sales P2.08S P2,095 P2.023 P - P - P - P19 P40 pe9 (P9) (P9) (P11) P2,10S P2,13S P2,101

INSULTS

Segment results P389 P648 P132 (PI) (PI) (PI) (P40) (P40) (P24) P - P - P254 P328 POOS P381

OTHERINCOME (LOSS)
Interest eiqiense
interest Income
Benefit firom (provision for) Income taxes
Others

2

(114)

(80)
1

(145)
194)

(97)
1

(72)
(10) (10) (11) (10)

(60)
40

14
30

(7)
(51)

(40)
33

(5)
(2) '(1) 62

.

(80)
42

(100)
(11)

(80)
40

(152)
(94)

(137)
34

(77)
(22)

Total GOrer Income (Lose) (112) (318) (178) (10) (11) (10) (8) (19) (14) (1) 62
- (129) (288) (202)

Net Income (Lose) P267 P32a (P4e) (P11) (P12) (P11) (P48) (PS9) (P38) (PI) P62 P254 P199 P310 P159

OTHER INFORMATION
Segment assets
Defotred tax assets

P7,594
48

P7.569
40

P7.032
120

P219 P220 P220 P4,593
19

P4.737
1

P4,029
4

(P3,118) (P3,460) (P3.760) P9,288
85

P9.088
41

P8,421
124

Consolidated Total Assets P7,640 P7.809 P7.152 P219 P220 P220 P4,812 P4,738 P4,033 (P3.118) (P3,460) (P3,760) P9,353 P9.107 P8,S45

Segment fiatiilifies
Deferred tax Datfilities

P2.080
1.275

P2,07e
1.339

P2.942
1.110

P65 P64 P82 P2,10S P2.321 P2.338 (P2.190) (P2,530) (P2.768) P2.080
1.275

P1.934
1.339

P2,572
1.110

Consofidated Total LJablllties P3,3S5 P3.418 P4,052 PB5 P84 pe2 P2.105 P2,321 P2.338 (P2.198) (P2,S30) (P2.768) P3,33S P3.273 P3.682

Odier Segment Information
CB]^talexpanditurBS
Dsorecfefion and amortization

P160
353

PB

250

P22
327

P - P . p - PI
2

PI
5

P3
7

P . P - P - P161
355

PO
255

P25

334
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16. Capital Stock and NoncontrolJIng interests

Capitaj Stock

Details of capital stock of the Parent Company as at December 31, 2017 and 2016
are as follows:

Number of

Common

Shares Amount

Authorized capital stock:

at PI par value per share 5,000,000,000 P5,000,000,000

Issued and outstanding 2,498,991,753 P2,498,991,753

A summary of the Parent Company's securities registration is as follows:

Date of Registration/Listing Securities

March 17.1995

(Initial Public Offering)

April 18.1996

December 15.1999

112.50 million shares

On October 7.1994. the SEC approved the
Increase in the authorized capital stock of
the Parent Company to P450.00 million
divided Into 450 million shares with a par
value of P1 per share, out of which, 337.50
million shares were already subscribed.
944.97 million shares

On September 18,1995, the BODresolved
to Increase the authorized capital stock of
the Parent Company to P2.00 billion
divided Into 2 billion shares with a par value
of PI per share. The purpose of the
Increase was to finance the construction of
WCCCHi's hotel project

888.47 million shares

On August 7. 1999, the BOD resolved to
Increase the authorized capital stock of the
Parent Coinpany to P5.00 billion divided
Into 5 billion shares with a par value of PI
per share. The purpose of the Increase was
to accommodate the acquisition of DIHCI's
outstanding common shares for 888.47
million shares of the Parent Company with
an offer price of P2.03 per share.

The Parent Company has not sold any unregistered securities for the past 3 years.
As at December 31.2017,1.95 billion shares of the Parent Company are listed In the
PSE and has a total of 464 Shareholders.

On July 20. 2007, the BOD resolved to Increase the authorized capital stock of the
Parent Companyto PI 0.00 billion with 10 billion shares at par value of PI per share.
This resolution was ratified by the Parent Company's stockholders owning at least
two-thirds of the outstanding capital stock during the annual stockholders' meeting
held on August 25. 2007.
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In 2009, the BOD passed a resolution temporarily suspending the Implementation of
the above proposed increase in the autfiorized capital stock of the Parent Company.
As at December 31. 2017, the Parent Company has no updated plans to increase its
authorized capital stock, or to modify any issued shares or to exchange them to
another class.

Noncontrollina Interests fNCIs)

The details of the Group's material NCIs are as follows(Inthousands):

December 31.2017 December 31.2016

APHC 61RDI APHC GIRDI

Percentage of NCI 44% 46% 44% 46%

Ganying amount of NCI P657,6S6 P198.708 P68S.239 PI98.682

Net income attnbutabte to NCI (P19,473) P26 P31.218 P26

Other comprehensive (loss) income attributable
to NCIs (P8.110) P - P85.055 P -

The following are tiie audited condensed financial Information of investments in
subsidiaries with material NCIs (in thousands):

December 31,2017 December 31,2016

APHC 6IR01 APHC 6IRD1

Total assets
Total liabilities

P2,273.S27
(718.644)

P470,658
(38.683)

P2.316.169
(699.022)

P471.034
(39.116)

Net assets P1,854.883 P431,97S P1.617.147 P431.918

Revenue P436,S56 PI ,586 P589.238 PI .521

Net (loss) income
Other comprehensive income

(P43,SS6)
(18.308)

P57 P70.470
191.999

P57

(P62,264) P57 P262.469 P57

Cash Rows provided by (used in)operating
activities

Cash flowsprovided by investingactivities
Cash flows used in flnandng acUv^es

P94,889
24,468

(129,107)

P - (Pica,587)
199.830
(76.500)

P -

Net (Decrease) Increase In Cash (P9,750) P - P14.743 P -
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17. Other Costs and Expenses

This account consists of;

Note 2017 2016 2015

Laundry, valet and other
hotel services P121,177,477 P82.858.545 P79.973.865

Taxes and licenses 58,872,008 63.209.790 37,706.467
Security and other

relat^ senrices 40,176,231 34.136.908 32.841.759

Corporate expenses 31,017,805 15.657.090 26.250.954
Supplies 6 27,541,398 28.820,855 41.296,252

Insurance 20,891,793 21.855.434 21.543.413

Advertising 20,672,986 17.146.883 17.958.548

Representation and
6.671.351entertainment 15,089,343 15.395.969

Commissions 13,434,997 11.559.966 11.227.322
Data processing 12,789,344 11.827.756 11.685.323

Professional fees 12,120,384 11.410.836 10.642.820

Transportation and travel 12,045,579 10.587,514 13.180.135

Fuel and oil 9,652,240
5,366,245

8.498.026 10.899.829

Communications 6.190.749 7.080.404

Guest amenities 2,299,279 3.174.403 3.478.861

Guest and laundry valet 1,760,207 1.598.388 1.249.281

Meeting expenses 1,344,423 1.580.499 193.801

Miscellaneous 8.898.521 7.388.196 17.184,036

P415,150,260 P352.897,807 P351.064.421

Miscellaneous include recruitment expense and employee assodation dues.

18. Retirement Benefits Cost

Certain subsidiaries have noncontributory, defined benefit plans(the Plans)covering
substantially all oftheir regular employees with at least five (5) years ofcontinuous
service. The benefits are based on percentage ofthe employee's final monthly salary
for every year ofcontinuous service depending on the length ofstay. Coiitributions
and costs are detemnined in accordance with the actuarial studies made for the
Plans.

The latest independent actuarial valuation of the Plans was as at December 31,
2017, which was prepared using the projected unit credit method. The Plans are
administered by independent trustees (the Retirement Plan Trustees) with assets
held consolidated for the Group.

The Plans are registered with the BIR as a tax-cjualified plan under Republic Act
No. 4917, As Amended, otherwise known as "Ah Act Providing that Retirement
Benefits of Employees of Private Firms shall not be Subject to Attachment, Levy,
Execution, or any Tax whatsoever."
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The reconciliation of the present value of the DBO and the FVPA to the recognized
retirement benefits liability as presented in the consolidated statement of financiai
position Is as follows:

2017 DBO FVPA
Asset Ceiling

Adjustment

Retirement

Benefits
Uabillty

Balance. Januaiv 1.2017 P207.266.5S4 (P119.020.367) P10.271.638 P98,S17,86S

Inciuded in Profit or Loss
Current service cost
Net Interest income (cost)

16,393,560
11.312.948 (7.073.508) 563.913

16,393,560
4,803.353

27,706,508 (7,073,508) 563,913 21,198,913

Included in OCi

Remeasurement gains on plan assets:
1. Actuarial gains (losses) arising

from:
• Changes in financial assumptions
• Changes in demographic

assumptions
• Experience adjustments

2. Return on plan assets excluding
interest inonne

3. Effiectofass^ceilina

(10,544,372)

37,463,028
1,183,682

5,593,674
2.838.812

(10,544,372)

37,463,028
1,183,682

5,593,574
2.838.812

28,102,338 5,593,574 2,838,812 38,534,724

Others

Contributions paid by the emptoyer
Benefits paid from:

Bookre9erves
Plan assets

(10,317,597)
(2.061.863)

(21,450,000)

2.081,863
.

(21,450,000)

(10,317,597)

Balance, December 31,2017 P2S0,695,980 (P139,888,438) P13,674,363 P124,481,905

2016 DBO FVPA

Asset CeHing
Adiustment

Retirement
Benefits
Uabiiitv

Balance. January 1.2016 P209.197.676 (P1C0.815.9S0) P8.300.gi0 P116.682.596

inciuded in Profit or Loss
Current service cost
Net interest income (cost)

15,091,937
11.138,022 (5.865.116) 449.909

15,091.937
5.722.815

26.229,959 (5,865,116) 449,909 20.814,752

Included in OCi
Remeasurement losses on plan assets:

1. Actuarial(losses) gains arising
from:
• Changes in finandal assumptions
• Changes in demographic

assumptions
• Experience adjustments

2. Return on plan assets excluding
interest Income

3. Effect of asset ceiiinp

(3,859.977)

2,393.590
(12,337,681)

3,960,574
1.520.819

(3,859,977)

2,393,590
(12,337,681)

3.960.574
1.520.819

(13,804.068) 3,960,574 1,520,819 (8,322,675)

Others
Contributions paid by fite employer
Benefits paid from:

Book reserves

Plan assets

(9,606,808)
(4.750.165)

(21,050,000)

4.750.165

-

(21,050,000)

(9,606,808)

Balance, December 31.2016 P207,266,594 (P119,020,367) P10,271,638 P98,517,865

The retirement Isenefits cost recognized in profit or loss for the years ended
December 31,2017, 2016 and 2015 amounted to P21.20 million, P20.81 million and
P40.34 million, respectively, and is presented as partof"Personnel costs" account in
the consolidated statementof profit or loss and othercomprehensive income.
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Personnel costs comprise the following:

2017 2016 2015

Salaries and wages
Retirement benefits expense
Other employee benefits

P281,286,064
21,196,913
24,400,273

P296,403,578
20,814,752
19,305,899

P294,365,171
40,342,055
20,242,473

P326,883,250 P336,524,229 P354,949,699

The Group's plan assets consist of the following:

2017 2016

DebtInstruments - government bonds P87,860,624 P1,407,398
Cash and cash equivalents 30,496,250 879,667
Investment In govemment securities 12,890,795 90,400,862
Deposit In banks 4,923,694 18,430,283
Investment In other securities and debt Instruments 1,178,515 1,076,225
Equity Instruments 300,333
Debt Instruments - other bonds 200,105
Other receivables 2,038,122 6,825,932

^ ^ P139,888,438 P119.020,367

Theprindpal actuarial assumptions at reporting dateare as follows:

2017 2016
Discount rate 5.70%- 6.00% 5.43%- 5.49%
Salary Increase rate 3.0% -10.0% 3.0% -10.0%

Assumptions regarding the mortality and disability rates are based on the 2001 CSO
Table - Generat'onal (Scale AA, Society of Actuaries) and the Disability Study,
Period 2, Benefit 5 (Society ofActuaries), respectively.

The weighted-average duration of the DBO Is 13.4 years and 12.6 years as at
December 31,2017 and 2016, respectively.

Maturity analysis ofthe benefit payments as at Decemlier 31 follows:
•^ 2017 2016

Carrying amount P250,695,980 P207,266,594

Within one (1) year
Within 1-5 years
Within 5 - ten (10) Years

P12,316,420
58,599,384

134.689,361

P8,327,180
25,044,008
96.729.656

Contractual cash flows P205,605,165 P130,100,844

Sensitivltv Analvsis •

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one ofthe relevant actuarial
assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected ttie DBO by
the amounts shown below:

2017 2016
+1% -1% j4% -1%

Discount rate (P24,044,673) P26,049,596 (PI5,464,129) PI7,620,401
Salary Increase rate 26.865,716 (21,914,771) 15.438.990 (13.891,841)
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Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows
expected under the Plans, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the
assumptions shown.

These respective Plans expose the Group to actuarial risks such as longevity risk,
interest rate risk, and market (investment) risk.

Asset-liabilitv Matching

The Retirement Plan Trustees have no specific matching strategy between the plan
assets and the plan liabilities.

Funding Policv

The Group is not required to pre-fund the future defined benefits payable under the
retirement plans tiefore they become due. However, in tfie event a benefit claim
arises and the respective Plans' fund is insufficient to pay the claim, the shortfall will
be paid by the Group directly to the employee-retiree. Hence, the amount and timing
of contributions to the respective Plans are at the Group's discretion.

19. Income Taxes

Thecomponents ofthe Group's income taxexpense(benefit) are as follows:

2017 2016 2015

Recognized in Profit or Loss
Current tax expense
Deferred tax (benefit) expense

P177,643,376
(77.194.648)

P116,624,221
35.879.140

P71,347,136
5.460.572

P100,448,728 PI 52,503,361 P76,807,708

Recognized in OCi
Deferred tax (benefit) expense (PIG,980,417) P276,427,356 P5,939,095

The reconciliation of the income tax expense computed at the statutory tax rate to
the actual income taxexpenseshown in profit or loss is as follows:

2017 2016 2015

Income before income tax P299,181,929 P471.388,347 P235,514,803

Income tax expense at 30%
Additions to (reductions in)

Income tax resulting from the
tax effects of:
Nondeductible expenses
Unrecognized deferred tax

assets during the year
Income not subjected to

Income tax

P89,754.579

7,968.948

5.632.258

(2.907.057)

P141,416,504

10,863,786

3,678,457

(3.455.386)

P70,654,441

13,430,934

2,067,312

(9.344,979)

P100,448.728 PI 52,503,361 P76.807,708
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The movements of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

PecBtnber31^2017

Balance
January 1, Recosnbed

2017 In Proflt or L088
Recognized Balance

InOCI December 31.2017

Deferred tax fiaUSty:
Revaluation surplus on property

and ecuipfflent P1.339.31SJ01 (P64.246.571) P . P1Jt75.063.230

Deferred tax assets:
Retirement liability 29,555,389 (3,171,205) 10,880,417 37,344,671

on receivables
Unamotlized past service cost
Unrealized foreign exchange

loss
Accrued rent expense
Unearned revenues
Minimumcorporate income tax

(Mcm
Accnied Interest expense on

loan

6,285,350
2,660,888

1,584,569
616,383
348,206

35,148

189,824
(515,842)

(1,584,553)
(113,088)
178,105

(35.148)

18.000.000

-

6,475,174
2,145,148

503,285
626,311

18.0CO.GOO

41,088,003 12,948,077 10,380,417 64,994,437

P1,298,229,798 P>77,194,848) (PIO.360,417) P1.210,074,733

December 31.2016

Balance
January 1.2016

Recognized
In Profit or Loss

Recognized
InOCI

Balance
December 31.2016

Defiened tax QabSHies:
Revaluation surplus on pmperty

and equipment
Rental receivable
Unamortized premium on

securttv deoosils

PI,093,657,003
11,059,602

5.251.708

(P28,271,755)
(11,059,602)

(5.251.709)

P273,e30,S53 PI,339,315,801

1,109,888,314 (44,583,066) 273,030,553 1,339,315,801

Oefetred tax assets:
Retirement IlabQlty
Allowance for imirairment

losses on receivables
Unamortized past service cost
Unrealized foreign exchange

loss
Aocnied rent expense
Unearned revenues
Mcnr
Rent received in advance
Net operating loss carry-over

(NOLCO)

35,230,653

5,758,472
3,176,831

11,749,005
703,075
433,099
517,591

64,125,456

2.349.730

(3,178,491)

526,878
(515,843)

(10,165,238)
(86,692)
(84,893)

(482,743)
(64,125,456)

(2.349.730)

(2,496,803) 29,555,359

6,285,350
2,660,888

1,584,569
816,383
348J206

35,148

124,045,012 (80,462,206) (2,468,603) 41.088,003

P685,923,302 P3S,87g,140 P276,427.3Se PI ,298,229,738

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized by certain subsidiaries in respect of
the foilovidng items in the table below because itis not probable that future taxable
profits will beavailable against which thesubsidiaries can utilize the benefits thereon
priorto their expiration or reversal.

NOLCO

Mcrr
Less allowance for

impairment losses

2017

Tax Base Tax Effect

P39,404,286
489,211

P11,821,286
489,211

2016

Tax Base Tax Effect

P43.537,477
725,383

PI 3,061,243
725,383

(3.427.734) (1.276.686) (530.528) (159,158)
P36,465,763 P11,034,811 P43,732.332 P13.627,468
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The movementsof unrecognized net deferred tax assets of the Group are as follows:

2017 2016

Balance at laeglnning of year P13.627.468 P17.809.208

Unrecognized deferred tax asset during the year.
NOLCO 5.620,492
MCIT 11,766
Impainnentlosses (1,116,528)

Expiration of unrecognized deferred tax assets:
NOLCO (6,860,449)
MCIT (247,938)

Unrecognized deferred tax asset applied during
the year
NOLCO

3,429,246
249,211

(159,168)

(6,859,312)
(89,005)

(752,722)

Balance at end of year P11,034,811 P13,627,468

Details of unrecognized NOLCO are as follows:

Year
Incurred Expiry Date NOLCO Applied Expired Amount

Remaining
Amount

2017
2016

2015
2014

December 31,2020
December 31.2019
December 31.2018
December 31,2017

PI8.734,973
11,430,821

9,238,492
23.141.885

P -

(273.701)

P -

(22.888.164)

P18,734.973
11,430,821

9,238,492

P82.546,151 (P273,701) (P22.S88.164) P39,404.288

Certain subsidiaries were required to pay MCIT under existing tax regulations. The
MCIT payments and the applicable years that these will be deductible from future
regularcorporateincometax payable are shown below:

Year
[ncurred

2017

2016
2015
2014

Expiry Date

December 31.2020
December 31,2019
December 31,2018
December 31.2017

Mcrr

P11,768
249,211
228,234
247.938

P737,149

Aoptled Expired Amount

P -

(247.938)

P - (P247.938)

Remaining
Amount

P11.766
249,211
228,234

P489,211

20. Earnings Per Share

Earnings pershare (EPS) is computed by dividing thenet income for theyear by the
weighted average number ofoutstanding sharesofcommon stodc during theyear.

Net income attributable to
equity holders of the Parent
Company

Weighted number of shares
outstanding

Earnings per share
basic and diluted

2017 2016 2015

P217,937,648 P287,392,497 P127,211,459

2.498.991.753 2.498.991.753 2,498,991,753

P0.087 P0.115 P0.051

There are no potentially dilutive shares as at December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015.
Accordingly, diluted EPS is the same as basic EPS.
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21. Financial instruments - Risk Management and Fair Values

Risk Management Structure
The BOD Is mainly responsible for the overall risk management approach and for the
approval of risk strategies and principles of the Group. It also has the overall
responsibility for the development of risk strategies, principles, frameworks, policies
and limits. It establishes a forum of discussion of the Group's approach to risk issues
in order to make relevant dedsions.

Risk Management Committee

Risk management committee is responsible for the comprehensive monitoring,
evaluation and analysis of the Group's risks in linewith the polides and limits set by
the BOD.

Financial Risk Manacement Obiectives and Policies

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise of cash and cash equivalents,
receivables, notes receivable, due from related parfies, short-term investrnent, APS
investment, other noncurrent assets (except special project deposits), accounts
payable and accrued expenses, loan payable, other current liabilifies and
concessionaires' deposits. These financial instruments arisedirectly from operations.

The main risks arising finom the financial instruments of the Group are credit risk,
liquidity risk and market risk. There has been no change to the Group's exposure to
risks or the manner in \which it manages and measures the risks in prior finandal
year. TheGroup's management reviews and approves policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarized as follows:

Credit Risk

Credit risk is tiie risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a
finandal instrument fells to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally
from the Group's cash In banks, receivables andduefrom related parties.

The Group has established a credit policy under which each new customer is
analyzed individually for credltworthiness before the Group's standard payment and
delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Group's review includes external
ratings, ifthey areavailable, financial statements, credit agency information, industry
information, and in some cases bank references. The Group limits its exposure to
credit risk by establishing credit limits and maximum payment period for each
customer, reviewing outstanding balances to minimize transactions \with customers in
industries experiencing particular economic volatility.

With respect to credit risk from other financial assets of the Group, which mainly
comprise ofdue from related parties, theexposure oftheGroup to credit risk arises
from the default ofthe counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amount of these instruments.

There is no othersignificant concentration ofcreditrisk inthe Group.
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The aging analyses of the Group's financial assets as at December 31, 2017 and
2016 are as follows (in thousands):

December ai.aoiT

Cash and cash equivalents*
Receiwbias

Notes lectivable
Short-term Enwstment
Due Cram related paitbas
AFSinwstment
Other twncurrattf assets'

Nota Total

4 P342,868
5 248,945
a 185,007
7 12;380
a 2,011,233
S 15,956

10

Netther

Pest Due

Ror

InmaiPBd

P342,afU
143,008
195,007

12,300
1,950,048

15,955
23.019

<30
Dave

P .
56,991

PaatDuebutBottmptlred
3D.SO

Dave
01.90 91.120

Daw Daw

P .

7,680
P .

4,994
P .
3,900

>120

Paw

P -
11,790

Inioaired

P .
21404

01,185

Total P2,8S0,377 P2,0824S3 f90|tf9l P7.S80 P4,994 P3,8C0 P11,760 P82,769

"ezctudlng cast) on hand
"Exttudlng apodalpioiectdeposaa

NeiOisr

Pest Due Past Due but not traBoired

nor <30 30-60 81-90 91-120 >120

December 31.2018 Note Tola] Imeslred Days Daw Daw Daw Daw Imnaired

Cash and cash equivslents* 4 P108.211 P186411 P . P - P - P . P - P -

RaoelwblBa S 257.758 173442 27453 12,088 8.154 6.055 0,355 22.311

Sbort-Cefln Efiwstmeitt 7 124S1 12451 - - - - - •

Due 6sm related parttM a 1,939402 1,878,097 . - - - -
61,185

AFSinwstment a 18,822 16.822 - - - - • •

10 27.341 27.341 - - • • • •

Total P2,439,665 P2494464 P27453 P12.088 P8,1S4 P6.055 P8,3S5 P83.49Q

"ExehKSngcast) on hand
"Gtclu^ apodalfit^eeltloposSa

The credit quality of the Group's financial assets that are neither past due nor
impaired is considered to be ofgood quality and expected to be coiiectible without
Incuning any credit losses.

Information on the Group's receivables and due from related parties that are
impaired as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 and the movement of the allowance
used to record the Impairment losses are disclosed in Notes 5 and 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

LiquidityRisk
Liquidity risk isthe risk that theGroup will not beable tomeet Its financial obligations
as they fall due.

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group's operation and mitigate frie effecte of fluctuations
in cash flows. Additional short-term funding is obtained through related party
advances and fiom bank loans, when necessary.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the BOD, which has
established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management
of the Group's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserv^,
by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity
profiles of financial assets and liabilities. For the Group's short-term funding, the
Group's policy is to ensure that there is sufficient working capital inflows to match
repayments of short-temi debt.
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The following table summarizes the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities
as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 based on contractual undiscounted payments
(in thousands):

Total Contfactual Undiscounted Payments

December 31.2017 Note
Carrying
Amount Total On Demand

Less than
1 Year

ItoS
Years

Accounts payable and accnied
expenses*

Other cunent flabHities**
Loans payable
Concesslonatres' deposits - net

of current portion

11

12

13

14

P1.431,666
13,623

375,000

5.342

PI,431,666
13,623

375,000

5,342

P1,240,216
13,623

376,000

6.342

P180,263 P11,177

P1.825.621 P1.82S.621 Pl.634,181 P180,263 P11.177

'Excludinglocal taxes, output VATand wShhoKSng taxes
"Exdudng defemdInconte

Total Contractual Undiscounted Payments

December 31.2016 Nate

Canylng
Amount Total On Demand

Less than

1 Year

1to5
Years

Accounts payable and accrued
expenses*

Other cunent nabilHies**
Loans payable
Concessionaires' deposSs - net

ofcunent portion

11

12

13

14

PI .329,383
21.028

375,000

4.548

PI .329,383
21,028

375,000

4.548

P866,3S6
21,028

375,000

4.548

P446.608 P16,419

P1.729,959 PI .729,959 PI ,266,932 P446,608 PI6,419

'Exdudes toed taxes, odput VATand wSMiolcSng taxes
"Exdudlng deferred income

MaritetRisk
Market risk is the riskthat the fairvalue or cash flows of a financial instrument of the
Group will fluctuate due to change in market prices. Market risk reflects interest rate
risk, currency riskand other price risks.

Since the Group's loan in U.S. doiiar had been fuliy paid in March 2016, the Group is
not anymore significantly exposed tochanges in foreign currency exchange rates.

if}tQPSSt Risk
Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flow of the financial
instruments wili fluctuate because ofthe changes in market interest rates. Fairvalue
interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate
due to changes in market interest rates.

The Group's financial instrument that is exposed to interest risk is the interest-
bearing funds made available by the Parent Company to WCCCHI to finance the
construction ofthe Cebu City Hotel Project. Such funds were substantially sourced
from a P375.00 million loan from SSS, as well as the stock rights offering of the
Parent Company. Since 2006, the Parent Company charged WCCCHI on the related
interests and penalties on the contention that the latter benefited from ttie proceeds
ofthe SSS loan (see Note 13). Starting 2017. WCCCHI was not anymore charged
with the interest on SSS loan because jthe Parent Company has assessed that ifit
has already fulfilled its obligations related to its use of process from such loan.
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The following table Illustrates the sensitivityof the net result for the year and equity to
a reasonably possible change in interest rates of ±10 basis point in 2017 and 2016,
with corresponding effect in equity. These changes are considered to be reasonably
possible based on observation of current market conditions. The calculations are
based on the Group's loan payable held at the reporting date. All other variables are
held constant.

2017

Changes in Interest Rates (in Basis Points) +10 -10

Net income (P6,000,000) P6,000,000

2016

Changes in Interest Rates (in Basis Points) +10 -10

Net income (P6,004,211) P6,004,211

The other financial instruments of the Group are either short-term or noninterest-
bearing and are therefore not subject to interest rate risk.

Cash flow interest rate risk exposure is managed within parameters approved by
management. If the exposure exceeds the parameters, the Group enters Into
hedging transactions.

Equity Price Risk
Equity pricerisk is the risk that fair valueoffuture cash flows ofa financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from
interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors
specfflc to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors aff^'ng all
similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Group is exposed to equity price risk because of its investment in shares of
stock of Wll which are listed in the PSE totaling to 86.71 million shares as at
December 31,2017 and 2016 (see Note 8f).

The Group monitors the changes In the price of the shares of stock of Wll. In
managing its price risk, theGroup disposes ofexisting oracquires additional shares
based on the economic conditions.

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group's equity to a reasonably
possible change in equity price. These changes are considered to be reasonably
possible based on past equity price performance oftheGroup's AFS investment and
macroeconomic forecast for 2017 and 2016. This analysis assumes an increase of
10% for 2017 and 2016 and a decrease of 10% for 2017 and 2016 of the equity price
ofttieGroup's AFS investment. All othervariables are held constant

2017 2016
10% :10% 10% -10%

Equity PI,116,825 (P1,116,82S) PI,177,522 (PI.177.522)
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Fair Value of Rnancial Assets and Liabilities

The table below summarizes the carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's
financial assets and liabilities as at December 31,2017 and 2016 (in thousands):

2017 2016

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Amounts Values Amounts Values

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents* P342.8S8 P342,858 P188.211 P186.211
Receivables 228.361 228,361 235,447 235,447

Notes receivable 195,007 195,007 - -

Due from related parties 2,011,233 2,011,233 1,939,282 1,939,282

Short-term investment 12,360 12,360 12,251 12,251
Available-for-sale investment 15,955 15,955 16,822 16.822

Other noncurrent assets ** 23,019 23.019 27.341 27.341

P2,828,793 P2,828.793 P2.417,354 P2,417.354

*Exctudng css/i on hand
**B(du(Sngspeddpm^depodts

2017 2016

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Amounts Values Amounts Values

Rnancial Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued
expenses***

Other current liabilities****
Loans payable
Concessionaires' deposits -

net of cunent porflon

PI ,431,656
13,623

375,000

5.342

PI ,431,656
13,623

375,000

5,342

PI ,329,383
21.028

375,000

4.548

PI ,329,383
21,028

375,000

4.548

PI ,825,621 P1,825.621 PI ,729,959 PI ,729,959

local taxoa,output VATend withhtMIng taxes
""^dutSngdefemdincome

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, notes receivable,
current portion of due from related parties, short-term investment, other noncurrent
assets, accounts payable and accrued expenses, other current liabilities and
concessionaires' deposits approximate their fair values due to the short-term maturity
of these Instruments.

The fair valueof interest-bearing due from related parties and loan payable is based
on the discounted value of expected future cash flows using the applicable market
rates for similar types of instruments as of the reporting date, thus, the carrying
amount approximates fair value.

The fair value of APS investment was determined using the closing market price of
the investment listed on the PSE as of December 31,2017 and 2016.

Capital Management
The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure its ability to
continue as a going concem and ^at it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value.
Capital is defined as the invested money or invested purchasing power, the net
assets or equity of the entity. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from
2017 and 2016.
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The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to It, In light of
changes In economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders orIssue new shares. No changes were made In thedirectives, policies
or processes In 2017 and 2016.

On March 13, 2018, the WCCCHI's BOD approved the Increase In the WCCCHrs
authorized capital stock from PI3.80 million divided Into 13.80 million shares with a
parvalueofPI pershare to P2.00 billion divided Into 2 billion shares with a parvalue
of PI per share.

Further, the WCCCHI's BOD approved the proposal to convert the existing deposit
on future subscnptlons which currently amounts to PI .00 billion Into equity. In
tranches, the first trancheinthe amount of P500.00 million and subsequenttranches
as the WCCCHI's BOD shall decide.

As at the date of the approval of the consolidated financial statements, WCCCHI has
yet to file Itsapplication for the Increase Inauthorizedcapital stock with the SEC.

For purposes of the Group's capital management, capital Includes all equity Items
that are presented Inthe consolidated statement ofchanges In equity.

The Group Is not subject to extemally-lmposed capital requirements as at
December 31,2017.

22. Lease Agreements with PAGCOR

The Parent Company, In behalf of WCCCHI and WMCHI, entered Into lease
agreements with PAGCOR. The lease agreement of WCCCHI with PAGCOR
covered the Main Area (8,123.60 sq.m.). Slot Machine Expansion Area (883.38
sq.m.). Mezzanine (2,335 sq.m.) and 5^ Floor Junket Area (2,336 sq.m.) for a total
area of 13,677.98 sq.m. which commenced on March 3, 2011 and March 16, 2011,
for the Main Area and Slot Machine Expansion Area, respectively. The lease
agreement of WMCHI with PAGCOR covered the Main Area (4,076.24 sq.m.) and
Chip Washing Area (1,076 sq.m.) for a total area of 5,152.24 sq.m. which was last
renewed on March 21, 2011. Both leases expired on August 2. 2016. Thereafter,

^ PAGCOR paid the WCCCHI and WMCHI rental on a month-to-month basis. The
lease was renewed on February 15,2018, for a period of 1 year.

APHC also has a lease agreement with PAGCOR covering the Main Area (7,093.05
sq.m.). Expansion Area A (2,130.36 sq.m.). Expansion Area B (3,069.92 sq.m.) and
Air Handling Unit Area (402.84 sq.m.) for a total lease area of 12,696.17 sq.m. The
lease agreement was last renewed on December 1, 2010 and expired on
December 31, 2016. As at December 31, 2017, PAGCOR continued to operate a
portion of the lease area on a month-to-month basis while completing Its pullout from
APHC.

The amortized cost of the refundable security deposits received by WCCCHI,
WMCHI and APHC upon execution of the above lease contracts were determined by
calculating the present value of the cash flows anticipated until the end of the lease
term using the respective Interest rates. The change In the present value and the
amortization of the discount Is recognized as part of "Interest expense" account In
the consolidated statements of profit or loss and amounted to nil, PI9.01 million and
P20.31 million In 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. As the deposits do not have an
active market, the underlying Interest rates were determined by reference to market
interest rates of comparable financial Instruments.
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Total rental income from the above PAGCOR lease contracts recognized as part of
"Rent and related income" In the consolidated statements of profit or loss amounted
to P6ig.44 million, P720.41 million and P691.99 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015,
respectively.

23. Other Lease Agreements

Group as Lessor

Lease Agreements with Concessionaires
WCCCHI, WMCHI, DIHCI and APHC have lease agreements with concessionaires
for the commercial spaces available in their respective hotels. These agreements
typically run for a period of less than one year, renewable upon the mutual
agreement of the parties.

Rent revenue recognized as part of "Rent and related income" in profit or loss and
amounted to P56.39 million, P85.29 million and PI 35.63 million In 2017, 2016 and
2015, respectively.

Group as Lessee

Land under Operating Lease
On September 15, 1994, Waterfront Hotel and Resort Sdn, Bhd. (WHR), a former
related party, executed a lease contract (the Agreement) with Mactan Cebu
Intemational Airport Authority (MCIAA) for the lease of certain parcels of landwhere
the hotels were constructed. On October 14, 1994, WHR assigned its rights and
obligations underthe MCIAA contractsto WCCCHI and WMCHI.

WCCCHI and WMCHI shall pay MCIAA fixed rentals per month plus a 2% variable
rentbased onthe annual gross revenues ofWCCCHI and WMCHI, as defined in the
Agreement The leases are for a period of fifty (50) years, subject to automatic
renewal for another twenty-five (25) years, depending on the provisions of the
applicable Philippine laws at the time ofrenewal.

Fixed and non-cancellable operating lease rentals payable to MCIAA are as follows:

2017 2016

Less than 1 year
Between 1 and 5 years
More than 5 years

P17,741,933
60,341,346

276.271.062

P17,741,933
6a,341.346

286,619.044

P354,354,341 P364,702,323

Lease ofSlot Gaming Machines
In 2007, Dynamo Atlantic Limited (Dynamo), a foreign corporation duly organized,
existing and registered at the British Virgin Islands, entered into a Memorandum of
Agreement (MOA) with Entertainment Gaming (Philippines), Inc. (EGP), for the lease
of electronic gaming machines for installation and operation in Universal Park Mall
Building located at Rlzal Avenue, Sta. Cruz, Manila. Subs^uently. Dynamo
executed a deed of assignment in favor of MBI for the full authority and rights over
the contract. The MOA was renewed several times, the latest of which expired in
June 30,2016.

As a result of the cessation of MBI's business operations effective July 1, 2016, the
lease contract was no longer renewed.
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Total rent expense for the aforementioned leases amounted to P37.41 million.
P47.93 million and P66.78 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively In the
consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

24. Commitments and Contingencies

The following are the significant commitments and contingencies involving the
Group;

a. On November 10,2008, the Parent Company received a preliminary assessment
notice from the BIR for deficiency taxes for the taxable year 2006. On
February 9,2009, the Parent Company sent a protest letter to BIRcontesting the
said assessment. On February 18, 2009, the Regional Office of the BIR sent a
letter to the Parent Company informing the latter that the docket was retumed to
Revenue District Office for reinvestigation and further verification.

On December 8, 2009, the Parent Company received BIR's Final Decision on
Disputed Assessment for deficiency taxes for the 2006 taxable year. The final
decision of the BIR seeks to collect deficiency assessments toteling to
P3.30 million. However, on January 15,2010, the Parent Company appealed the
final decision of the BIR with the Court of Tax Appeals (CTA) on the grounds of
lack of legal and factual bases in the issuance of the assessments.

In its decision promulgated on November 13, 2012, the CTA upheld the
expanded withholding tax (EWT) assessment and cancelled the VAT and
compromise penalty assessments. The Parent Company decided not to contest
the EWT assessment The BIR filed its MR on Decemiser 4, 2012 and on
April 24, 2013, the Court issued its amended decision reinstating the VAT
assessment The Parent Company filed its MR on the amended decision that
was denied bythe CTA in Itsresolution promulgated on Septeml3er 13,2013.

The Parent Company appealed the case to the CTA sitting En Banc on
October 21, 2013. The CTA En Banc decision promulgated on
December 4, 2014 affirmed the VAT and EWT assessments. The EWT
assessment was paid on March 3,2013.

The CTA En Banc dedsion. was appealed to the SC on February 5, 2015
covering the VAT assessment only. As at December 31, 2017, the Parent
Company is still awaitingthe SC's decision.

Management and its legal counsels believe that the position of the Parent
Company is sustainable, and accordingly, believe that the Parent Company does
not have a present obligation (legal or constructive) with respect to the
assessment

b. WMCHI has a tax case involving VAT assessment for the taxable year 2006. The
case was elevated to the CTA In 2011.' In 2012, WMCHI offered its formal
evidence to the court. In Its decision promulgated on May 31, 2013, the CTA
cancelled the VATassessment in its entirety. The BIRfiled a MRthat was denied
by the CTAin its resolution promulgated on August 16, 2013. The BIRappealed
the case to the CTA sitting En Banc on September 20, 2013. On
September 15, 2015, the CTA reaffirmed the decision cancelling the VAT
assessment

In March 9,2016, the BIR filed with the SC its motion for extension of time to file
its appeal. As at December 31,2017, WMCHI is still awaiting the SC's decision.
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c. Acesite (Phils.) Hotel Corporation versus PAGCOR, et at.
The case involved a Petition for Prohibition and Mandamus, with application for
the issuance of a Temporary Restraining Order (TRO) and writ of preliminary
injunction filed by APHC against PAGCOR and Vandenvood Management Corp.
(\^C). APMC filed this case to assail PAGCOR's awiard to VMC of a
procurement project entitled Tease Space for a Casino Gaming Facility in
Manila for a Period of 15 Years" under ITB No. 09-16-2014 for being violative of
the laws and rules on govemment procurement.

Subsequently, VMC filed its "Motion to Admit Attached Supplemental
Comment/Answer with Compulsory Counterclaim" (the Motion to Admit) on
August 10,2015, to whichAPHC filed an oppositionto VMC's Motion to Admit in
an order dated September 5, 2016, the Court denied VMC's Motion to Admit.
The Regional Trial Court of Manila, Branch 36, (the Court) likewise denied the
MR filed by VMCin an order dated February 28,2017.

In a resolution dated June 18,2015, the Court denied the APHC's application for
TRO. The APHC thereafter filed a MR on July 6, 2015. The said MR was denied
by the Court on August 1, 2016. APHC filed with the CA a Petitionfor Certiorari
(the 2nd petition), withapplicationfor TRO and/or writof preliminary injunction, to
assail the Court's resolutions dated June 18,2015 and August 1,2016. VMCand
PAGCOR filed their respective comments to the 2nd petition, to which APHC
filed its Consolidated Reply on December 19,2016.

At the pre-trial conference on October 4, 2016, the Court referred the parties to
the Philippine Mediation Center for mediation proceedings. After the termination
of the mediation proceedings, the case was returned to the Courtfor the Judicial
Dispute Resolution (JDR) proceedings. The JDR conference was set on
May 2, 2017 and was reset to February 6. 2018. No update conference has yet
been issued.

In a resolution dated January 25, 2017, the CA denied the APHC's applications
for the TROand writ of preliminary injunction, and directed the parties to submit
their respective memoranda. In compliance \^h the CA's diredive, APHC filed
its memorandum on February 13, 2017. VMC also filed its memorandum dated
February 16, 2017, while PAGCOR filed its memorandum dated
February 14,2017.

In a resolution dated March 3, 2017, the CA considered APHC's Petition for
Certiorari as submitted for decision. To date, no decision has yet been issued.

d. In the normal course of business, the Group enters into commitments and
encounters certain contingencies, which include a case against a contractor of
one of its hotels for specific performance. Management believes tiiat the losses,
ifany, that may arise from these commitments and contingencies would not be
material to warrant additional adjustment or disclosure to the consolidated
financial stetements.

The Group is defendant in other legal cases which are stiil pending resolution.
Management and legal counsels believe tiiat the outcome of these cases will not
have any material effiect on the Group'sfinancial position and financial performance.
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25. Settlement of Tax Case with the Treasurer of City of Manila

The case arose from the notice of assessment Issued by the Manila City Treasurer's
Office on July 13, 2007 demanding APHC to pay for deficiency business tax for the
years 2004 to 2006 totaling P45.58 million (Including Interest and penalties), arising
principally from non-declaration for local tax purposes of revenues derived from
sen/Ices In connection with the operation of PAGCOR In APHC's hotel.

After the filing of the protest letters, petitions and appeals, the case was
subsequently decided against APHC on January 9, 2014 by the CTA En Banc.
Accordingly, APHC recognized a provision for P45.58 million In Its books but
proceeded to elevate the case to the SC.

On December 8, 2015, APHC executed a compromise agreement with the City of
Manila wherein both parties agreed to the following terms: (1) APHC will pay the
recomputed tax liability amounting to P5.84 million; and (2) upon ratification of the
compromise agreement by the City Council of Manila, APHC shall cause the
withdrawal of the case pending before the SC.

The recomputed tax liability was paid by APHC on December 10, 2015. The
provision set up for the amounting to P45.58 million was sul}sequently reversed in
the consolidated statement of financial position and a gain on the reversal of
provision amounting to P39.73 million was recognized as part of revenues under
"Others" In the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
Income.

On January 12, 2018, the City Council of Manila passed a resolution ratifying the
compromise agreement between the City of Manila and APHC.

26. Omnibus and Security Loan Agreement

On December 21,2017, theParentCompany, WCCCHI, WMCHI, DIHCI, CRDC and
PRC (collectively, the Borrowers) entered Into an Omnibus Loan and Security
Agreement (the Agreement) with Philippine Bank of Communications (PBCOM) for
the latter toprovide the Borrowers multiple term loan facilities (the Loan Facilities) for
general corporate purposes In themaximum aggregate amount ofup toPI.50 billion.
The. Loan Facilities consist of the following:

Facility 1 - represents secured term loan facility in the amount of P850.00 million
available through a single or multiple drawdowns with term offifty-four (54) months
from the initial drawdown date, regardlessof the number of drawdowns. Any arrrount
not drawn after the expiration of the commitment period shall be automatically
cancelled and may not be reinstated. Commitment period means the period
commencing from the date of the agreement and terminating on the earliest of:
(a) six (8) months from the signing of the Agreement; (b) the date when the
commitment Is fiilly drawn or availed by mutual agreement ofthe parties; or (c) the
date when the cbmmltment Is terminated of cancelled in accordance With the terms
of the Agreement

Facility 2 - represents secured term loan facility in the amount of P200.00 million
available through a single or multiple drawdowns with term offifty-four (54) months
from the Initial drawdown date, regardless of the number of drawdowns. Anyamount
not drawn after the expiration of the commitment period shall be automatically
cancelled and may not be reinstated.
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Facility 3 - represents secured term loan facility in the amount of P450.00 million
available through a single or multiple drawdowns with term of forty-two (42) months
from the Initial drawdown date, regardless of the number of drawdowns. Any amount
not drawn after the expiration of the commitment period shall be automatically
cancelled and may not be reinstated. Facility 3 requires, on or before the initial
drawdown date, the bon-ower to cause the relevant mortgagors to constitute in favor
of PBCOM a first ranking real estate mortgage over Davao Agricultural Property
located at Matina, Pangi, Toiomo, Davao City consisting of parcels of agricultural real
property containing an aggregate area of seventy (70) hectares registered in the
names of CROC and PRC, and Locob property still registered in the name of an
individual, and register such security interest with appropriate Registry of Deeds.

The loan principal is repayable on equal monthly installments to commence at the
end of sixth (6th) month from the initial drawdown date subject to balloon payment
upon maturity. Interest is charged at the higher of four (4)-year PDSTR2 rate on the
date of availment and spread of 3.25% per annum or 7.75% per annum, and
repayable monthly from the drawdown date.

The Loan Facilitiesare secured by chattel and real mortgages over various operating
assets of WCCCHI and DIHCI; real estate mortgages over Davao Agricultural
Property; assignment over leasehold rights on the land owned by MCIAA on which
WCCCHI stands; and pledge of shares of stocks representing ownership of the
Parent Company in WCCCHI and DIHCI.

Each of the Borrowers is required to comply v^th certain covenants during the term
of the Agreement and until the full payment of the amounts due which include,
among others:

1. Debt to Equity Ratioofnot higherthan 2.5:1;
2. DebtSen/ice Coverage Ratioof at least 1.25x; and
3. Negative covenantswhich prohibit each ofthe Borrowers to:

• Change the nature or scope of its business as presently conducted, or
liquidate or dissolve, or enter Into any consolidation, merger, pool, joint
venture, syndicate or other combination, or sell, lease or dispose of a
substantial portion (asdetermined by PBCOM) of its business orassets, with
market or book value of P500.00 million or more;

• Permit any change in ownership (direct or indirect), management orcontrol
of its business, which resuits in the presentmajority stockholders ceasing to
hold, whether directly or indirectly through any person beneficially, at least
sixty-eight percent (68%) of the direct or indirect beneficial or economic
interest In each of the Borrowers;

• Dedare or pay dividends to stockholders and make any capital or asset
distribution to stockholders;

• Purchase, redeem, retire or otherwise acquire for value any ofcapital stock
now or hereafter outstanding (other than as a resultof the conversion of any
shares ofcapital stock into shares ofany other class ofcapital stock), return
any capital to its stockholders as such, ormake any distnbution ofassetsto
its stockholders as sUch (other than distribution payable in shares of its own
outstanding capital stock);

• File anylegal action to question anycorporate act or transaction;
• Extend any loans, advances or subsidies to any corporation, partnership or

entity owned by the Borrowers or in which it may have equity, other than
advances in the ordinary course of business; and

• Extend any loans or advances to any of Its directors, officers, stockholders,
affiliates and partners other than advances in the ordinary course of
business.
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On March 13, 2018, the Borrowers made the drawdowns of Facility 1 and Facility 2
amounting to P850.00 million and P200.00 miliion, respectively. On Apn'i 10, 2018,
the Borrowers made the drawdown of Facility3 amounting to P450.00 million.

27. Significant Accounting Poiicies

The accounting poiicies set out tielow have been applied consistently to all years
presented in the consoiidated financial statements, except for the changes In
accounting policies as explained below:

Adootion of Amendments to Standards

The Group has adopted the following amendments to standards starting
January 1, 2017 and accordingly, changed its accounting policies. The adoption of
these amendments to standards and interpretations did not have any significant
impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

• Disdosu/e iniUa^e (Amendments to Philippine Accounting Standard (PAS) 7,
Statement of Cash Ftows). The amendments address financial statements users'
requests for improved disclosures about an entity's net debt relevant to
understanding an entity's cash flows. The amendments require entities to provide

f^\ disclosures that enable usem of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from
cash flows and non-^sh changes - e.g. by providing a reconciliation between
the opening and closing balances In the statement of financial position for
liabilities arising from financing activities.

• Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses (Amendments to
PAS 12, Income Taxes). The amendments clarify that

• the existence of a deductible temporary difference depends solely on a
comparison of the carrying amount of an asset and its tax baseat the end of
the reporting period, and is not affected by possible future changes in the
carrying amount orexpected manner ofrecovery oftheasset

• the calculation offuture taxable profit in evaluating whethersufficient taxable
profit will be available in future periods exciudes tax deductions resulting
from the reversal of the deductible temporary differences;

• the estimate of probable future taxable profit may include the r^very of
some of an entity's assets for more than their earning amount if there is
sufficient evidence that itis probable that theentity will achieve this; and

• an entity assesses a deductible temporary difference related to unrealized
losses in combination with ali of its other deductibie temporary differences,
unless a tax law restricts the utilization of losses to deduction against Income
ofa sf^clfic type.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financlai statements include the accounts of the Parent Compariy,
as weilas those of its subsidiaries enumerated in Note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entitles controlled bythe Group. The Group controlsan entityifand
only if, the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee If facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Parent Company and are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date when control commences until the date when control
ceases.

The accounting policies ofsubsidiaries are beingalignedwith the policies adopted by
the Group. Losses applicable to the NCI In a subsidiary are allocatedto the NCI even
ifdoing so causes the NCI to have a deficitbalance.

Accounting for NCi
NCI represents the portion of profit or loss, OCI and the net assets not held bythe
Group and are presented separately In the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income and within equity In the consolidated statement of

(^1 financial position, separately from the Parent Company's equity.

Acquisitions ofNCI are accounted for as transaction with owners in their capacity as
owners and therefore no goodwill is recognized as a result ofsuch transactions. The
adjustments to NCI, If any, are based on a proportionate amount of the net assets of
the subsidiary.

Lx)ss of Control

Upon the loss of control, the Group derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary, any noncontrolling interests and other components of equity related to the
subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit resulting from loss of control Is recognized in profit
orloss. If the Group retains any Interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest
is measured atfair value at thedatethat control Is lost Subsequentiy, It Isaccounted
for asan equity-accounted investee or as an AFS investment depending on the level
of influence.

Transacrions Biminated on Consolidation
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses
arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealized gains arising from transactions with equity-
accounted investees are eliminated against the Investment to the extent of the
Group's interest In the Investee. Unrealized losses areeliminated in thesame way as
unrealized gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment

Seoment Reoortina , .
An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business
activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues
and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group's other components.
All operating results are reviewed regularly by the Group's BOD, the chief operating
decision maker ofthe Group, to make decisions about resources to be allocated to
the segment and to assess its performance, and for which discrete financial
information is available.
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Segment results that are reported to the Group's BCD include items directly
attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable
basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets, head office expenses
and income tax assets and liabilities.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire
property and equipment.

The Group's businesses are operated and organized according to the nature of
business provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit,
namely, the Hotel operations. Marketing operations and Corporate and Other
Operations segments.

The Group's only reportable geographical segment is the Philippines.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extentthat it is probable that the economic benefite will
flow to the Group and the revenuecan be reliably measured. Income is measuredat
the fair value of the consideration received, net of trade discounts, rebates, and other
sales taxes or duties. The following specificcriteria must also be met before revenue
is recognized:

Rooms

Room revenue is recognizedbased on actual occupancy.

Food and Beverage
Food and beverage revenue is recognized when orders areserved and billed.

Rent and Related Income
Rent and related Income on leased areas of ttie Group's properties is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, except for cancellable leases
which are recognized at amount collected or collectible based on the contract
provision.

OtherRevenues

Other revenues arerecognized upon execution ofservice orwhen earned.

Interest Income . . ^ -i
Interest income is recognized as itaccrues using ttie effective interest meniod.

Detenninatlon of whetherthe Group IsActing as a Principal or an Agent
The Group assesses its revenue arrangements against the following criteria to
determinewhether it is actingas a principal or an agent:

• whether the Group has primary responsibility for providing the goods and
services;

• whether theGroup has discretion in establishing prices; and
» whether the Group bears the credit risk.

If theGroup hasdetermined itis acting as a principal, the Group recognizes revenue
on a gross basis with the amount remitted totheother party being accounted as part
ofcosts and expenses. If the Group has determined it isacting as agent only thenet
amount retained is recognized as revenue.

The Group assessed its revenue arrangements and concluded that it is acting as
principal in all arrangements.
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Cost and Expense Recocnition

Costs and expenses are recognized In profitor loss upon utilization of the service or
at the date they are Incurred. Interest expense Is recognized In profit or loss In the
period In which they are incurred using the effective Interest method.

Financial Instruments

Financial Assets
The Group classifies Its finandal assets In the following categories: (a) at fair value
through profit or loss (FVPL), (b) loans and receivables, (c) held-to-maturity (HTM)
Investments, and (d) APS financial assets. The Group's classificationdepends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of Its financial assets at Initial recognition. The Group only holds
financial assets classified as AFS investments and loans and receivables.

(a) Classification

Loans and receivables are nonderivatlve financial assets with fixed or
determlnable payments that are not quoted In an active market and where
management has no Intention of trading. They are Included In current assets,
exceptfor mahiritles greaterttian twelve (12) months afterthe financial reporting
date. In which case, these are classified as noncurrent assets. The Group's cash
and cash equivalents, receivables, short-term Investment, due from related
parties and refundable deposits (presented under "Other noncurrent assets"
account In the consolidated statement of financial position) are classified as
loans and receivables as at Decemtier 31,2017 and 2016.

Cash, which Includes cashon hand and In banks. Is stated at facevalue. Cash
equivalents are short-term, highly liquid Investments that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three (3) months or less
which are subject to Insignificant risk ofchange In value.

Short-term Investment Is a certificate of deposit which Is highly liquid witti
maturity of more than three (3) months but less than one (1) year ft'om date of
acquisition and subject toan Insignificant risk of change In value.

AFS Investment Is designated as such or does not qualify to be classified as
financial asset at FVPL, HTM Investments or loans and receivables. This
Investment, which Is purchased and held Indefinitely, may besold In respond to
liquidity requirements or changes in market conditions. This only Includes equity
Investments.

(b) Initial Recognition and Derecognltion

Financial assets are recognized In the consolidated statement of financial
position when tiie Group becomes a party to tiie contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on trade
date - the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset
Regular way purchases or sales of financial assete require delivery of assets
within the timefirame generally established by regulations or convention In the
marketplace. Rnancial assets are Initially recognized at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at FVPL.

-43-



Financial assets are derecognized when:

" the rights to receive cash flows florn the financial assets have expired; or
• the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has

assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third
party under a 'pass-through' arrangement' or

" the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and
either (i) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
or (ii) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from a financial
asset and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the financial assets nor transferred control of the financial asset, the
financial asset is recognized to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement
in the financiai asset

Continuing Involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred
financial asset is measured at the lower of the original cairying amount of the
financial asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
be required to repay.

(c) Subsequent Measurement

Loans and receivables are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, less impairment losses, ifany.

APS investment is subsequently measured at fair value. The effective yield
component of APS debt securifles, as well as the impact of restatement on
foreign currency-denominated APS debt securities, is reported in profit or loss.
The unrealized gains and losses arising from the fair valuation of APS
investments are recognized in 001 and are presented as "Pair value reserve" in
the equity section ofthe consolidated statement offinancial position.

(d) Determination of Pair Value

Pair value is determined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to. transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or inost
advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions
(i.e. an exit price), regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. Where applicable, the Group uses
valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficientdata are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable input and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the Group uses market
observable data as far as possible.

Pairvalues are categorized into different levels ina fair valuehierarchy based on
the inputs used Inthe valuation techniques as follows:

• Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active marketsfor identical assets or
liabilities;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or
indirectly (i.e., derived from prices); and
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• Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservabte inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability might be
categorized in different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.
The Group recognizes transfiers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the
end of the reporting penod during which the change has occurred.

The Group's AFS investment as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 is based on
Level 1. Further information about the assumption made in measuring the
recurring fair value of AFS investment is included In Note 8f to the consolidated
financial statements.

(e) Impairment

The Group assesses at each financial reporting date whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset is impaired.

Impairment oftradeand otherreceivables financial assets is described in Note 3
to the consolidated financial statements. For those cam'ed at amortized cost,
individually significant financial assets are tested for Impairment if there are
indicators of impairment Impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss and the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of allowance. If, in a sut^equent
period, the amount ofthe impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized,
the previously recognized impairment lossis reversed,

Impairment loss on AFS financial asset is recognized by reclassifying the loss
accumulated in the fair value reserveto profit or loss. The amountredassified is
the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortization) and the current fair value, less any impairment loss previously
recognized in profit or loss. If the fair value of an impaired AFS debt security
instrument subsequently increases and the increase can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized, then the
impairment loss Is reversed through profit or lossi otherwise it is reversed
through OCI.

Finandal Liabilities

(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial liabilities as financial liabilities at FVPL and
other finandal liabilities. The Group's finandal liabilities are classified as other
finandal liabilities.

OttierFinancial Liabilities
These includeliabilities that are not classifiedor designated at FVPL and contain
contract obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder or to
settlethe obligation other thantheexchange ofa fixed amount ofcash.

The Group's financial liabilities categorized under other financial liabilities include
interest-bearing loans, accounts payable and accrued expenses, refundable
security deposits and related accrued interest.
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(b) initial Recognition and Derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognized in the consolidated statement of financial
position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument

Financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair vaiue, less any directly
attributable transaction cost

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged, cancelled or has expired. Where an existing financial liability is
replaced byanother from the same lender on substantially different ternris, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

(c) Sutisequent Measurement

After initial measurement, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Amortized co^ is calculated
taking into account any disccunt or premium on the issue and fees thatare an
integral part of the effective interest rate.

Offsetting FinancialAssets and Liabilities
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there Is Intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realize tire asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
This isnot generally the case with master netting agreements, and the related assets
and liabilities are presented at gross in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Inventories , ^
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and NRV. Cost incurred in bnnging the
inventories to their present location and condition is calculated using the weighted
average method.

NRV for food and beverage represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs to sell. NRV ofoperating supplies and
engineering and maintenance supplies is the estimated current replacement cost
Inventories are periodically reviewed and evaluated for obsolescence. Obsolete
inventories are scrapped or disposed of and the related costs are charged to
operations.

Prepaid Exi^enses
Prepaid expenses represent expenses not yet Incurred but are already paid. Prepaid
expenses are initially recorded as assets and measured atthe amount of cash paid.
Subsequent to Initial recognition, these are charged to profit or loss as they are
consumed In operations orexpire with the passage oftime.

Prepaid expenses areclassified in the consolidated statement of financial position as
current assets when the cost of goods or services related to the prepayments are
expected to be Incurred within one year or the Group's normal operating cycle,
whichever is longer. Otherwise, theyare classified as noncurrent assets.
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Property and Equipment

Measurement at InitialRecognition
Upon initial recognition, items of property and equipment are measured at cost which
comprises the purchase price and ail directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to the iocation and condition for its intended use.

Measurement Subsequent to InitialRecognition
Property and equipment, except for leasehoid improvements, operating equipment
and construction in progress which are stated at cost, are carried at revaiued
amounts, Iseing the fair value at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and amortization and impairment losses, if any. Fair
values are determined through appraisal by an independent firm of appraisers.
Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity to ensure that the cairying amount
does notdiffer materialiy from that which would be determined using fair valueat the
end of the reporting period.

The net appraisal surplus resulting from the revaluation is credited to "Revaluation
surplus on property and equipment" account (net ofcorresponding deferred income
tax effect) shown under tiie consolidated statement of changes in equity. Any
increase in the revaluation amount Is credited to the "Revaluation surplus on property
and equipment" account unless it offsets a previous decrease in fte value of the
sameasset recognized in profit or loss. Adecrease in value is recognized in profit or
loss where itexceeds the increase previously recognized in the "Revaluation surplus
on property and equipment" Upon disposal, any related revaluation surplus is
transferred to "Accumulated DefidT account and is not taken into account in arriving
at the gain or loss on disposal. Also, the amount of revaluation surplus absortied
through depreciation is being transferred to "Accumulated Deficit* account net of
deferred tax effect.

Ail costs, including borrowing costs, which were directly and clearly associated with
the construction of the hotels, were capitalized.

Construction-in-progress, included in property and equipment, represents structures
underconstruction and is stated at cost This includes cost ofconstruction and other
direct costs. Construction-in-progress is not depreciated until such time as the
relevant assets are completed and putinto operational use.

Operating equipment consisting of chinaware, glassware, silverware and linen are
stated at cost less accumulated amortization and adjustments based on periodic
inventory method. Under this method, the recorded costs ofoperating equipment are
amortized using various rates and adjusted based on periodic inventory count
Adjustments include the effects of any breakages and damages. The amortization
and adjustments are recognized in profit or loss.

Sut)sequent Costs
Subsequent costs that can bemeasured reliably are added to the carrying amount of
the asset when itis probable thatfuture economic benefits associated with the asset
will flow to the Group. The costs ofday-to-day servicing ofan asset are recognized
as an expense in the period inwhich theyare incurred.

Fair Value Measurement

The Group's properfy and equipment as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 is based
on level 3. Furtherinformation about the assumption made in measuringfairvalue of
property and equipment is included in Note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the estimated useful
life of the asset or term of the lease, whichever is shorter.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Number of Years

Land improvements 5-10

Leasehold improvements Shorter of lease temi
and 10

Hotel buildings and improvements 15-50

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3

Operating equipment 3

Transportation equipment 3

The estimated useful lives, as well as the depreciation and amortization methods are
reviewed at each reporting date to ensure that the period and methods of
depreciation and amortization are consistent with the expected pattern of economic
benefits from those assets.

Fully depreciated andamortized assets are retained in the accounts until they are no
longer in use, no further charges for depreciation and amortization are made in
respect of those assets.

When an asset Is disposed of, or Is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expect^ from its disposal, the cost and related accumulated
depreciation, amortization and impairment losses, if any, are removed from the
accounts and any resulting gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal is
recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

The carrying amount of the Group's property and equipment is reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication ofimpairment If such
Indication exists, the recoverable amount ofthe impaired asset isestimated.

An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its
cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds Hs recoverable amount Impairment lo^es are
recognized in profit or loss, unless the asset iscarried at revalued amount, in which
casethe impairment loss is charged tothe revaluation increment ofthesaid asset

The recoverable amount is the greater ofthe asset's fair value less costsofdisposal
and value In use (VIU). Fair value less cost ofdisposal is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at themeasurement date, lessthe costs ofdisposal. In
assessing VIU, the estimated future cash flows arediscounted totheir present value
using a pretax discount rate that reflects current market assessmente of the time
value ofmoney and ttie risks specific to the assetbeing evaluated. If an assetdoes
not generate cash inflows that are laigely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.
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An impairment loss Is reversed if there has been a change In the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An Impairment loss is reversed only to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, If no impairment loss had been
recognized. Reversals of impairments are recognized In profit or loss, unless the
asset is canied at a revalu^ amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a
revaluation increase.

After such reversal, the depreciation and amortization expense is adjusted in future
years to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a
systematic basis over its remaining life.

Emolovee Benefits

Short-term Employee Benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations, such as those for salaries and wages,
social security contributions, short-term compensated absences, bonuses and
nonmonetary benefits, among others, are measured on an undiscounted basis and
are expens^as the related service Is provided.

Defined Benefit Plan

The Group's net obligation in respect of the defined benefit plan is calculated by
estimating the amount of the future benefit that employees have earned in the
current and prior periods, discounting thatamount anddeducting the fair value ofany
plan assets.

Thecalculation ofDBO Isperformed on a periodic basis bya qualified actuary using
the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results In a potential assetfor
theGroup, the recognized asset Is limited to the present value ofeconomic benefits
available In the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains
and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect ofthe asset
ceiling (if any, excluding Interest), are recognized immediately in OCI and presented
under "Retirement Benefits Reserve" under equity. The Group determines the net
Interest expense orincome on the net defined benefit liability orassetfor the period
by applying the discount rate used to measure the DBO at the beginning of the
annual period to the net defined l3enefit liability or asset, taking Into, account any
changes in the net defined liability or asset during the period as a result of
contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related
to the defined benefit planare recognized in profit or loss.

When the benefits ofa plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting
change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment Is
recognized immediately in profit or loss.

The Group recognizes gains and losses onthe settlement ofa defined tienefit plan
when the settlement occurs.
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Related Party Relationship
A related party relationship exists when one party has the ability to control, directly or
indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party In making financial and operating decisions. Such
relationships also exist between and/or among entities which are under common
control with the reporting enterprise, or between, and/or among the reporting
enterprise and its KMP, directors, or its stockholders. In considering each possible
relat^ party relationship, attention isdirected to the substance of the relationship,
and not merely the legal form.

Operatlna Leases - Group as Lessor

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership is
retained by the Group are classiified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiatingoperating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognized over the leased term on the same basis as rental in(X)me. Rental
income from operating leases is recognized In profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease, except for cancellable leases which are recognized at the
amount collected or collectible t>ased on the contract provision.

OoeratinQ Lease - Group as Lessee

Lease In which a significant portion of the risk and rewardsofownership is retained
by the lessor are classified as operating lease. Payments made under non-
cancellable operating leases are recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.

Foreion Currencv Transactions and Translation
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded in Philippine peso
based on the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Philippine
pesousing the ratesofexchange prevailing at the reporting date.

Differences arising on settlement ortranslation ofmonetary items are recognized in
profit orloss with the exception of monetary items that are designated as part ofthe
hedge of the Group's net investment In a foreign operation. These are recognized
under "Foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations" account in
OCI until the net investment is disposed of, at which time, the cumulative amount is
ledassified to profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange
differences on those monetary Items are also recorded inOCI.

Nonmonetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using tiie exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Nonmonetary items measured at fair value In a foreign currency are
translated using ttie exchange rates atthe date when the fair value isdetermined.

The gain orloss arising on translation ofnonmonetary items measured at fair value
istreated in line with the recognition of thegain orloss on the change In fair value of
the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognized In OCI or profit or loss are also recognized in OCI or- profit or loss,
respectively).

During the translation ofthe financial statement accounts oftheforeign subsidiaries
wherein accounts are being maintained in U.S. dollar, the differences between the
reporting currency and the functional currency are recorded inOCI.
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The results and financial position of the foreign subsidiaries are translated into
Philippine peso using the following procedures:

" assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at reporting date;

" income and expenses are translated at exchange rates at the date of the
transadion; and

• all resulting exchange differences are recognized as a separate component in
equity.

Income Taxes

Income tax, which comprises current and deferred tax, is recognized in profitor loss
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity and in OCI.

Current tax is the expected tax payable for the year, using tax rates enacted at the
reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years, if
any.

^ Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for finandal reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized for

• temporary differences on tire initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss;

• temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled
entities to the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in the
foreseeable future; and

• taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition ofgoodwill.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to
temporary differences when they reverse, based on thelaws that have been enacted
or substantiveiy enacted at the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that It is probable that future
taxable profits will be available againstwhich the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax
assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realized. The deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and reduced, if appropriate.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax liabilities and assets, and if they relate to income taxes levied by
the same tax authority on the same ^able entity, or on different tax entities, but
they intend to settle current tax tiabillties and assets -on a net basis or either tax
assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

VAT

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount ofVAT, except

• where the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services Is not recoverable
from the taxation authority, inwhich case the tax is recognizedas part of the cost
of acquisitionof the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and
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" receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
included as part of "Prepaid expenses and other current assets" or "Accounts
payable and accrued expenses" accounts In the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Ecuitv

Capital stock is classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issuance of capital stock, if any, are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of
any tax effects, if this can be absorbed by the excess of issue cost over par value.
Otherwise, these are recognized in profit or loss.

Accumulated deficit includes accumulated results of operations as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

EPS

Basic EPS is determined by dividing net income or loss for the year by the weighted
average number of common shares subscribed and issued during the year, after
retroactive adjustment for any stock dividend and stock splits declared during the

— year. Diluted EPS is computed In the same manner as the aforementioned, except
that all outstanding convertible preferred shares were further assumed to have been
converted to common stock at the beginning of the period or at the time of issuance
during the year.

Provisions and Contingencies

A provision Is a liability of uncertain timing or amount. It Is recognized when the
Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event; when it is
probable that an outflow ofeconomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. The amount to be recognized as provision shall
be the best estimateofthe expenditure required to settle the presentobligation at the
end of the reporting period.

When it is not probable thatan outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more, future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability ofoufflow of economic benefits is remote.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past evente and whose
existence will be confirmed only bythe occurrence or non-occurrence ofone or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but
are disclosed when the inflow of economic benefite is probable.

Events After the Reporting Period

The Group Identifies postyear-end events as events that occurred after the reporting
date but before the date when the consolidated financial statements were authorized
for issue. Any post year-end events that provide additional information about the
Group's financial position or performance at the end of a reporting period (adjusting
events) are recognized in the consolidated financial statements. Post year-end
events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.
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New Standards. Amendments to Standards and Interpretations Not Yet Adopted

A number of new standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after January 1, 2017. However, the Group has not applied the
following new or amended standards and interpretations in preparing these
consolidated financial statements. The Group is currently assessing and has yet to
reasonably estimate the impact of these, if any, on its consolidated financial
statement.

To be Adopted on January 1, 2018

• PFRS 9, Financial instruments (2014). PFRS 9 (2014) replaces PAS 39,
Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement and supersedes the
previously published versions of PFRS 9 that Introduced new classifications and
measurement requirements (in 2009 and 2010) and a new hedge accounting
model (in 2013). PFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and
measurement of financial assets, including a new expected credit loss model for
calculating impairment, guidance on own credit risk on financial liabilities
measured at fair value and supplements the new general hedge accounting
requirements published in 2013. PFRS 9 incorporates new hedge accounting
requirements that represent a major overhaul of hedge accounting and
Introduces significant Improvements by aligning theaccounting more closely with
risk management The Parent Company is still completing its assessmentofthe
impactof PFRS 9 on its consolidated financial statements.

• PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, replaces PAS 11,
Construction Contracts, PAS 18, Revenue, International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) 13, Customer Loy^ty Programmes, IFRIC 18,
Transferof Assets from Customers and Standard Interpretations Commitlee-31,
Revenue- BarterTransactions Involving Advertising Services. The newstandard
introduces a new revenue recognition model for contracts with customers which
specifies that revenue should be recognized when (or as) a company transfers
control ofgoods orservices to a customer at theamount towhich thecompany
expects to beentitled. Depending on whether certain criteria are met, revenue is
recognized over time, in a manner that best reflects the company's performance,
orat a point in time, when control of the goods orservices is transferred tothe
customer. The standard does not apply to insurance contracts, financial
instruments or lease contracts, which fell in the scope of other PFRS. It also
does not apply if two companies in the same line of busincM^ exchange non-
monetary assets to facilitate sales to other parties. Furthermore, if a contract with
a customer is partly in the scope of another PFRS, then the guidance on
separation and measurement contained in the other PFRS takes precedence.
The new standard is to be applied retrospectively.

• Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration. The interpretation clarifies that thetransaction dateto be used for
translation for foreign currency transactions involving an advance payment or
receipt is the date on which the entity initially recognizes the prepayment or
deferred income arising from the advance consideration. For transactions
involving multiple payments or receipts, each payment or receipt giv^ rise to a
separate transaction date. The interpretation applies when an entity pays or
receives consideration in a foreign currency and recognizes a non-monetary
asset or liability before recognizing the related item.
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To be Adopted on January 1, 2019

• PFRS 16, Leases, supersedes PAS 17, Leases, and the related Philippine
interpretations. The new standard introduces a single lease accounting model for
lessees under which ail major leases are recognized on-balance sheet, removing
the lease classification te^ Lease accounting for lessors essentially remains
unchanged except for a number of details including the application of the new
lease definition, new sale-and-leaseback guidance, new sub-lease guidance and
new disclosure requirements. Practical expedients and targeted reliefs were
introduced including an optional lessee exemption for short-term leases (leases
with a term of twelve months or less) and low-value Items, as well as tfie
permission of portfolio-levei accounting instead of applying the requiremente to
individual leases. New estimates and judgmental thresholds that affect the
identification, classification and measurement of lease transactions, as well as
requirements to reassess certain key estimates and judgments at each reporting
date were introduced. The new standard is to be applied retrospectively.

• Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
clarifies how to apply the recognition and measurement requirements in PAS 12,
Income Taxes when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. Under the

_ interpretation, whether the amounts recorded in the consolidated financial
statements will differ to that in the tax retum, and whether the uncertainty is
disclosed or reflected in the measurement, depends on whether (t is probable
that the tax authority will accept the Group's chosen tax treatment If it is not
probable that the tex authority will accept theGroup's chosen taxtreatment, the
uncertainty is reflected using the measure that provides the tietter prediction of
the resolution of the uncertainty - either the most likely amount or the expected
value. The interpretation also requires the reassessment of judgements and
estimates applied If facts and circumstances change - e.g.. as a result of
examination oraction by taxauthorities, following changes intax rules orwhen a
tax authority's right to challenge a treatmentexpires.
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R.G. Manabat & Co.

The KPMG Center, 9/F
6787 Ayala Avenue, Makati City
Philippines 1226
Telephone +63 (2) 885 7000
Fax +63(2)894 1985
Internet www.kpmg.com.ph
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
TO ACCOMPANY SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION FOR FILING
WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Waterfront Philippines, Incorporated and Subsidiaries
No. 1 Waterfront Drive

Off Salinas Drive, Lahug
Cebu City, Cebu

We have audited, inaccordance with Philippine StandardsonAuditing, the consolidated
financial statements ofWaterfront Philippines, Incorporated and Subsidiaries
(the Group) as at andfor the yearended December 31,2017, included inthis
Form 17-A, on which we have rendered our report thereon dated April 25,2018.

Ouraudit was madeforthe purpose offorming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements ofthe Group taken as a whole. Thesupplementary information included in
the following accompanying additional components isthe responsibility ofthe Group's

. management.

1. Schedule of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and Interpretations
(Annex A)

2. Map of Conglomerate (Annex B)
3. Supplementary Schedules of Annex 68-E (AnnexC)
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The above supplementary information is presented for purposes of complying with the
Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended, and is not a required part of the
consolidated financial statements. Such supplementary information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidatedfinancial statements
and, in our opinion. Is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relationto the consolidated
financial statements taken as a whole.

R.G. MANABAT&CO.

TIRESO RANDY F.^LAPIDEZ
Partner
CPA License No. 0092183
SEC Accreditation No. 1472-A, Group A, valid until April30, 2018
Tax Identification No. 162-411-175
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001987-34-2017
Issued September 4,2017; valid until September 3, 2020

PTRN0.6615138MD
Issued January 3,2018 at Makati City

r

April25,2018
Makati City, Metro Manila



ANNEX A

WATEFRONT PHILIPPINES. INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE REQUIRED UNDER SECURITIES REGULATION CODE RULE 68,

AS AMENDED

Schedule of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) and Interpretations
Effective as at December 31, 2017

JTERPRETATIONS^
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements

Conceptual Framework Phase A. Objectives and qualitative characteristics

PFRSs Practice Statement Management Commentary

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

i PFRS 1

I(Revised)

' PFRS 3

(Revised)

IPFRS 4

First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards

Amendments to PFRS 1 and PAS 27: Cost of an Investment
in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entityor Associate

Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions for First-time
Adopters

Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from Comparative
PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters

Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and Removal
of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters

Amendments to PFRS 1: Govemment Loans

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2C09 - 2011 Cycle; First-
time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards -
Repeated Application of PFRS 1

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle:
Borrowing Cost Exemption

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle: PFRS
version that a flrst-time adopter can apply

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle: Deletion
of short-term exemptions for first-time adopters

Share-based Payment

Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle: Meaning
of 'vesting condition'

Amendments to PFRS 2: Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions

I Business Combinations

: Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle:
: Classification and measurement of contingent consideration

^Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle: Scope
: exclusion for the fcrmation of joint arrangements

; Insurance Contracts

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee
Contracts

Amendments to PFRS 4: Applying PFRS 9, Financial
Instruments with PFRS 4, insurance Contracts

i Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued

Adopfetf Applicable]



Operations

Annual Improvements lo PFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle:
Changes in method for disposal

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Amendments to PFRS 7; Transition

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7; Reclassification of
Financial Assets

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of
Financial Assets - Effective Date and Transition

Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of Financial
Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7; Disclosures - Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Date of PFRS
9 and Transition Disclosures

iAnnual Improvements to PFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle:
j'Continuing involvement' for servicing contracts

; Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle:
jOffsetting disclosures in condensed interim financial
: statements

IOperating Segments

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle:
Disclosures on the aggregation of operating segments

Financial Instruments (2014)

Amendments lo PFRS 9; Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

Consolidated Financial Statements

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 11, and PFRS 12:
Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests In Other Entities: Transition Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12, and PAS 27 (2011):
Investment Entities

Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28: Sale or Contribution of
i Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28: Investment i
Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception i

Joint Arrangements

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 11, and PFRS 12: 1
Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Transition Guidance :

Amendments to PFRS 11; Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Amendments to PFRS 10. PFRS 11, and PFRS 12:
Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Transition Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12, and PAS 27 (2011);



ilTERPRETAHONS

PFRS13

! investment Entities

iAmendments to PFRS 10. PFRS 12 and PAS 28: Investment
i Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle;
Clarification of the scope of the standard

Fair Value Measurement

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle:
Measurement of short-term receivables and payables

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle: Scope of
portfolio exception

PFRS 14 i Regulatory Deferral Accounts
I '

PFRS 15 ; Revenue from Contracts with Customers

PFRS 16 Leases

Philippine Accounting Standards

PAS 1 ! Presentation of Financial Statements
f"*****"—— '

1Amendment to PAS 1: Capital Disclosures

; Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Pullable Financial
i Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation

Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle;
Presentation of Financial Statements - Comparative
Information beyond Minimum Requirements

jAnnual Improvements to PFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle:
iPresentation of the Opening Statement of Financial Position
i and Related Notes

!Amendments to PAS 1: Disclosure initiative

Inventories

Statement of Cash Flows

Amendments to PAS 7: Disclosure Initiative

PASS Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and j

r\ Errors
V

PAS 10 Events after the Reporting Period J

PAS 11 Construction Contracts

PAS 16

Income Taxes

Amendment to PAS 12: Deferred Tax" Recovery of Underlying
Assets

Amendments to PAS 12: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
i k)r Unrealized Losses

IProperty. Plant and Equipment

IAnnual Improvements to PFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle: Property,
i Plant and Equipment - Classification of Servicing Equipment

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle:
Restatement of accumulated depreciation (amortization) on
revaluation {Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 38)

Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 38: Clarification of

ANNEX A

Not

Adopted



'HlLIPPiNE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
NiTERPRETATIONS^ r .

ft

Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization

Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 41; Agriculture; Bearer
Plants

IRevenue
I " —~

! Employee Benefits

jAmendments to PAS 19: Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
I Contributions

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle; Discount
rate in a regional market sharing the same currency - e.g. the
Eurozone

Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
Govemment Assistance

The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Amendment: Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

Borrowing Costs

Related Party Disclosures

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle;
Definition of 'related party'

Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans

Separate Financial Statements

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12, and PAS 27 (2011);
Investment Entities

Amendments to PAS 27: Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28; Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

iAmendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28; Investment
' Entities; Applying theConsolidation Exception

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle;
Measuring an associate or joint venture at fair value

Amendments to PAS28; Long-term Interests inAssociates
. and Joint Ventures

IFinancial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
Financial instruments; Disclosure and Presentation

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1; Putlable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation

Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues

IAmendments to PAS 32; Offsetting Financial Assets and
!Financial Liabilities

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle; Financial
Instruments Presentation - Income Tax Consequences of
Distributions

IEarnings per Shat^ j

Interim Financial Reporting

ANNEX A

Adopted 1 Applicable



PAS 37

PAS 38

PAS 39

PAS 40

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle; Interim
Financial Reporting - Segment Assets and Liabilities

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle:
Disclosure of infomiaticn "elsewhere in the interim financial
report'

Impairment of Assets

Amendments to PAS 36; Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Intangible Assets

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle.
Restatement of accumulated depreciation (amortization) on
revaluation (Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 38)

Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 38: Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and Initial Recognition of
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of
Forecast Intragroup Transactions

Amendment to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee
Contracts

/Sentiments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassificalion of
Financial Assets

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassificaticn of
Financial Assets - Effective Date and Transition

Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9 and PAS
39: Embedded Derivatives

Amendment to PAS 39; Eligible Hedged Items

Amendment to PAS 39; Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

investment Property

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle; Inter
relationship of PFRS 3 and PAS 40 (Amendment to PAS 40)

Amendments to PAS 40; Transfers of Investment Property

Agriculture

Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 41: Agriculture; Bearer
Plants

Philippine Interpretations

IFRIC 5

Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and
Similar Liabilities

Members' Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar
: Instruments

i Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease

Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, Restoration
and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market -
Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment

Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29 Financial



HILIPPINE FiNANCIAI^ REPORHNS STANDARDSAND
JTERPREWIONS

IFRIC 9

jIFRIC 10
IFRIC 12

IFRIC 13

IFRIC 14

IFRIC 16

IFRIC 17

—a..*..

IReporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9 and PAS
39: Embedded Derivatives

Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

IService Concession Arrangements
!Customer Loyalty Programmes

; PAS 19- The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum
I Funding Requirements and their Interaction

;Amendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC-14,
. Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement

: Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

; IFRIC19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilitieswith Equity Instruments

! IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine

i IFRIC 21 Levies

IFRIC 22 . Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration •J

IFRIC 23

SIC-7

SIC-10

lSIC-15

SIC-25

SIC-32

Philippine

PIC Q&A
2006-01

PIC Q&A
2006-02

PIC Q&A

2007-01-

Revlsed

PIC Q&A
2007-02

PIC Q&A

2007-03

PIC Q&A

2007-04

PIC Q&A

2008-01-

Revised

: Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

i introduction of the Euro

; Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to Operating
: Activities

1Operating Leases - Incentives

Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entityor its
Shareholders

1Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
! Form of a Lease

: Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures.

j Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs

InteipretaUons Committee Questions and Answers

i PAS 18,Appendix, paragraph 9 - Revenue recognition for
!sales of property units under pre-completion contracts

jPAS27.10(d) - Clarification of criteria for exemption from
Ipresenting consolidated financial statements

1PAS 1.103(a)- Basis of preparation of financial statements if
jan entity has not applied PFRSs in full

PAS 20.24.37 and PAS 39.43 - Accounting for government
loans wnth low interest rates [see PIC Q&A No. 2C08-02]

PAS 40.27 - Valuation of bank real and other properties
acquired (ROPA)

PAS 101.7 -Application of criteria for a qualifying NPAE

PAS 19.78 - Rate used in discounting post-employment
benefit obligations



PIC Q&A

2008-02

PIC Q&A
2009-01

PIC Q&A

2009-02

PIC Q&A

2010-01

PIC Q&A

2010-02

PIC Q&A

2010-03

PIC Q&A
2011-01

PIC Q&A

2011-02

PIC Q&A
2011-03

PIC Q&A
2011-04

PIC Q&A
2011-05

PIC Q&A

2011-06

PIC Q&A

2012-01

PIC Q&A
2012-02

PIC Q&A

2013-01

PIC Q&A
2013-02

PIC Q&A
2013-03

(Revised)

PIC Q&A

[2015-01

: PIC Q&A
I2016-01
PIC Q&A
2016-02

PIC Q&A

2016-04

IPIC Q&A
12017-01

PIC Q&A

2017-02

PIC Q&A

2017-03

PAS 20.43 - Accounting for government loans with low
interest rates under the amendments to PAS 20

Framework.23 and PAS 1.23 - Financial statements prepared
on a basis other than going concern

PAS 39.AG71-72 - Rate used in determining the fair value of
government securities in the Philippines

PAS 39.AG71-72 - Rate used in determining the fair value of
government securities in the Philippines

PAS 1R.16- Basis of preparation of financial statements

PAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Cuixent/non-
current classification of a callable term loan

PAS 1.10(f)- Requirements for a Third Statement of
Financial Position

PFRS 3.2 - Common Control Business Combinations

iAccounting for Inter-company Loans

PAS 32.37-38 - Costs of Public Offering of Shares

IPFRS 1.D1-D8 - FairValueor Revaluation as Deemed Cost |
i i

PFRS 3, Business Combinations (2008), and PAS 40,
Investment Property - Acquisition of Investment properties -
asset acquisition or business combination?

PFRS 3,2 - Application of the Pooling of Interests Method for
Business Combinations of Entities Under Common Control in
Consolidated Financial Statements

Cost of a New Building Constructed on the Site of a Previous
Building

Applicability ofSMEIG Final Q&As on theApplication ofIFRS |
for SMEs toPhilippine SMEs I

iConforming Changes to PIC Q&As- Cycle 2013
i

IPAS 19 - Accounting for Employee Benefits under a Defined
IContribution Plan subject to Requirements ofRepublic Act
j(RA) 7641,The Philippine Retirement Law

Conforming Changes to PIC Q&As - Cycle 2015

Conforming Changes to PIC Q&As - Cycle 2016

PAS 32 and PAS 38 - Accounting Treatment of Club Shares
Held by an Entity

Application of PFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with
Customers' on Sale of Residential Properties under Pre-
Completion Contracts

jConforming Changes to PIC Q&As -Cycle 2017

PAS 2 and PAS 16 - Capitalization of operating lease cost as
part of construction costs of a building

PAS 28 - Elimination of profits and losses resulting from
transactions between associates and/or joint ventures

PIC Q&A jPAS 24 - Related party relationships between parents,



2017-04 i subsidiary, associate and non-controlling shareholder

PIC Q&A

2017-06

PIC Q&A

2017-06

PIC Q&A

2017-07

PIC Q&A

2017-08

PIC Q&A

2017-09

PIC Q&A

2017-10

PIC Q&A
2017-11

PiC Q&A
2017-12

PIC Q&A

2018-01

PIC Q&A

2018-02

PIC Q&A

2018-03

PIC Q&A

2018-04

PIC Q&A

2018-05

PIC Q&A

2018-06

PIC Q&A
2018-07

PIC Q&A

2018-08

PIC Q&A

2018-09

PIC Q&A

2018-10

PFRS 7 - Frequently asked questions on the disclosure
requirements of rmancial instruments under PFRS 7,
Financial Instruments; Disclosures

j PAS 2,16 and 40 - Accounting for Collector's Items

PFRS 10-Accounting for reciprocal holdings in associates
and joint ventures

PFRS 10 - Requirement to prepare consolidated financial
statements where an entity disposes of its single Investment
in a subsidiary, associate or joint venture

PAS 17 and Philippine Interpretation SlC-15 - Accounting for
payments between and among lessors and lessees

PAS 40 - Separation of property and classificdiion as
investment property

PFRS 10 and PAS 32 - Transaction costs Incurred to acquire
outstanding non-controlling interest or to sell non-controlling
interest without a loss of control

Subsequent Treatment of Equity Component Arising from
Intercompany Loans

Voluntary changes In accounting policy

Non-controlling interests and goodwill impairment test

Fair value of PPE and depreciated replacement cost

Inability to measure fair value reliably for biological assets
within the scope of PAS 41

Maintenance requirement of an asset held under lease

1Cost of investment in subsidiaries in SFS when pooling is
Iapplied

ICost of an associate, joint venture, or subsidiary in separate
Ifinancial statements
1Accounting for the acquisition of non-whoiiy owned subsidiary
1that is not a business

ClasslHcation of deposits and progress payments as
monetary or non-monetary items

IScope of disclosure of inventory write-down

Legend:

Adopted- means a paniailar standard or inierpreiation is relevant lo the operations of the entity (even if it has no effect or no material effecl on
ItiB financialstatements), far whicti there may be a related particularaccountingpolicymade in the financialstatements and/Orthere are current
Iransaetions the amounts or 6s/ances of which are disclosed on the face or in the nates of the financial statements.

Not Adopted - means a particular standard or interpretation is ellective but the entity did not adopt it due to eittierof these two reasons: 1) The
entity has deviated or departed from the requirements of such standard or interpretation; or 2) The standard provides for an option to earty adopt
it but the entity deddad oihenvise.

Not Applicable - means the standard or interpretation is not relevant at all to the operations of the entity.
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WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE REQUIRED UNDER SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED
Map of Conglomerate
December 31,2017

WCCCHI WMPHI DIHCI
..(100%) (100%) (88%)

X
APHC

(S6%)

T

CIMAR
(100%)

GIRPl
(M*)

TWGT

m

=1=
WPL

I

CWIL
:(10W)

)
)

LEGEND:

TWGI - The Wellex Group, Inc.
WPI - Waterfront Philippines, Incorporated
WCCCHI - Waterfront Cebu City Casino Hotel. Incorporated
WMCHI -Waterfront Mactan Casino Hotel, Incorporated
DIHCI - Davao Insular Hotel Company, Inc.
APHC - Acesite (Phils.) Hotel Coiporation
CIMAR - CIMA Realty Philippines, Inc.
GIRDI - Grand llocandia Resort and Development. Inc.
WWGI - Waterfront Wellness Group, Inc. (formely W Citigyms &Weliness, Inc.)
WPL - Waterfront Promotions Limited

CWiL - Club Waterfront International Limited

MBI - Mayo Bonanza, Inc.
WFC - Waterfront Food Concepts
WHMC - Waterfront Hotel Management Corp. (formerly Waterfront Management Corporation)
WEC - Waterfront Entertainment Corporation

MBI WFC
(100%)

T

WHMC
(100%)

ANNEXB

WEC

(100%)



ANNEXC

Page 1 of 9

WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES

Table of Contents

Supplementary Schedules of Annex 68-E
Required Under Securities Regulations Code Rule 68, As Amended (2011)

December 31,2017

A. Financial Assets

^ B. Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related
Parties and Principal Stockholders (Other than Related Parties)

C. Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are Eliminated
during the Consolidation of Financial Statements

D. Intangible Assets - Other Assets - (nothing to report)

E. Long-term Debt

F. Indebtedness to Related Parties - (nothing to report)

G. Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers - (nothing to report)

_ H. Capital Stock

Page
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WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE A - FINANCIAL ASSETS

DECEMBER 31,2017
(Amounts in thousands)

Name of Issuing Entity/Description
of Each Issue

Loans and receivables
Due from The Weliex Group, Inc.
Due from Pacific Rehouse Corp.
Due from Crisanta Realty

Development Corp.
Due from Philippine Estate Corp.
Due from Others
Cash on hand
Various banks

Receivables from various
customers
Other receivables
Notes receivable
Refundable deposits

Avallable-for-sale Investment

Number of

shares or

Principal Amount
of Bonds and

Notes

195,007

86.710

See Notes 4,5,7,8 and 10 to the Consolidated Rnancial Statements.

Amount Shown
in the

Statements of

Financial

Position

P882.189
541,781

362,858
104,554

58,666
3,072

355,218

216,029
12,332

195,007
23,019
15.955

P2.770.680

Value Based on

Market Quotations
at December 31,

2017

P882,189
541,781

362,858
104,554

58,666
3,072

355,218

216,029
12,332

195,007
23,019
15.955

P2.770.680

Annex C
Page 2 of 9

Income Received
and Accrued

PI 3,000
10,623

7,465

1,902

P32.990



)

WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE B-AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM DIRECTORS, OFFICERS.

EMPLOYEES. RELATED PARTIES AND PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS (Other than Related Parties)
DECEMBER 31.2017

(Amounts in thousands)

Annex C

Page 3 of 9

Name and

Designation of
Debtor

Balance at
beginning of Additions

Amounts

collected

Amounts

written off
Current Noncurrent

Balance at end

of the period

TheWellex
Group. Inc. P861.550 P46,127 P25,488 P - P882,189 P - P882,189

Pacific
Rehouse
Corp. 531.158 10,623 541,781 541,781

Crisanta Realty
Development
Corp. 347.662 15,196 14,930 347,928 362,858

Philippine
Estate Corp. 92,054 12,500 . 104,554 104,554

AcesHe Leisure
Entertainment
Corporation 195,007 195.007 195.007

See Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.



Name and

Designation of
Debtor

)
)

)

WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE C - AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM RELATED PARTIES WHICH ARE ELIMINATED

DURING CONSOLDIATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31,2017

Annex C

Page 4 of 9

Balance at

beginning of the Additions
Amounts

collected

Amounts

wn'tten off
Current Noncurrent

Balance at end

of the period

Waterfront
Cebu City
Casino Hotel.
Incorporated PI .510.820.507 P - P199.973.327 P - PI .310.847.180 P - PI .310.847.180

Waterfront
Hotel
Management
Corp. 72.040

Mayo
Bonanza, Inc. 343.547

Waterfront
Wellness
Group. Inc. 165,453

Waterfront
Food
Concepts,
Inc. 166.373

Davao Insular
Hotel
Company.
Inc. (5.425.438) 1.745.863 5.425.438 1.745.863 1.745.863

Acesite
(Phils.) Hotel
Corp. 123.072 123.072



Description

)
)

)

WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE D - INTANGIBLE ASSETS - OTHER ASSETS

DECEMBER 31,2017

Beginning
balance

P-

P-

Additions at

cost

P-

P-

Charged to
cost and

expenses

P-

P-

Charged to
other

accounts

P-

Other

charges,
additions

(deductions)

P-

P-

Annex C

Page 5 of9

Ending
Balance

P-
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WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE E - LONG-TERM DEBT

DECEMBER 31,2017

Title of Issue and Type of
Obligation

Social Security System Loans
Payable

Amount authorized by
indenture

P375.000.000

See Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Amount shown under

caption "Current portion
of long-term debt" In
related balance sheet

P375.000.000

Annexe

Page 6 of 9

Amount shown under

caption "Long-Term Debt"
in related balance sheet

P-



)
)

)
)

WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE F - INDEBTEDNESS TO RELATED PARTIES

DECEMBER 31. 2017

Name of Affiliates Balance at beginning of period Balance at end of period

Annex C

Page 7 of 9
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WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE G - GUARANTEES OF SECURITIES OF OTHER ISSUERS

DECEMBER 31,2017

Name of issuing entity of
securities guaranteed by the

company for which this
statement is filed

Title of issue of each
class of securities

guaranteed

Total amount
guaranteed and

outstanding

Amount owned by
person for which
statement is filed

Annex C

Pages of 9

Nature of

guarantee



Description

)

WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE H - CAPITAL STOCK

DECEMBER 31. 2017

Number of

Shares
authorized

Number of
shares Issued

and
outstanding

Treasury
Shares

Number of

shares held by
affiliates

Directors,
officers and
employees

Annexe
Page 9 of 9

Others
Common shares 5.000.000.000 2.498.991,753 1.128.466.800 41.790.430 1.328.734.523

See Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISS
FORM 17-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES
REGULATION CODE AND SRC RULE 17(2)(b) THEREUNDER

1. For the quarterly period ended

March 31, 2018

2. SEC Identification Number

: AS0948678

3. BIR Tax Identification No.

D80003978254NV

4. Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter

WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INC.

5. Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization

PHILIPPINES

6. Industry Classification Code (SEC Use Only)

7. Address of principal office



NO. 1 WATERFRONT DRIVE, OFF SALINAS DRIVE, LAHUG, CEBU
CITY Postal Code 6000

8. Issuer's telephone number, including area code

032-2326888

9. Former name or former address, and former fiscal year, Ifchanged since last
report

NOT APPLICABLE

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections8 and 12ofthe SRCor Sections4
and 8 of the RSA

Title of Each Class

COMMON SHARES-PI .00

PAR VALUE

Number of Shares of Common Stock Outstanding and Amount of Debt
Outstanding

2,498,991,753

11.Are any or all of registrant's securities listed on a Stock Exchange?

Yes

No

Ifyes, state the name of such stock exchange and the classes of securities
listed therein;

THE PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE

12. Indicate by check mark whether the registrant:



(a) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC
Rule 17 thereunder or Sections 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11(a)-1 thereunder,
and Sections 26 and 141 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines, during the
preceding twelve (12) months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports)

E

C

Yes

No

(b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (90) days

Yes

No

The Exchange does not warrant and holds no responsibility for the veracity of the facts and
representations contained in all corporate disclosures, including financial reports. All data
contained herein are prepared and submitted by the disclosing party to the Exchange, and
are disseminated solely for purposes of information. Any questions on the data contained
herein should be addressed directly to the Corporate Information Officer of the disclosing
party.

Waterfront Philippines, Incorporated

PSE Disclosure Form 17-2 - Quarterly Report References: SRC Rule 17
and

Sections 17.2 and 17.8 of the Revised Disclosure Rules

C

E

For the period
ended

•March 31,2018

Currency (indicate ppeo
units, if applicable)

Balance Sheet

Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Period Ended

March 31, 2018

4,946,985,163

10,843,613,472

2,110,788,267

Calendar Year Ended (Audited)

Dec 31, 2017

2,502,900,348

9,352,809,593

1,929,206,522



Total Liabilities

IRetained
IEarnings/(Deficit)

iStockholders' Equity

Stockholders' Equity - Parent

IBook Value per Share

Income Statement

4,730,080,044

(285,209,723)

6,113,533,428

5,269,556,059

2.11

3,335,294,986

(404,632,514)

6,017,514,607

5,150,133,268

2.06

Current Year

(3 Months)
Previous Year

(3 Months)
Current Year-To-Date

Previous Year-To-

Date

Operating Revenue 509,026,988 548,525,311 509,026,988 548,525,311

iOther Revenue 7,769,084 7,760,328 7,769,084 7,760,328

Gross Revenue
516,796,072 556,285,639 516,796,072 556,285,639

Operating Expense 350,036,628 326,454,290 350,036,628 326,454,290

Other Expense 67,188,197 73,572,293 67,188,197 73,572,293

Gross Expense 417,224,825 400,026,583 417,224,825 400,026,583

Net lncome/(Loss) Before
Tax

99,571,248 156,259,056 99,571,248 156,259,056

!Income Tax Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Net lncome/(Loss) After
Tax

99,571,248 156,259,056 99,571,248 156,259,056

; Net Income Attributable to
P̂arent Equity Holder

119,422,790
140,663,693

119,422,790
140,663,693

;Earnings/(Loss) Per Share
;(Basic) 0.048 0.056 0.048 0.056

Êarnings/(Loss) Per Share
i (Diluted) 0.048

0.056

0.048 0.056



Current Year (Trailing 12 months) Previous Year (Trailing 12 months)

Earnings/(Loss) Per Share (Basic)

Earnings/(Loss) Per Share
(Diluted)

0.029

0.029

Financial Ratios

Liquidity Analysis Ratios:

Current Ratio or Working
Capital Ratio

Quick Ratio

Solvency Ratio

Financial Leverage Ratios
Debt Ratio

Debt-to-Equity Ratio

^0^ Interest Coverage

Asset to Equity Ratio

Profitability Ratios

Gross Profit Margin

Net Profit Margin
Return on Assets

Return on Equity

Price I Earnings Ratio

Formula

Curent Assets I Current

Liabilities

(Current Assets - Inventory -
Prepayments)/ Current

Liabilities

Total Assets I Total Liabilities

Total Debt I Total Assets

Total Debt I Total

Stockholders' Equity
Earnings Before Interest and

Taxes (EDIT) I Interest
Charges

Total Assets / Total

Stockholders' Equity

Sales - Cost of Goods Sold or

Cost of service/ Sales

Net Profit I Sales

Net Income / Total Assets

Net Income / Total

Stockholders' Equity
Price Per Share I Earnings Per

Common Share

Current Year

March 31, 2018

2.34

2.29

2.29

0.44

0.77

4.59

1.77

0.32

0.19

0.01

0.02

0.048

0.157

0.157

Previous Year

March 31, 2017

1.38

1.32

2.89

0.35

0.53

6.07

1.53

0.41

0.28

0.02

0.03

0.056



PART I—FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements.

Please refer to Annex A.

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionand Results of
Operations.

Please refer to Annex B.

PART 11—OTHER INFORMATION

NONE

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Registrant: Waterfront Philippines, Inc.
Issuer Atty. Arthur R. Ponsaran

Signature and Title
Corp^ate Secretary

Date 05/11/2018

Principal Financial/AccountingOfllcer/Controller Precilla O. Toriano

Signature and Title
fmpliance Officer/Corporate Director of Finance

Date 05/11/2018



WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As of Marcb 31,2018

Annex A

Page 1 of 4

Unaudited Unaudited Audited

March 31,2018 Marcb3l,20l7 December 31,2017

ASSETS

Cumnt Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 5390135.886 389.470,968 345.929.975

Receivables • net 361.925584 300,537,689 228560,959

Notes receivable 115.142,975 •
195,007514

Insurance receivable 921.117,922 - -

Inventories 28532,004 27574,029 33.918.796

Due fromrelated parties - current ponton 2.905.698,980 1,557.170.284 1,601120,064

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 74,931,812 78.190535 97,563540

Total Current Assets 4,946,985,163 2.i^2.743,i0i 1502,900548

Noncorrent Assets

Receivables from Acestte Limited(BVI) - -
-

Duefromrelatedparties- noncurrent ponton 347,927,681 373553.414 347.927,681

CHxtdwill - - -

Propeny and equipment • net 5,436546.006 6572,199,167 6.390,497.964

Available-for-sale (AFS) investments 15,954.640 16,821.740 15,954.640

Deferred tax assets 56587520 17,307,895 64,994,497

Other noncurrent assets 39512,462 22.335.215 30,534,463

Total NoRcurrcttt Assets 5,896.628509 6.80i,9b,4il 6.849,909545

10543,613,472 9,154,660.936 9551809593

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current IJabillttes

Accountspayableand accnicd expenses 1541,113,179 1539,742.094 1,468515,052

Loans payable - cuncnt portion 375.000,000 375.000.000 375,000.000

Incometax payable - 232.052 70,613,726

Contract payable - - -

Provisions 72,289544 - -

Other current liabilities 322585.744 86,123,748 15577,744

Total Corretit LiabKIttes 2,110.788567 1.701,097,894 1.929506.522

Noncuiretit Liabilities

Loanspayable- noncurrentponion • - -

Deferred tax liabilities 1553551,944 1528,141563 1.275.069530

Retirementbenefits liability 120583,712 87581,363 124.481.905

Other noncurrent liabilities 1,244,956,121 49,937,196 6.537529

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 2,619591,777 1,465,461,122 1.406.088.464

Total Liabilities 4,^30,086,044 3,166.^59.016 3,335,294,986

EquityAttributable to EquityHoldersof the Parent Company
Capital stock 2,498,991,753 2.498,991.753 1498.991.753

Additionalpaid<in capital 706564557 706,364,357 706.364557

Revaluation surplusin propertyand equipment 2,211.108,991 2549524,496 1211.108.991

Foreigncurrencyiranslationadjustment 52542,000 41,686,179 51541000

Fair value reserve 2,063523 2,683,245 1063523

Retirement benefits reserve 83,695,458 101081569 83.695.458

Deficit:

Appropriated - -

Unappropriated (285,209,723) (620521,974) (404.631514)

TotalEquity Attributable to Equity Holders of theParentCompany 5,269556,059 5,081,010,625 5.I50.I33568
Non-controlling Interest 843,977569 907,091.295 867581539

10,843.613572 9,154.660.936 9551809593

See Notes to tke Con^Uh^tsedFlttooeioiSiete$oeott.



WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

As of March 31,2018

Annex A

Page 2 of4

Unaudited Unaudited Audited

Man:h3l.20l8 March 31,2017 Dccembcr3l, 2017

REVENUES

Hotel 500,760,5i5J4 542.927,160 2,057,910,622.00

Nonhoiel 8^66,473 5,598.151

Interest and other income 7,769,084 7,760,328 47,021,801

516,796,072 556385,639 2,104.932,423

COSTS AND EXPENSES

Cost ofsales

Hotel 339,114,597 316,925,285 1,005,632,603

Nonhotel 10,922,031 9329,005 415,150300

350,036,628 326,454390 1,420,782,863

166,759,445 229,831349 684,149,560

OTHER EXPENSES (INCOME)

Depreciation and amortization 49,379,447 51,463,327 355.307,819

Interest expense 17308,750 22,117,107 60,222,509

Penalties and other charges - - -

Impairment losses,baddebtswrittenoff andprovisions - -
632,751

Loss on sale on Acesite shares -

Interest income - -
(42376,067)

Foreign exchange losses (gains) - net - (8,141) 10365,853

Others • net - -
714,766

67,188,197 73372393 384,967,631

iNCOME(LOSS> BEFORE INCOME TAX 99371,248 156359.056 299,181,929

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (BENEFIT) - - 100,448,728

NET INCOME (LOSS) 99371348 156359,056 198,733301

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Appraisal on increase on propertyandequipment - - -

Foreign currency translation differences forforeign operations - - 10,855,821

Acniarialgains on defined benefit plan - -
(36,534,724)

Net change in fair value of AFS investment - - (867,100)

Deferred tax effect - 10,960,417

- - (15.585386)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 99371348 156359,056 183,147,615



WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AtorMarcb3l,20l8

Annex A

Pttgc 3 of 4

Unaudited Unaudited Audited

Match 31.2018 Match 31.1017 Dcccmbcr3l,2017

EQUITY ATTRIBtrrABI.F. TO EQUITV HOLDERS OF THE PARENT COMPANY
CtplMliUck-PI par valueper sluic 1A98.99I.7S3 2,498,991,753 2598,991.753

706J64JS7 7d<064557 706564557

Rcvaioailon Suipbif In Property and Equipment
Btlance at begiiiaingoryear

Othercafliprcliesiiveincome• net of tncainecn elfeet

Dcrccosnilionof land held uatier finiBce leate doe to ccquliitionofo tubthfiaty

Ul 1,108,991 2549524596 2549524.496

(138.415505)

Balanceat end ofyear laiKt08.991 2549524,496 2511,108.991

Unrealized Vaiuatloa Cain (Lois) on AFS iBvettmcaia

Balanceat besimntQof year ~ *
Valuationloss taken intoetpiitydunng the year . . •

Fortlga Correnty Tmestatiaa Adiostment

Balanceat bcgimtinsof year
Other comprehensive income • net ofincome lax cfTect

52511.000 4)586.179 41586.179

10555.821

Balance at end ofyear 52542500 41,686,179 52542.000

Dcfldt

Unappropriated
Balanceat begimiiagof year
Transferoficvalaatioa soiplax xbcorbodihioagh depreciation(at the year • net ofineomctax elfect

Change in retirementbenelils reserve

Net income for the year

(404532514)

119522.791

(760.985567)

140563593

(760,985567)

138515505

217,937548

Balance at endofyear (620521574) (404.632514)

Trrtal ileficit (285509.723) (6id5i 1.974) (404532514)

5,183,797578 4,976544.81) 5564574587

Fairvalue reserve, besinolngofthe year
Other comprehensive tncome^tel tax effect

2,063513 2583545 2583.245

(62a022)

Total fair vzliK reserve 2563513 2,683545 2.063,223

Retirementbenelits tcscrve.beginningof the year
Otha eomprcbcmivG income-net tax effect

83595558 102,082569 102582569

(18587,111)

Tottl ietiiemenl bcndtlt rcwrve S3.6S5.4S9

SJ694S6J)59

I02.0B2J69

S,0SIJtia63S 5.150.133.268



WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

As ofMarch 31,2018

Annex A

Page 4 or4

Unaudited Unaudited Audited

March 31.2018 Mutch 31,2017 December 31,2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITiES

Loss before income tax 99.571.249 156459.057 299,181.929

Adjustments for

Depreciation and amortization 49479.447 51.463427 355407.819

Interest expense 17408.750 22,117,107 60.222409

Loss on sale on sccsite shares - • -

Rctiicmcnt bcitefit costs (3,798.193) (11.136402) 21.196.913

Provisions (72,289444) • -

Unrealized foreign exchange loss (gain) -
(8.141) 10.855.821

Penaltiesand other charges - -
•

Loss(gain)on disposal of propertyand equipment - • "

Impairmentlosses - -
632.751

Interest inoome (7,769,084)
•

(42.276.067)

Operatingincomebefore workingcapital changes 82,902425 218,694,848 705.121.675

Decrease (increase) in:

Receivables (974,818408) (65,090442) 6.453.437

Inventories 5486,792 813,075 (5.731.692)

Prepaidexpenses and other cturent assets 22,631428 12412.430 (7.160475)

Increase (decrease) in:

Accounts p^ble and accrued expenses 127,101473 118.631438 49.626.652

Other current liabilities (176468459) (60,479,564) (10466.440)

Cash generatedfrom operations (913,463449) 224,782.185 738.043457

Interest received 7,769,084 -
1,902.783

Incometaxes paid (70,613.726) (69423.570) (176.585472)

Retirementplan contributionspaid - -
(21.450.000)

Benefitspaid - - (10417.597)

Interest paid (17408.750) (22.117.107) -

Net cash provided by operating activities (994,117.241) 133441408 ^31493.171

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisitionsofpropertyand equipment 904472411 161466456
-

Investmentin a subsidiary - - •

Due from related parties (1403478.916) (52426.458) (31477.221)

Proceeds fromsaleof an equityinterestinsubsidiary - - •

Proceeds fromsaleof propenyandequipment - -
(160,776.933)

Notes Receivable 79.864439 - (195.007414)

Increase in other noncurrent assets 290,463412 (89491490) (2.556.351)

Net cash used in investing activities (28,978454) 19,648408 (389,917,719)

Famiard

Years Ended December 31

Sc{iteniber30,2ai7 March 31.2017 December 31,2017

CASH FLOWS FROM nNANONG ACTIVITIES

(IncreasejDccreasein loanspayable - -

(Increase) Decreasein due fromrelatedparties - - -

Increase (decrease) in other noncunent liabiiitics 1,217,001406 32.185.999 (40.630)

Paymentofobligation under finance (case

Netcash providedby (used in) finaneingactivities 1,217,001406 32,185,999 (40,630)

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENT FOR THE YEAR

NETINCREASE (DECREASE) INCASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS 193,905.911 185,175415 141.634,822

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 345,929.975 204495.153 204.295.153

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 539,835,886 389.470.968 345.929,975
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WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Organization and Status of the Business

Corporate Information
Waterfront Philippines, Incorporated (the Parent Company) was incorporated in the

Philippines and registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on
September 23,1994. TheParent Company is46%-owned byTheWellex Group, Inc. (TWGI), an entity
registered and domiciled in the Philippines, which is listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).
The Parent Company holds equity interests in hotels and resorts, a fitness gym, entities engaged in
the international marketing and promotion of casinos, manufacturing of pastries, and hotel
management and operations.

The Parent Company and the following subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the Group) were
incorporated in the Philippines, except for Waterfront Promotion Ltd. (WPL) and Club Waterfront
International Limited (CWIL), which wereregistered in theCayman Islands.

Percentage of Ownership
Direct Indirect

Hotels and Resorts

WaterfrontCebu City CasinoHotel, Incorporated
(WCCCHI) 100

Waterfront MactanCasino Hotel, Incorporated (WMCHI) 100
DavaoInsularHotelCompany, Inc.(DEHCI) 98
Acesite (Phils.) HotelCorporation(APHC) 56
Grand Ilocandia Resort and Development, Inc. (GIRDI) 54

Real Estate

QMA Realty PhU., Inc. (CIMAR) - 56*
Fitness G)rm
Waterfront Wellness Group, Inc. (WWGI) 100

International Marketing and Promotion of Casinos
WPL 100

Mayo Bonanza, Inc. (MBI) 100
CWIL (through directownership in WPL) - 100
WaterfrontEntertainmentCorporation (WEC) 100

Pastries Manufacturing
WaterfrontFood ConceptsInc. (WFC) 100

Hotel Management and Operation
Waterfront Hotel Management Corp. (WHMC) 100 -

Hotels

Waterfront Cebu Oty Casino Hotel, Inc.

WCCCHI was incorporated on September 23, 1994 to manage and undertake operations of
Waterfront Cebu City Hotel and Casino (WCCHC). WCCCHI achieved a milestone during the year
by opening the doors of WCCHC on January 5,1998, with 158guest-rooms which has already grown
to 561 by the last quarter of 1999, six-storey convention center known as the Waterfront Convention
Center , previously known as Cebu International Convention Center and six-storey" Entertainment
Block. Located in this Entertainment Block is a 1,000-square meter5-starrestaurant,whichcompletes
5
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Ihe Company's restaurants row. On February 5/1998, PAGCOR commenced operations at the new
purposely-built casino at the Entertainment Block.

- Watetfront Convention Center-(WCC)
Waterfront Convention Center previously known as Cebu International Convention Center is a six-
storey building, especially-designed toadapt to any eventsizeand purpose, witha total gross area of
40,587 square meters, and has teen in operation since January 5,1998. Major amenities of the center
include ten (11) function rooms and two (2) Grand Ballrooms witha seatingcapacity of4,000. WCC is
the only conventionand exhibition centerof internationalstandard in Cebu City.

- Entertainment Block

TheEntertainment block is a six-storey building with a total gross areaof34,938 squaremeters. It is
comprised ofeleven (9) Food and Beverage entertainment outlets, an 11,000 square meters of public
andinternational gaming area thatincludes the"Casino Filipino", and62 hotel rooms andsuites

- Hotel Tower Block

The Hotel Tower block is a 22-storey building with a total gross area of 44,334 square meters. It
consists of a podium, containing the lobby, a food and beverage outlet, a reception, a shopping
arcade, three (3) pressfunction rooms, and a highriseblock of498 hotelrooms and suites.

The Hotel, with itsfairytale-inspired facade, isconveniently located in the center ofCebu City and is
withineasy reach from keybusiness, commercial and shoppingdistricts and is just 30minutesaway
from the Mactan International Airport.

Waterhront Cebu City Hotel & Casino has elegantly designed and well-appointed guest rooms
and suites. The 18th Floor is the Waterfront Ambassador Club with a two floor Club Lounge exclusive
for Ambassador Floor guests. Waterfront Ambassador Club guests enjoy butler service,
complimentary business services and a business boardroom fit for a group of up to 8 people,
equipped with a built-in LCD projector, a roll-up screen, PA and recording system, a local area
network (LAN) and a poly communication system. The 2ndfloor lounge isoutfitted with3 computer
stations, where guests can avail of complimentary WIFI access, flat-screen television entertainment,
anarray oflifestyle andbusiness magazines as well as newspapers andboard games. The hotel offers
a 10,000-square meter convention center, which is the largest convention center in the Visayas and
Mindanao, and is designed to adapt to multiple types ofevents. The convention center is equipped
with 10 function rooms, 2 executive board rooms, and 2 Grand Ballrooms,each seating 4,000people. It
hasplayed hosttoa myriad ofnational as well as regional events, conventions and conferences.

Waterfront Cebu City Hotel and Casino operates 9 F&B outlets, including a hotel coffees shop, a
Japanese restaurant, an Italian restaurantand a poolside snack bar. The hotel has a fully functional
business center paired with flat-screen computers, internet access and private boardrooms.
The newly renovated lobby was inspired based on two main objectives; first, to transform the
existing single dimension grand lobby into a multi-dimensional lifestyle-concept space that will
enhance tfie guests'experience whendhungand lounging in thelobby; and second, to improve traffic
patterns, through the construction of largercheck-in areas and through maximizing the Lobby'sthree
entrances. Waterfront CebuCity Hotel and Casino's massive, high-ceilinged lobby has always been
its principal attraction in fact it is touted as the largest hotel lobby in Visayas-Mindanao area.
Sparming 22 meters wide, 96 meters in long and 35 meters high and crisscrossed by hundreds of
peopleeach day, the hotel'sgrand lobby sets the whizzing pulsefor the hoteland dictates its overall
ambiance. Apart from improvements to the general structure of the lobby, the Lobby Loungeitself
willotfer an all-new dining and loungingexperience, with newly-installed glass panels,semi-closing
each side of the lounge.Fully-equipped bar areas have also beeninstalled in the middle of each of the
lounge's two sections, ensuring diners of more efficient smd prompt service. To erthance the overall
guest experience, the hotel has put together additional features such as nightly entertainment from
the city's top performers, and soulful afternoon music by soloists.
Among the hotel's newest pride comes in the form of delectable treats, introducing LobbyLounge's
new service concepts.

Aftemoon.Tea

Guestscan now relivethe splendor and grace of the old Englishdays with the LobbyLounge's
AfternoonTea offering. It is a tea and dessert conceptcreated to giveguests a whole new tea

6
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experience by giving emphasis on unique ways to enjoy a cup of tea. Guests can expect an array of
snack choices tocomplement their tea selection. The Afternoon Tea comes with a choice ofTraditional
Afternoon Tea with a Local Twist or Chocolate Temptations. For each selection, guests may opt for
tea, coffiee or hot chocolate.Eachselection also comes with a variety of snack options to go along with
their choice of beverage.

Wine Dispenser
Guests cannow take asipofLobby Lounge's extensive selection ofwine. The wine dispenser isan
innovative addition tothe wining anddining experience at the hotel. Itserves thepurpose of
allowing guests toselect among anarray ofbottles, through tasting bytheglass. This concept intends
togive guests anopportunity tosample different wines insmall amounts before deciding toorder a
full glass or bottle. Guests may testwines from thedispenser in three different amounts. This way,
guestscanchoose the perfect winefit for theirpalate. Toenjoy thewinedispenserservice, guests
must avail of the Wine Card which comes in prepaid or postpaid.

To complement theHotel's main lobby, a group check-in counter isconstructed, dedicated solely to
corporate and travel groups; a larger Duty Free shopping isalso provided; andan additional Casino
Filipino gaming space of2,350 square meters is launched together with it.This will notonly enhance
the current lobby, butwill also increase operational efficiency and addmore exciting features for the
hotel's customers.

Waterfront Mactan Casino Hotel, Inc.

Waterfront Mactan was incorporated onSeptember 23,1994 to manage and undertake operations of
Waterfront Mactan IslandHoteland Casino (WMIHC). WMCHl has completed PhaseI ofWaterfront
Mactan Island Hotel and Casino (WMIHC). It is located right across Mactan-Cebu International
Airport, ona land area ofapproximately 3.2 hectares. The hotel features 164 rooms andsuites, 6food-
and-beverage and entertainment outlets, with a total built-up area of38,000 square meters. Equipped
with oneof thelargest casinos in the Philippines, WMIHC has made Cebu the only city inSoutheast
Asia that offerscasinofacilities to transients while waitingfor their flights. For future development is
Phase n, consisting of200-guest rooms, which will bebuilt depending on tiie demands ofthemarket.
It has recently improved itsrooms by installing fax machines and Internet connections tocater to the
needs of its guests. Additionally, the company has acquired the newest hospitality software in the
industry, the OPERA Property Management System, which is designed to help run the hotel
operations at a greater level ofproductivity and profitability. This wasinstalled lastJanuary 14,2003.

The hotel is conveniently located in front of the Mactan International and Domestic Airport, just a
three-minute drive to the Industrial Zone, a fifteen-minute drive to the beaches of Mactan Island and
just diirty minutesaway fromCebu City's shopping and financial district

This year2016, dieproperty extended the Annex parking toprovide more slots for dieguests and this
yearalsomarksthe 20"* anniversary ofWaterfront Mactan Casino Hotel, Inc.

Davao Insular Hotel Company, Inc. or Waterfront Insular Hotel Davao, Inc.

DavaoInsular Hotel CompanyInc. was incorporated in die Philippines on July 3,1959 to engage in
theoperationofhoteland related hotelbusinesses. Thehotelisa 98% ownedsubsidiaryofWaterfront
Philippines, Incorporated and is operating under its tradingname Waterfront Insular Hotel Davao.
Waterfront Insular Hotel, the prestigious business hotel in a sprawling garden resortsetting, is only
five to ten minutes to the downtown area. Nestled along die picturesque Davao Gulf, its open air
corridorsprovidea refreshing viewof the hotel's beautifully landscaped tropical garden and thesea.

Witha greater area than any other hotel facility in the city,it is unmatched in servicing large business
meetings,conventions, and exhibit groups. The hotel consists of four low-risebuildings of 159 guest
rooms and suites, 5 function rooms and 6 F&6 outiets .Every room opens to a lanai overlooking a lush
garden the blue waters of the Davao Gulf or a sceniccoconut grove. Features included in the newly
re-opened hotel are the 5 Gazeboslocatedalong the beacharea. The hotel is every guesfs gateway to
the diverse, colorfuland richcultural heritage of DavaoCity.
Discover the richculturalheritageof Davaowhichstemsfromthe differentgroups and tribesthat
populated the area throughout its history and be astonished of artworks in the hotel lobby where it

7
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showcases pieces ofartifacts featuring thevariousobject d'art from thedifferent tribesand historical.

On 2015, the property re-opens its gymwith48squaremeters tocontinuously serve its guests and to
ensure guests satisfaction.

Acesite (Phils.) Hotel Corporation

The principal property of the Company is a 22-storey building known as the Manila Pavilion Hotel
located at the comer of United Nations Avenue and Maria Y. Orosa Street in Ermita, Manila. The
Hotel has 337 guestrooms and suites that have individually controlled central air conditioning,
private bathroom with bathtub and shower, multi-channel radio, color TV with cable channels and
telecommunications facilities. It has 3 function rooms and one of this is Alcuaz which can
accommodate 250-300 guests. The hotel has approximately 2,200 sq. meters of
meeting/banquet/conference facilities, and also houses several restaurants, such as Seasons Caf6
(coffee shop), the El Key (bar & lounge) and the Patisserie (bakeshop and deli items). Other guest
services and facilities include a chapel, swimming pool, gym, business center and a valet-service
basement carpark. Concessionaires and tenants include beauty salon, foot spa, photography services,
transportation services, travel agency, flower shop and boutiques. In addition. Casino Filipino -
Pavilion, owned andoperated by PAGCOR, occupies partof the first, second, diird, fourth and fifth
floors (a total of 12,696.17 sq. m.) of the building.

The Company acquired 100% interest of CIMAR, a former subsidiary of Acesite Limited (BVI) or
^ ALB, in October 2011. In July 2011, The Company and CIMAR executed a Memorandum of

Agreement (MOA), which effectively settle all pending cases and controversies between the two
parties. Infulfillment ofall the terms andconditions oftheMOA, CIMAR's stockholders including all
their nominees, agreed tosign, sell, transfer andconvey allexisting shares ofstocks ofCIMAR tothe
Company.

Year 2015, Alcuaz function thatcanaccommodate 250-300 guests wasrenovated and 111 rooms under
superior room category were opened.

WaterfrontHotelManagement Corporation {previously WateifrontManagement Corp.)

G-Hotel byWaterfront located in 2090 Roxas Boulevard, Malate Manila onNovember of2006 isbeing
managed byWaterfront Management Corporation. It isa seven-story building with10deluxe suites,
20 deluxe king and20 deluxe twin rooms which offers a personalized butler service. Aboutique hotel
boasting with its trendy Cafe Noir, pool bar Mirage and an elegant ballroom. Promenade, added to
the listof must-go places in the busy district of Manila. The black and white concept of its lobby is
distinctly G-Hotel.

On October 01, 2014, the BOD approved the cessation of the Company's business operations.
_ Consequently, the Company's activities were confined mainly to the collection of receivables,

settlement of liabilities, and other administrative matters, while maintaining its status as non-
operating entity seeking for other business opportunities.

Mayo Bonanza, Inc.

Mayo Bonanza, Incorporated (MBI), a 100% ownedsubsidiary ofWPI was incorporated on November
24,1995 in the Philippineswith principal activitiesin the operation and management of amusement,
entertainment, and recreation businesses. MBI is to extend the gaming business of the Company. Its
primary purpose is to establish, operate,and managethe business of amusemententertainment, and
recreation facilities for die use of the paying public. The Company entered into an agreement with
the Philippine Amusement and Gaming Corporation (PAGCOR) whereby the latter shalloperate the
former's slot machine outside of casinos in line with PAGCOR's slot machine arcade project.

On May 30,2016.BOD approved the cessationof the Company's business operations effectiveJuly01,
2016.
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Waterfront Entertainment Corporation

WPI has successfully established the country's first ever integrated hotel reservations and booking
system featuring a full-service, round-the-clock, 7 days a week Central Reservation Office. This
service ranges fi'om systems and solutions specializing in the operations hotel framework. It offers
specialize hotel consultancy services to hotel owners, operators, brands, developers, lenders and
investors with the support of hand-picked networks of experts covering all elements of the hotelor
hospitality business within a global perspective.

Waterfront Food Concepts, Inc.

Waterfront Food Concepts, Inc. is a pastry business, catering to pastry requirements of Waterfront
Cebu, Waterfront Mactan and other established coffee shops and food service channels outside the
hotels. Theproperty is located in thelobby level ofWaterfront Cebu City Casino Hotel. Ithasstarted
its operation on May of 2006. Its pastry products include cakes, cookies and sandwiches. The
subsidiary hasalready catered mostof the renowned coffee shops in thecityofCebu.

Waterfront Wellness Group, Inc

Thisnew subsidiary is located in the GroundLevel of Waterfront CebuCityCasino Hoteloccupying
617.53 squaremeters. WCitigyms and Wellness, Inc. isa fully equipped g5rm withspecialized trainers
and stateof theart equipments. Thegym offers variety ofservices from aerobic instructions to belly
dancing, boxing, yoga classes and a lot more. It also has its own nutritionist/dietician. Its highly
trainedtherapists perform massage and spa services to guestswithinthe hotel.

Citigym entices the public by opening the newly renovated room-The Citigym Hit Zone. This is
Citigym's "Do It Right" and smart solution to Cebu's growing interest in high intensity workout
routines.

Grand Uocandia Resort and Development, Inc.

As of March 31, 2000, the Company carried its investments in GIRDI at cost since it intended to
dispose such investment in the near future. In November 2000, GIRDI sold all of its property and
equipment, inclusive of the hotel facilities and related operating assets and the investment in
marketable securities.

Waterfront Promotions LimitecVClubWaterfront International Limited

Waterfront Promotion Ltd. was incorporated on March 6,1995, underand by virtue of the laws of
Cayman Islands to actas themarketing arm for theinternational marketing and promotion of hotels
and casinos under the trade name of Club Waterfront International Limited (CWIL). It is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Waterfront Philippines, Inc., a domestic company. Under the agreement with
PAGCOR, WPL has been granted the privilege to bring in foreign players under the program in
Waterfront Cebu City Hotel and Grand Uocandia Resort Development Corp. On the other hand,
CWIL is allowed to bring in foreign players in Waterfront Mactan Hotel. In connection to this, the
company markets and organizes groups of foreign players as participants to the Philippine
Amusement and Gaming Corporation's (PAGCOR) Foreign Highroller Marketing Program. The
company alsoentered intoagreements withvarious junketoperators to market thecasinos forforeign
customers. Under these agreements, thecompany grants incentive programs to junket operators such
as free hotel expenses, free airfares and rolling commissions.

Thecompany participated ina jointventure withJin Lin Management Corporation, itssole marketing
agentand co-venturer onSeptember 24,2001. Thisjointventurewas terminated on April15,2002.

The operations for Waterfront Promotions Limited, and likewise for Club Waterfront International
Limited had ceased for the year 2003in March due to the bleak market.
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Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated Hnancialstatements include the accounts of the Parent Company, as well as those of
its subsidiaries enumerated in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity if and only if, the
Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.The Group reassesseswhether or
not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control.

The Hnancialstatements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Parent
Company and are included in the consolidated financial statements f^om the date when control
commences until the date when control ceases.

Theaccoimtingpolicies ofsubsidiariesare beingaligned with the policies adopted by the Group.
Losses applicable to the NCI ina subsidiary are allocated to the NQ evenifdoingso causesthe NCI
to have a deficit balance.

Segment Reporting
Anoperating segment is a component of theGroup thatengages in business activities from which it
mayearn revenues and incurexpenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions
with any of the Group's other components. All operating results are reviewed regularly by the
Group's BOD, thechief operating decision maker of theGroup, to make decisions aboutresources to
be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance, and for which discrete Bnancial
information is available.

Segment resultsthat are reported to theGroup's BOD include items directly attributable to a segment
as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly
corporateassets, head office expenses and incometaxassetsand liabilities.
Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire property and
equipment.

The Group's businesses are operated and organized according to the nature of business provided,
with each segment representing a strategic business unit, namely, the Hotel operations. Marketing
operations and Corporate and Other Operations segments.
TheGroup's onlyreportable geographical segmentis the Philippines.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to theextent thatit is probable that theeconomic benefits will flow to the
Group and therevenue canbereliably measured. Income ismeasured at thefairvalueof the
consideration received, net of trade discounts, rebates, and other sales taxes or duties. The following
specificcriteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Rooms

Room revenue is recognized based on actual occupancy.

Food and Beverage
Foodand beveragerevenue is recognizedwhen orders are served and billed.

Rent and Related income

Rentcmd relatedincome on leasedareasof the Group's properties is accounted for on a straight-line
basis over the termof the lease, except forcancellable leases which are recognized at amountcollected
or collectible based on the contract provision.

Other Revenues

Other revenues are recognized upon execution of service or when earned.

Interest Income

Interest income is recognized as it accrues using the effective interest method.

10
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1, Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates.Short-term placements earn interest at
annual average of 0.13% to 2.88% in 2017and 2016and have average maturities ranging from 30 to 35
days for both years.

2. Receivables

This account consists:

March 2018 March 2017

Trade 138,763,006 176,959,069

Others 244,746,492 145,889,748

383,509,498 322,848,817

Less allowance for doubtful accounts -21,583,914 -22,311,128

Total 361,925,584 300,537,689

3. Inventories

This account consists of:

March 2018 March 2017

Food and Beverage
Operating Supplies
Others

13,449,833

11,056,623

3,825,548

9,618,500
16,411,609

1343,920

Total 28,332,004 27374,029

4. Related Party Transactions

In 2018, die Parent Company extended interest-bearing, collateral free advances to TWGl, PRC and
Crisanta Realty at a rate of two percent (2%) per annum. This also includes PHES which is dueand
demandable.

5. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

This account consists of:

March 2018 March 2017

Trade

Accrued Expenses
Others

9,127,282
1,034,693,409

297,292,488

543,441,145
596,241,732
100,059317

Total 1,341,113,179 1339,742,094

6. Loans Payable

This account consists of:

SSS Loan

SSS vs WPl. Et al civil case no. Q-04-52629 at regional trial court, Quezon City. On October 28,1999,
the Parent Company obtained a five-year term loan fromSSS amounting to P375.00 millionoriginally
due on October 29, 2004. The SSS loan bears interest at the prevailing market rate plus 3% or 14.5%
per annum, whichever is higher. Interest is repriced annually and is payable semi-annually. Initial
interest payments are due 180 days from the date of the release of ^e proceeds of die loan. The
repayment of the principal shall be based on eight (8) semi-annual payments, after a one-year grace
period.

11
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The SSS loan was availed to finance the completion of the facilities of WCCCHI. It was secured by a
first mortgage over parcels of land owned by WII and by the assignment of 200 million common
shares of the Parent Company owned by TWGI.The common shares assigned were placed in escrow
in the possession of an independent custodian mutually agreed upon by both parties.

On August 7,2003/ when the total loan obligation to SSS, including penalties and interest amounted
to P605.00 million/ the Parent Company was considered in default with the payments of the loan
obligations/ thuS/ on the same date/ SSSexecuted a foreclosure proceeding on Ae mortgaged parcels
of land. The SSS's winning bid on the foreclosure sale amounting to P198.00 million was applied to
penalties and interestamounting to P74.00 million and P124.00 million/ respectively. In addition/ the
ParentCompany accrued penalties charged by ^S amounting to P30.50 million covering the month
of August until December2003/ and unpaid interest expense of P32.00 million.

TheParentCompany/ WII and TWGI were given the right to redeem the foreclosed property within
one (1) year from October 17/ 2003/ the date of registration of the certificate of sale. The Parent
Company recognized the proceeds of the foreclosure sale as its liability to Wn and TWGI. The Parent
Company/ however/ agreed withTWGI to offset this directly against its receivable from the latter. In
August2004, the redemption periodfor theParentCompany, WII and TWGI expired.

The remaining balance oftheSSS loan issecured bytheshares ofstock of theParentCompany owned
byTWGI andshares ofstock ofWII numbering 235 million and 80million shares, respectively.

The Parent Company, at various instances, initiated negotiations with theSSS forrestructuring ofthe
loan but was not able to conclude a formal restructuring agreement.

On January 13,2015, the RTC ofQuezon City issued a decision declaring null andvoid the contract of
loan anddierelated mortgages entered into bythe Parent Company with SSS ontheground thatdie
ofdcers and theffiS arenotauthorized toenterthesubject loan agreement. In thedecision, theRTC of
Quezon City directed the Company to return to SSS the principal amount of loan amounting to
P375.00 million and directed the SSS to return to the Company and to its related pardes ddes and
documents held by SSSas collaterals.

On January 22,2016, SSS appealed with the CA assailing the RTC ofQuezon City decision infavor of
the Parent Company, etal. SSS filed its Appellant's Brief andthe Parent Company filed a Motion for
Extensionof Time to file Appellee'sBriefuntil May16,2016.

On May 16,2016, the ParentCompany filed itsAppellee's Brief with the CA, furnishing the RTC of
Quezon City andtheOffice oftheSolicitor General with copies. SSS was given a period toreply butit
did not file any.

OnSeptember 6,2016, a resolution for possible settlement wasreceived bytheParentCompany from
the CA. However, onFebruary 7,2017 a Notice toAppear dated December 7,2016 was received by
theParentCompany from thePhilippine Mediation Center Unit- CourtofAppeals (PMCU-CA)
directing theParent Company and^S toappear inperson andwithout counsel at thePMCU-CA on
January 23,2017 tochoose their mediator and thedate ofinitial mediation conference and toconsider
the possibility ofsettlement. Since tiieNotice to Appearwas belatedly received, the partieswerenot
able to appear before the PMCU-CA.

OnFebruary 27,2017, a Second Notice toAppearissued by thePMCU-CA directing all parties to
appearon February 27,2017 at a specified timewas received by theParentCompany onlyon
February 27,2017 afterthespecified timeof the meeting. TheParentCompany failedto appear.

OnJune30,2017, a resolution issuedby the CA,resolved tosubmittheappealfor decision.

As at the report date, there had been no updates on the matter.
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7.The earnings (loss) per share is computed as follows:

March 2018 March 2017

Net Income (Loss) 119,422,790 140,663,693

Weighted Average Number of Shares
Outstanding 2,498,991,753 2,498,991,753

Earnings (Loss) per share 0.048 0.056

There are no dilative potential shares as of March 31,2018 and 2017.

8. Lease Agreement with Philippine Amusement and Gaming Corporation (^FAGCOR')
The Parent Company, in behalfof WCCCHI and WMCHl,entered into lease agreements with
PAGCOR. Theleaseagreement of WCCCHI with PAGCOR covered the Main Area (8,123.60 sq.m.).
SlotMachine Expansion Area(883.38 sq.m.). Mezzanine (2,335 sq.m.) and 5diFloorJunketArea (2,336
sq.m.) fora totalareaof13,677.98 sq.m. whichcommenced on March 3,2011 and March 16,2011, for
theMainArea andSlotMachine Expansion Area, respectively. The lease agreement of WMCHl with
PAGCOR covered the MainArea (4,076.24 sq.m.)and Chip WashingArea (1,076 sq.m.)for a totalarea
of 5,152.24 sq.m. which was last renewed on March 21,2011. Bothleases expired on August 2,2016.
Thereafter,PAGCOR paid the WCCCHI and WMCHl rental on a month-to-month basis.The lease
was renewed on February 15,2018, for a period of 1 year.

APHC also has a leaseagreement withPAGCOR covering the Main Area(7,093.05 sq.m.). Expansion
AreaA (2,130.36 sq.m.). Expansion Area B(3,069.92 sq.m.) and AirHandlingUnitArea (402.84 sq.m.)
for a total lease area of 12,696.17 sq.m. The lease agreement was last renewed on December 1, 2010
and expired on December 31,2017. Asat December 31,2017, PAGCOR continued to operatea portion
of the lease area on a month-to-month basis while completing its pullout from APHC.

9. Other Lease Agreements

Group as Lessor
Lease Agreements with Concessionaires
WCCCHI, WMCHl,DIHCl and APHC have lease agreements with concessionairesfor the
commercial spaces available in theirrespective hotels. These agreements typically run fora periodof
less than one year, renewableupon the mutual agreementof the parties.
Rent revenue recognized as partof"Rentand related income" in profitor lossand amounted to
P56.39 million, P85.29 million and P135.63 million in 2017,2016 and 2015, respectively.

Group as Lessee
Land under Operating Lease
On September 15,1994,Waterfront Hotel and ResortSdn. Bhd. (WHR), a former related party,
executed a lease contract (the Agreement) widi Mactan Cebu International Airport Authority
(MOAA) for the leaseof certain parcelsof land where the hotels were constructed. On October14,
1994, WHRassigned its rightsand obligations under the MCIAA contracts to WCCCHI and WMCHl.

10. Commitments and Contingencies

The following are the significant commitments and contingencies involving the Group:

a. On November 10,2008, the Parent Company received a preliminary assessment notice from the BIR
for deficiency taxes for the taxableyear 2006. On February 9,2009, the Parent Company sent a protest
letter to BIR contesting the said assessment. On February 18,2009, the RegionalOffice of the BIR sent

13
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OFnNANCIAL CONDITIONS AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Beloware the results of operations of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries, for the period ending
March 31,2018and 2017together with its financial conditions as of the same period.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

March 2018 March 2017

Revenues 516,796,072 556,285,639

Less:Costs and Expenses 350,036,628 326,454,290

Net Income (Loss) Before Fixed Financial and Other
Charges

166,759,445 229,831,349

Less: Fixed Financial and Other Charges (Dep'n and
Amorfn, and Interest)

67,188,197 73,572,293

Income (Loss) before Income Tax
99,571,248 156,259,056

Income Tax Expense ( BeneEt) 0.00 0.00

Income (Loss) before Share in Minority Interest 99,571,248 156,259,056

Share of Minority Interest -19,851,543 15,595,363

Net Income (Loss) 119,422,790 140,663,693

Earnings (loss) Per share 0.048 0.056

HNANCIAL CONDITION

March 2018 March 2017

Assets

Current assets 4,946,985,163 235Z743,505

Non-current Assets 5,896,628,309 6,801,917,431

Total Assets 10,843,613,472 9,154,660,936

liabOities and Stockholders' Equity

Current Liabilities 2,110,788,267 1,701,097,894

Non-current Liabilities 2,619,291,777 1,465,461,122

Total Stockholders' Equity 5,269,556,059 5,081,010,625

Minority Interest 843,977,369 907,091,295

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity 10,843,613,472 9,154,660,936
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Period ended March 31,2018compared to Period Ended March 31,2017

Income Statement

Hotels and other subsidiaries gross revenues for the 1st quarter of 2018 and 2017 are Php 516.80
millionand Php 556.29 million respectively, decreased by 7% from last year. Consolidated costs and
expenses for all properties increased by7%as compared from lastyear.

Seasottality or Cyclicality ofInterim Operations

1STquarter

Theoccupancy for the two (2) hotels, WCCCHI and WMCHI, are high during the monthsofJanuary
and Februarybecause of thecelebration of the FeastofSto.Nifio better,renownedas the ^Sinulog" as
well as the celebration of the Chinese New Year. Many visitors come to Cebu during this time just to
witness and participate in the festivities. Sinulog is one of the city's main pull for tourists as well as
other locals. The celebration of the Chinese New Year also added to the Company's revenues. As we
all know, thecountryis full ofChinese nationalities and businessmen and celebrating theirNewYear
would reallybe an advantage to the hotels in terms of revenues.

On March18,2018,, a firebrokeout at the Hotel of Acesite (Phils.) Hotel Inc.damaging several floors,
casinos and restaurants. Operations have been suspended since then. It is expected that operations
will continue after damages are repaired.

March 2018 March 2017

Occupancy Percentage 78% 79%

Average Room Rates 2,634 2,457

Food Covers 306,506 298,854

Average Food Checks 412 381

Average Food Costs 38% 36%

Occupancy Percentage
The occupancy percentage is down by 1% as compared to 1st quarter of last year. Occupancy
percentage is computed by dividing the totalnumber of rooms sold over the total number of rooms
available for sale.

Average Room Rate
Average room rate is 7% higher compared as compared from last year. Average room rate is
computed by dividingthenet rooms revenueover the totalnumber of rooms sold.

Food Covers

Food covers this quarter increased by 3% compared to the 1st quarter of last year. Food covers
pertains to the number of guests that availed of the restaurants services.

Average Food Check
The average food check or averageconsumption per guest this quarter increased by 8% compared to
the 1st quarter of last year. Average Food Check is derived by dividing the total food and beverage
revenue by total food covers.

Average Food Cost
The average food costs increased by 2%. Average Food Cost is computed by dividing the total food
and beverage revenue by total food cost
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a letter to the ParentCompany informingthe latter that the docketwas returned to RevenueDistrict
Ofhce for reinvestigationand further verification.

On December 8,2009, the Parent Company received BIR'sFinal Decisionon Disputed Assessment for
deficiency taxesfor the 2006 taxable year.Thefinaldecision of theBIR seeks to collectdeficiency
assessments totaling to P3.3D million. However, on January 15,2010, the Parent Company appealed
the hnal decision of the BIR with the Court of Tax Appeals (CPA)on the grounds of lack of legal and
factual bases in the issuance of the assessments.

In its decisionpromulgated on November13,2012,the CTAupheld the expanded withholding tax
(EWT) assessment and cancelled the VATand compromise penalty assessments. The Parent
Company decided not to contest the EWT assessment.The BIR filed its motion for reconsideration
(MR) on December 4,2012and on AprU 24,2013, theCourt issueditsamended decision reinstating
theVAT assessment TheParent Company filed itsMR on theamended decision thatwasdenied by
the CTA in its resolution promulgated on September 13,2013.

TheParentCompany appealed thecase to theCTA sitting EnBanc on October 21,2013. TheCTA En
Banc decision promulgated onDecember 4,2014 affirmed theVAT and EWT assessments. TheEWT
assessment was paid on March 3,2013.

TheCTA EnBanc decision was appealed to theSConFebruary 5,2015 covering theVAT assessment
only. Asat December 31,2017, theParentCompany is stillawaiting theSCs decision.

_ Management and itslegal counsels believe that the position ofthe Parent Company issustainable,
andaccordingly, believe that the Parent Company does not have a present obligation (legal or
constructive) with respect to the assessment.
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Revenues and Earnings per Share
Revenuesdecreased by 1%, Php 516.80 millionfor the 1st quarter of 2018 and Php 556.29 million of
the same quarter last year and operating expenses increased by 7%.

GOP at Php 166.76million in 2018and Php 229.83million in 2017.

Earnings per share this quarter is at Php 0.048 whilesame quarter last year was at Php 0.056.

Fixed Financial and Other Charges
Total fixed financial and othercharges, Php 67.19 million, reflecting a significant costreduction of9%
from die previous year's PHP 73.57million.

This account includes the depreciation and interest expense fromSSSLoan.

Interest expense this quarter is lowered by 19% or Php 4.31 million.

HNANCIAL CONDITION

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cashand cashequivalents as of the1stquarter of thisyear isat Php539.84 million higherby
Php 150.36 millionfrom last year or 39%.

Receivables

Receivables for theperiodincreased by20% fromPhp300.54 million 1stquarter last
year to Php 361.93 million 1st quarter this year.

Notes Receivable

TheGroupextended loanstoAcesite Leisure and Entertainment Corporation (ALEC) and bear
interestat 4% per annum.Theloanis guaranteed byanotherentityin behalfofALEC.

Insurance Receivable

On March18,2018, a fire brokeout at die Hotel of Acesite (Phils.) Hotel Inc.damaging several floors,
casinos and restaurants. Operadons havebeensuspended since then. TheHotel has insurance
coverage toanswer forthedamages sustained. It isexpected thatoperations willcontinue after
damages are repaired.

Inventories

Inventory this year showed an increased of 3%..

Due from related parties-current portion
This account increased by87% from lastyear's1stquarter. This represents interest bearing advances
from TWGI and PRC. PHES and ALEC which are due and demandable.

Due from related parties-noncurrent portion
CrisantaRealty at a rate of two percent(2%) per annum isclassified as non-currentdue in 5years.

Property, Plant and Equipment
The account reflects a decrease of 15% or Php 935.35million from last year.

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
This account had increased to 8%or Php 101.37million from last year.

Loans Payable
Theaccount remainsstaticat Php 375million. This refers to loanwith Social SecuritySystem.
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Key Variable and Other Qualitative and Quantitative Factors:

a. Any known Trends, Events or Uncertainties-(material impact on liquidity)-NONE
b. There are no events that will trigger direct or contingent financialobligation that is
material to the company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.
c. There are no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations
(including,contingentobligations), and other relationshipsof thecompany with
unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the reporting period.
d. There are no material commitments for capital expenditures, general purpose of
such commitments, expected sources of funds for such expenditures.
e. From continuing operations, the Company is not exposed to any significantelements of incomeor
lossexcept for those already altfecting profit or loss.
f. There are no significant elements of incomeor loss that did not arise from the issuer's continuing
operations other than thosealready affecting profit or loss.

Risk Management Structure
TheBOD is mainly responsible for theoverall riskmanagement approach and for the approval of risk
strategies and principles of the Group. It also has the overall responsibility for the development of
risk strategies, principles, frameworks, policies and limits. It establishes a forum of discussion of the
Group's approach to risk issues in order to make relevant decisions.

Risk Management Committee
_ Risk management committee is responsible for the comprehensive monitoring, evaluation and

analysis of theGroup'srisksin linewith the policies and limits set by the BOD.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The Group's principal financial instruments comprise ofcash and cash equivalents, receivables, due
fi-om related parties, AFS investment, accounts payable and accrued expenses (except for local taxes
andoutputVAT, withholding taxes anddeferred income), other current liabilities, loans payable, and
other noncunent liabilities.These financial instruments arise directly from operations.

The main risks arising from the financial instruments of the Group arecredit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk. There has been no change to the Group's exposure to risks or the maimer in which it
manages and measures the risks in prior financial year. The Group's management reviews and
approves policiesfor managingeach of these risks.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet itscontractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group's cash in
banks, receivables and advances to related parties. The Group has established a creditpolicy under
which each new customer isanalyzed individually for creditworthiness before theGroup's standard
payment anddelivery terms andconditions areoffered. The Group's review includes external ratings,
if they are available, financial statements, credit agency information, industry information, and in
some cases bank references.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by establishing credit limits and maximum payment
period foreach customer, reviewing outstanding balances tominimize transactions with customers in
industries experiencingparticular economicvolatility.

With respect to credit risk from other financial assets of the Group, which mainly comprise of due
from related parties, the exposure of the Group to credit risk arises from the default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposureequal to the carryingamount of these instruments.
There is no other significant concentration of credit risk in the Group.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due.

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group's operation and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Additional short-term
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funding is obtained through related party advancesand from bank loans,when necessary.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the BOD, which has established an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Group's short, medium
and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk
by maintaining adequate reserves, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. For the Group's short-term funding,
the Group's policy is to ensure that there are sufficient working capital inflows to match repayments
of short-term debt.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or cash flows of a financial instrument of the Group will
fluctuate due tochange in marketprices. Marketriskreflects interest rate risk, currency riskand other
price risks.

Since the Group's loan in U.S. dollar had been fully paid in March 2016, the Group is not anymore
significantlyexposed to changes in foreigncurrencyexchange rates.

Interest Rate Risk

Ceish flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flow of the rinancial instruments will
fluctuate because of thechanges in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that
ttie fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.
The Group's financial instrument tihat is exposed to interest risk is the interest-bearing funds made
available by the Parent Company to WCCCHI to finance the construction of the Cebu City Hotel
Project. Such funds were substantially sourced from a P375 million loan from SSS, aswell as thestock
rights offering of the Parent Company. The Parent Company is charging WCCCHI on the related
interests and penalties onthecontention that thelatter benefited from theproceeds of tihe SSS loan

Equity Price Risk
Equity price risk is the risk that fair value offuture cash flows ofa financial instrument will fluctuate
b^ause of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk),
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its
issuer, or Actors affecting allsimilar financial instruments traded in themarket.
The Group isexposed toequity price risk because ofitsinvestment inshares ofstock ofWII which are
listed in die PSE totaling to86,710,000 shares as at December 31,2017 and 2016.

The Group monitors thechanges in theprice of theshares ofstock ofWII. In managing itsprice risk,
theGroup disposes ofexisting oracquires additional shares based on theeconomic conditions.

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, current portion of due from related
parties, accounts payable and accrued expenses and other current liabilities approximate their fair
values due to the short-term maturity of these instruments.

The fair value of interest-bearing due from related parties and loans payable is based on the
discounted value ofexpected future cash flows using theapplicable market rates for similar types of
instruments as of thereporting date, thus,the carrying amountapproximates fairvalue.

The fair value of AFS investment was determined using the closing market price of the investment
listed on the PSE as of December 31,2017 and 2016.

Capital Management
Theprimaryobjective of theGroup'scapital management is toensureitsability to continue as a going
concern and that it maintains a strong credit ratingand healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximize shareholder value. Capital is defined as the invested money or invested
purchasing power, the net assets or equity of the entity. The Group's overall strategy remains
unchanged from 2017 and 2016.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
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shareholders/ return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the
objectives/ policies or processes in 2017and 2016. For purposes of the Group's capital management
capital includes all equify items Qiatare presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The Group is not subject to externally-imposedcapital requirements.
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WATERFRONTPHIUPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE OF AGING OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE FOR SEC REPORTING

As of March 31,2018

Trade Receivables 0-30 days 31-60 days 61-90 days 91-120 days 121 days over Total

Waterfront CebuCityCasinoHotel Inc 18,234,066.85 12,949,559.04 2,226,777.82 3,242,433.94 12,103,719.33 48.756,556.98
Waterfront AirportHotel and Casino 20,574,460.90 439,532^17 230,469.04 25,825.40 34,320.94 21,304,608.55
Waterfront Insular Hotel Davao 6,082,328.75 1,240,676.87 1,662,359.27 795,341.92 3,671,300.25 13,452,007.06
Manila Pavilion Hotel 12,816,751.41 1,068,226.74 232,144.50 254,828.80 11,314,721.87 25,686,673.32

Total 57,707,607.91 15,697,994.92 4,351,750.63 4,318.430.06 27,124.08239 109,199,845.91
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSIONSEC
FORM 17-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES
REGULATION CODE AND SRC RULE 17(2)(b) THEREUNDER

1. For the quarterly period ended

June 30,2018

2. SEC Identification Number

AS0948678

3. BIR Tax identification No.

D80003978254NV

4. Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter

WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INC.

5. Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization

PHILIPPINES

6. Industry Classification Code (SEC Use Only)

7. Address of principal office



NO. 1 WATERFRONT DRIVE, OFF SALINAS DRIVE, LAHUG, CEBU
CITY Postal Code 6000

8. Issuer's telephone number. Including area code

032-2326888

9. Former name or former address, and former fiscal year. Ifchanged since last
report

NOT APPLICABLE

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the SRC or Sections 4
and 8 of the RSA

Title of Each Class

jCOMMON SHARES - P1.Q0 »
!PAR VALUE i2.498.991,7t)d

iNamber of Shares of Common Stock Outstanding and Amount of Debt
Outstanding

11. Are any or all of registrant's securities listed on a Stock Exchange?

Yes

No

Ifyes, state the name of such stock exchange and the classes of securities
listed therein:

THE PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE

12. Indicate by check mark whether the registrant:



(a) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC
Rule 17 thereunder or Sections 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11(a)-1 thereunder,
and Sections 26 and 141 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines, during the
preceding twelve (12) months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports)

E Yes

^ No

(b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (90) days

E

Yes

No

The Exchange does not warrant and holds no responsibilityfor the veracity of the facts and
representations contained in all corporate disclosures, including financial reports. All data
contained herein are prepared and submitted by the disclosing party to the Exchange, and
are disseminated solely for purposes of information. Any questions on the data contained
herein should be addressed directly to the Corporate Information Officer of the disclosing
party.

Waterfront Philippines, incorporated

PSE Disclosure Form 17-2 - Quarterly Report References: SRC Rule 17
and

Sections 17.2 and 17.8 of the Revised Disclosure Rules

-June 30.2018tended
i
I

|~
Currency (Indicate ncort
units, if applicable)

Balance Sheet

Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Period Ended

June 30.2018

4.737.514.668

10.603.977.503

1.437.941.560

Calendar Year Ended (Audited)

Dec 31.2017

2.502.900.348

9.352.809.593

1.929.206.522



jTotal Uabilities

iRetained
iEaminss/(Deficlt)

IStockholders* Equity
i

iStockholders' Equity- Parent

4,374,552,670

(164,041,324)

6,229,424,833

5,390,724,458

3,335,294,986

(404,632,514)

6,017,514,607

5,150,133,268

iBookValueper Share 2.16
2.06

Income Statement

! Current Year

(3 Months)
Previous Year

(3 Months)
Current Year-To-Date

Previous Year-To
Date

Operating Revenue 477,452,321 445,561,196 986,479,310 994,086,508

i

Other Revenue
7,769,083 7,456,002 15,538,167 15,216,330

•

Gross Revenue
485,221,404 453,017,198 1,002,017,477 1,009,302,838

Operating Expense 308,457,008 296,700,662 658,493,636 623,154,951

Other Expense 68,642,075 56,032,302 135,830,273 129,604,595

"

Gross Expense 377,099,083 352,732,964 7943,23,908 752,759,546

Net lncome/(Loss) Before
Tax

108,122,320 100,284,234 207,693,569 256,543,292

Income Tax Expense
*

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Net lncome/(Loss) After
Tax

108,122,320 100,284,234 207,693,569 256,543,292

Net Income Attributable to
Parent Equity Holder

113,399,313 82,191,813 232,822,105 238,450,871

Eamlngs/(Loss) Per Share
(Basic) 0.045 0.033 0.093 0.095

Eamlngs/(Lo8s) Per Share ,
(Diluted) 0.045 0.033 0.093 0.095



Eamings/(Loss) Per Share (Basic)

Eamlngs/(Loss) Per Share
(Diluted)

Current Year (Trailing 12 months)

0.054

0.054

Rnancial Ratios

Liquidity Analysis Ratios:

Current Ratio or Working
Capital Ratio

Quick Ratio

Solvency Ratio

Financial Leverage Ratios
Debt Ratio

Debt-to-Equity Ratio

Interest Coverage

Asset to Equity Ratio

Profitability Ratios

Gross Profit Margin

Net Profit Margin
Return on Assets

Return on Equity

Price / Earnings Ratio

Book Value

Formula

Current Assets / Current
Liabilities

(Current Assets - Inventory -
Prepayments)/ Current

Liabilities

Total Assets / Total Liabilities

Total Debt / Total Assets

Total Debt / Total
Stockholders' Equity

Earnings Before Interest and
Taxes (EBIT) / Interest

Charges
Total Assets / Total

Stockholders' Equity

Sales - Cost of Goods Sold or
Cost of service/ Sales

Net Profit / Sales

Net Income / Total Assets

Net Income / Total
Stockholders* Equity

Price Per Share / Earnings Per
Common Share

Total Common Stockholder's
Equity-Parent/No. of Common

Shares

Previous Year (Trailing 12 months)

0.129

0.129

Current Year

June 30,2018

3.29

3.22

2.42

0.41

0.70

2.50

1.70

0.34

0.21

0.02

0.03

0.093

2.16

Previous Year

June 30,2017

1.36

1.30

2.88

0.35

0.53

7.55

1.53

0.38

0.25

0.03

0.04

0.095

2.08



PART I—FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements,

Please refer to Annex A.

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations.

Please refer to Annex B.

PART II—OTHER INFORMATION

^ NONE
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer has duly
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Signature and Title
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Date 08/09/2018

Principal Financial/Accounting Officer/Controller PrecillaO. Toriano

Signature and Title
Coi^liance (Officer/Corporate Director ofFinance

Date 08/09/2018



WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATEDANDSUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As ofJune 30,2018

Unaudited

June 30,2018

UnaodUed

June 30,2017

Annex A

Page I ofS

Audited

December 31,2017

ASSETS

Current Assctt

Cash and cash ciiuivalenis 585,065,914 449,126,088 345,929.975

Receivables •net 222,703,762 254.794368 228360.959

Notes receivable 129.106,906 -
195.007314

Insurance receivable 963,089.200 - -

Invcniories 26.996J2B 27,764.819 33.918.796

Due Trom related paities • current portion 2,728312,699 1.614.831381 1.602,120.064

Prepaid expenses and other cttrrent assets 82339359 85.831333 97,563340

Total Current Assets 4,'̂ iV,i>l4.66B 14ii34i6s9 2302,900348

Nonenrrent Assets

Receivables from Acesite Limited (BVI) -
• -

Due from related parties • itoncurrentportion 347,927,681 373353,414 347,927.681

Proper^ and equipment - net 5,418329392 6.483358393 6390.497.964

Available-for>saIe (AFS) investments 15354.640 16,821,740 15.954.640

Deferred lax assets 62.768,808 27333,720 64.994.497

Other noncurrent assets 21,181,814 21.257386 30334,463

Total Noncurrent Assets 5366,462335 6,922.225.053 6,849.909,245

10,603,977303 9354373.142 9352.809393

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Accotntis payableand accmedexpenses 744,152.708 1,293.729,020 1.468,315.052

Loaru payable • curreni portion 375,000,000 375.000,000 375.000,000

Income tax payable - -
70.613.726

Contract payable - - -

Provisions - 4,468,009 -

Other current liabilities 318.788352 112,038,813 15377.744

Total Current Liabilities 1,437,941360 1.785335,842 1,929306322

Noncurrent Liabilities

Loanspayable• noncuncnl poitlon - - -

Deferred tax liabilities 1364.167382 1,321.126,904 1,275.069330

Retirementbenefits liability 88,904329 90.558,386 124,481.905

Other noneurrent liabilities 1383338399 51.173.433 6337329

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 2336,611,110 1,462,858.723 1,406,088,464

Total Uabilltles 4374352370 3348,094365 3335394,986

EquityAttributable to EquityHolilersof the Parent Company
Capital stock 2398391,753 2,498,991,753 2,498,991,753

Additionalpaid-incapital 706364357 706364357 706364357

Revaluation surplusin property and equipment 2311.108,991 2349324.496 2311.108,991

Foreigncurrency translationadjustment 52342,000 41,686.179 52.542.000

Fair value reserve 2,063,223 2,683345 2,063,223

Retirement benefits reserve 83,695.458 102.082369 83,695,458

Deficits

Appropriated - -

Unappropriated (164,041324) (504.442375) (404.633314)

Total EquityAttributable to EquityHoldersof the Parent Company 5390,724,458 5.196,890324 5.150,133,268

Non-conlroIIing Interest 838.700375 909388353 867381339

9,352,809,593

Sec NuUl to thf OmmtflfntidfHUtmjtfSlalcmtntt.



WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Quarter Ended June 30,2018

Annex A

Page 2 of5

Unaudited Unaudited Audited

ApriKJune 2018 April-Jtme 2017 December 31,2017

REVENUES

Hotel 473,S4M4S 444348,828 2,057,910,622.00

Nonhotcl 3,905,876 1312368

Interest and other income 7,769,083 7,456,002 47,021,801

485,221,404 453,017.198 2,104,932,423

COSTS AND EXPENSES

Cost ofsales

Hotel 300,678,608 291.559377 1,005,632,603

Nonhotel 7,778,400 5,141,385 415,150360

308,457,008 296,700,662 1,420,782,863

176,764,396 156,316,536 684,149,560

OTHER EXPENSES (INCOME)

Depreciation and amortization 27,129,270 48,141368 355307,819

Interestexpense 41,512,805 7,882,893 60,222309

Penaltiesand other charges - -
-

Impairmentlosses,bad debts writtenoffand provisions - -
632,751

Loss on sale on Acesite shares -

Interest income - - (42,276,067)

Foreignexchange losses (gains) - net - 8,141 10365.853

Others - net - - 714,766

68,642,075 56,032,302 384,967,631

INCOME(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 108,122,320 100,284,234 299,181,929

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (BENEni) - - 100.448,728

NET INCOME (LOSS) 108,122320 100,284334 198,733,201

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Appraisal on increase on propertyandequipment - - -

Foreign currency translation differences forforeign operations - -
10,855,821

Actuarialgainson defined benefitplan - -
(36,534,724)

Net change in fair value ofAFS investment - - (867,100)

Reduction ofdefeired tax liability relating to revaluation surplus •

Deferred tax effect - 10,960,417

- - (15385386)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 108,122320 100,284334 183,147,615

EARNINGS PER SHARE - Basic and Diluted 0.045 0.033 0.087

Thereare no dikaivepotentiat tharoM



WATERFRONTPHILIPPINES, INCORPORATEDANDSUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
As ofJune 30,2018

Annex A

Page 3 of5

Unauilited Unaudited Audited

June 30.2018 June 30.2017 December 31.2017

REVENUES

Hotel 974306,960.65 987.175.989 2.057.910.622.00

Nonhotel 12,172350 6.910319

Interest and other income 15,538,167 15316.330 47.021.801

1,002,017,477 1,009302.838 2.104,932.423

COSTS AND EXPENSES

Cost ofsales

Hotel 639,793305 608.484361 1.005.632.603

Nonhotel 18,700,430 14,670,390 415.150360

658,493,636 623,154,951 1.420.782.863

343323342 386,147.887 684.149.560

OTHER EXPENSES (INCOME)

Depreciation and amortization 76308,718 99.604.595 355.307,819

Interestexpense 59321355 30,000.000 60.222.509

Penaltiesand other charges - - -

Impairment losses,baddebts writtenoITand provisions - - 632.751

Loss on sale on Acesite shares -

Interest income - - (42.276.067)

Foreignexchange losses (gains) - net - - 10365.853

Others - net - - 714.766

135,830373 129.604395 384.967.631

INCOME(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 207,693369 256343392 299.181.929

INCOMETAX EXPENSE(BENEHT) - - 100.448.728

NET INCOME (LOSS) 207,693369 256343392 198.733301

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Appraisal on increase onproperty andequipment - - -

Foreign currency translation differences forforeign operations
- - 10.855.821

Actuarial gainson definedbenefitplan - - (36.534.724)
Net change in fair value ofAFS investment - - (867.100)
Reduction ofdeferred taxliability relating torevaluation surplus -

Deferred lax effect - 10.960.417

- - (15,585386)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 207,693369 256343,292 183.147.615

EARNINGS PER SHARE - Basic and Diluted 0.093 0.095 0.087



waterfront PHIUPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
A<orJaBe30,2OI8

Annex A

Page 4 of 5

Unaudtted Unaudited Audited

June 30.2018 June 30,2017 Dcccmba 31.2017

P4)UrrV ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OFTHE PARENT COMPANY
Ctptttl stock'PI pir value padttte 2A98^L153 2.498.991.753 2.498J9I.753

Addtltonal Paid-in Capital 706J644S7 706J64J57

Rcvaluatlea Sotpios la Properly and Eqalpaieol

Balanoi: at begmsingof year
Otba cotaptehcBtive tncocne- net of income tu effect

Detccogniiioaof land helduada anance leasedae » acqaititioo of a tobsidiaiy
Tiantfer of ccvatoalionssiptoa atnothcd dnoaxh dcpieciatioolerihe year• net of incometax effect

l.in.iOS.991 2J49J24.496 2J49J24.496

(138.415JOS)

Bihace at end ofyear 2JI1.I0S.99I 2J49J24.496 2JI 1,108.991

UarcaUacd Valaatloa Gala (Lou) oo AFS InvestBMali

Balanceasbe^nniag of year . . •
Valuation!ou taken intoequity during theyear ...

ChangeEnequity owaenhipofnon-eanBotling interest in a tobsidiaiy ...

Balance at end ofyear ...

Forrlga Carreocy Tiataiatlon Atyaatnitnt

Balanceat begiasiagof year
Otfaaeomptehcnsivc ineome - na of iacomciax effoet

S2J42JOO 4iA86.l79 4IA86.I79

IOJ55J2I

Balaaee at cad ofyear S2J42JOO 41.686.179 52J4Z.000

Denelt

Appropfiatioaforcenovntioo and busineu cipansion

Unappnipriaicd

Balanceat beginningof year
Tiantlcrof revahiatcon SBiphts absorbedthroughdeprceiatioo fortheyea• net of incometaxeffect
Change in retiiement benefits reserve

Net ineome fa the yeu

(40A632JM)

140J9t,l90

(760.985,667)

256J43J92

(760.985/67)

138.415/05

2(7.937/48

Balance at end ofyea (IMJ4IJZ4) (S04.442J7S) (404/32/14)

Toal deficit (I64J4IJ24) (504.442J75) (404/32/14)

SJ04.9e5,Tn 5.092.124.410 5/64/74/87

Fairvaluereserve,bcgtmitagof the yea
Otha comprehensive incorae-iiet tax effeet

2J0S3J23 2.6S3J45 2/83/45

(620/22)

Total fair value leseive L0d3J23 2,683J45 2,063/23

Rctiieineni benefits reserve, begiiuitng of theyea
Otba eoffiprehensiveineome.net lax clfeet

83A9SAS8 102d)82J69 102,082/69

(18/87,111)

Total retirement benefits leseivc 83J95AS8 l02dl82J69 83/95.458

ToUl Eqaity Altiibttt«bl« t^qnly HoMewofthe gireat Comptny Tmn^sr TBS5353ir TBJCnJSS"



WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED ANDSUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

As ofJane 30,2018

Annex A

Page S of 5

Unaudited Unaudited Audited

June 30,2018 June 30,2017 December 31.2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Income befote income tax 207,693,569 236343,293 299,181.929

Adjustmems for

Depreciation and amottfzstion 76,508,718 99,604394 355307.819

Interest expense 59421355 30,000,000 60.222309

Loss on sale on acesite shares - - -

Retirement benefit eosLs (35377,076) (7,959,479) 21,196.913

Provisions -
(4,468.009) -

Unieaiized foreign exchange loss (gain) - -
10,855.821

Penalties and other charges - - •

Lossfgain)on disposalof propertyand equipment • -
•

Impairment losses - -
632.751

Interest income -
(13,212,615) (42376,067)

Operating incomebefore workingcapital changes 307,946,766 360,507,784 705,121,675

Decrease(increase) in:

Reccivabtes (891331,695) (19347321) 6,453,437

Inventories 6,922368 422,285 (5,731,692)

Prq;iaidexpenses and other cuncnt assets 15323,481 4371.432 (7.160375)

Increase (dectease) in:

Accountspayable and accruedexpenses (724,062344) 64,636,871 49,626.652

Other current liabilities (173371,667) (86394.629) (10366,440)

Cash generated from operations (1,458,672,991) 324,396,522 738,043357

Interest received - 13,212,615 1.902.783

Incometaxes paid (70,613,726) (69355.622) (176385372)

Retirement plan contributions paid - -
(21.450,000)

Benefits paid - -
(10317397)

Interest paid (5932I3S5) (30.000.000) -

Net cash provided by operating activities (1388,608,272)

00

531,593,171

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisitions of propertyandequipment 895359354 2,065,662
-

Investmentin a subsidlaiy - - -

Due from related parties (1,126,192335) (109,987,455) (31377.221)

Proceeds fromsaleof an equityinterest insubsidiary • • -

Proceeds fromsaleof propertyandequipment - -
(160,776.933)

Notes Receivable 65,900308 - (195,007314)

Ittcrease in other noncurrent assets 11378339 88,292,635 (2,556351)

Net cashused in investingactivities (153354,634) (19,629.158) (389,917,719)

fonusnj

Years Ended December 31

June 30,2018 June 30,2017 December 31,2017

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(lncrease)Decrease in loans payable - -

(Increase) Decrease in duefrom relatedparties - - •

Increase (decrease) in other noncutreat liabilities 1,981,098346 26.406378 (40,630)

Paymentofobligation under finance lease

Net cashprovidedby (usedin) financingactivities 1,981,098346 26.406378 (40,630)

INCREASE(DECREASE) IN TRANSLATIONADJUSTMENTFOR THE YEAR

NET INCREASE(DECREASE)IN CASHANDCASH EQUIVALENTS 239,135,939 244330,935 141.634,822

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 345,929,975 204395.153 204.395,153

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 585,065,914 449.126.088 345.929375
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WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Organization and Status of the Business

Corporate Information
Waterfront Philippines, Incorporated (the Parent Company) Weis incorporated in the

Philippines and registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on
September 23,1994. The Parent Company is.^%-owned by The Wellex Group, Inc. (TWGI), an entity
registered and domiciled in the Philippines, which is listed in the PhilippineStock Exchange (PSE).
The Parent Company holds equity interests in hotels and resorts, a fitness gym, entities engaged in
the international marketing and promotion of casinos, manufacturing of pastries, and hotel
management and operations.

The Parent Company and tiie following subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the Group) were
incorporated in the Philippines, except for Waterfront Promotion Ltd. (WPL) and Club Waterfront
International Limited (CWIL),which were registered in the Cayman Islands.

Percentage of Ownership
Direct Indirect

Hotels and Resorts

Waterfront Cebu City Casino Hotel, Incorporated
(WCCCHI) 100

Waterfront Mactan Casino Hotel, Incorporated (WMCHI) 100
Davao Insular Hotel Company, Inc. (DIHQ) 98
Acesite (Phils.) Hotel Corporation (APHC) 56
Grand Ilocandia Resort and Development, Inc. (GIRDI) 54

Real Estate

CIMA Realty PhU., Inc. (OMAR) - 56*

Fitness Gym
Waterfront Wellness Group, Inc. (WWGI) 100

International Marketing and Promotion of Casinos
WPL 100

Mayo Bonanza, Inc. (MBI) 100
CWIL (through directownership in WPL) - 100
WaterfrontEntertainmentCorporation (WEC) 100
Pastries Manufacturing
WaterfrontFood ConceptsInc.(WFQ 100

Hotel Management and Operation
Waterfront Hotel Management Corp. (WHMQ 100 -

Hotels

Waterfront Cebu City Casino Hotel, Inc.

WCCCHI was incorporated on September 23, 1994 to manage and undertake operations of
Waterfront Cebu City Hotel and Qisino (WCCHC). WCCCHI achieved a milestone during the year
by opening the doors ofWCCHC onJanuary 5,1998, with 158 guest-rooms which has already grown
to 561 by the last quarter of 1999, six-storey convention centerknown as the Waterfront Convention
Center , previously known as Cebu International Convention Center and six-storey" Entertainment
Block. Located inthis Entertainment Block isa 1,000-square meter 5-star restaurant, which completes
5
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tfie Company's restaurants row. On February 5,1998, PAGCOR commenced operations at the new
purposely-builtcasinoat the EntertainmentBlock.

- Waterfront Convention Center'(WCC)
Waterfront Convention Center previously known as Cebu International Convention Center is a six-
storey building, especially-designed toadapttoany event size and purpose, with a total gross area of
40,587 squaremeters, and has been in operation since January 5,1998. Major amenities of the center
includeten (11) function rooms and two (2) Grand Ballrooms witha seatingcapacity of 4,000. WCC is
theonlyconvention and exhibition centerof international standard in CebuCity.

- Entertaimnent Block

The Entertainment block is a six-storey building with a total grossarea of 34,938 square meters. It is
comprised of eleven (9) Food and Beverage entertainment outlets, an 11,000 square meters of public
and international gaming area thatincludes the"Casino Filipino", and62hotel rooms andsuites

- Hotel Tower Block

The Hotel Tower block is a 22-storey building with a total gross area of 44,334 square meters. It
consists of a podium, containing the lobby, a food and beverage outlet a reception, a shopping
arcade, three (3) pressfunction rooms,and a high riseblockof498 hotel roomsand suites.

TheHotel,with its fairytale-inspired facade, is conveniently located in the center of CebuCity and is
withineasy reachfrom keybusiness, commercial and shoppingdistricts and is just 30 minutesaway
hromthe Mactan Intemational Airport

Waterfront Cebu City Hotel & Casino has elegantly designed and well-appointed guest rooms
and suites. The 18th Floor is the Waterfront Ambassador Club with a two floor Oub Lounge exclusive
for Ambassador Floor guests. Waterfront Ambassador Club guests enjoy butler service,
complimentary business services and a business boardroom fit for a group of up to 8 people,
equipped with a built-in LCD projector, a roll-up screen, FA and recording system, a local area
network (LAN) and a poly communication system. The 2nd floor lounge is outfitted with 3 computer
stations, where guests can avail of complimentary WIFI access, flat-scremi television entertainment,
an array of lifestyleand business magazines as well as newspapers and board games. The hotel offers
a 10,000-square meter convention center, which is the largest convention center in the Visayas and
Mindanao, and is designed to adapt to multiple types of events. The convention center is equipped
with 10 function rooms, 2 executive board rooms, and 2 Grand Ballrooms,each seating 4,000people. It
has played host to a myriad of national as well as regional events, conventions and conferences.

Waterfront Cebu City Hotel and Casino operates 9 F&B outlets, including a hotel coffees shop, a
Japanese restaurant, an Italian restaurant and a poolside snack bar. The hotel has a fuUy functional
business center paired with flat-screen computers, internet access and private boardrooms.
The newly renovated lobby was inspired based on two main objectives; first, to transform the
existing single dimension grand lobby into a multi-dimensional lifestyle-concept space that will
enhance the guests' experiencewhen dining and lounging in the lobby;and second, to improve trafiic
patterns, through the constructionof larger check-in areas and through maximizingthe Lobby's three
entrances. Waterfront Cebu City Hotel and Casino's massive, high-ceilinged lobby has always been
its principal attraction in fact it is touted as the largest hotel lobby in Visayas-Mindanao area.
Spanning 22 meters wide, 96 meters in long and 35 meters high and crisscrossed by htmdreds of
peopleeach day, the hotel's grand lobby sets the whizzingpulse for the hotel and dictates its overall
ambiance. Apart from improvements to the general structure of the lobby, the Lobby Lounge itself
willofferan all-new diningand lounging experience, with newly-installed glass panels,semi-closing
eachside of the lounge.Fully-equippedbar areas have also been installed in the middle of each of the
lounge's two sections, ensuring diners of more efficient and prompt service. To enhance the overall
guest experience, the hotel has put together additional features such as nightly entertainment fiom
the city's top performers, and soulful afternoon music by soloists.
Among the hotel's newest pride comes in the form of delectable treats, introducing Lobby Lounge's
new service concepts.

Aftemoon.Tea
Guests cannowrelive thesplendor andgrace of theoldEnglish days withtheLobby Lounge's
Afternoon Tea offering. It isa tea anddessert concept created togive guests a whole new tea
6
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experience by giving emphasis on unique ways to enjoy a cup of tea. Guests can expect an array of
snack choices to complement their tea selection. The Afternoon Tea comes with achoice ofTraditional
Afternoon Tea witha Local Twist or Chocolate Temptations. For each selection, guests mayopt for
tea, coffee orhotchocolate. Each selection also comes with a variety ofsnack options togoalong with
their choice of beverage.

Wine Dispenser
Guests cannow take a sipofLobby Lounge's extensive selection ofwine. The wine dispenser isan
innovative addition tothe wining anddining experience at the hotel. Itserves thepurpose of
allowing guests to select among anarray ofbottles, through tasting by the glass. This concept intends
to give guests anopportunity tosample different wines in small amounts before deciding toorder a
full glass orbottle. Guests may test wines from the dispenser inthree different amounts. This way,
guests can choose tiie perfect wine fitfor their palate. To enjoy the wine dispenser service, guests
must avail of the WineCard whichcomesin prepaid or postpaid.

To complement the Hotel's main lobby, a group check-in counter isconstructed, dedicated solely to
corporate and travel groups; a larger Duty Free shopping isalso provided; andan additional Casino
Filipino gaming space of2,350 square meters is launched together with it. This will notonly enhance
the current lobby, butwill also increase operational efficiency and add more exciting features for the
hotel's customers.

Waterriront Mactan Casino Hotel, Inc.

Waterfront Mactan wasincorporated onSeptember 23,1994 to manage and undertake operations of
Waterfront Mactan Island Hoteland Casino (WMIHC). WMCHI has completed PhaseI of Waterfront
Mactan Island Hotel and Casino (WMIHC). It is located right across Mactan-Cebu International
Airport, on a landareaofapproximately 3.2hectares. Thehotel features 164 rooms and suites, 6 food-
and-beverage and entertainment outlets, witha total built-up areaof 38,000 squaremeters. Equipped
with one of the largestcasinos in the Philippines, WMIHC has madeCebuthe only city in Southeast
Asia that offerscasino facilities to transients while waiting for their flights. For future development is
Phasen, consisting of200-guest rooms, which willbe builtdepending on diedemandsof the market
It has recently improved its rooms by installing fax machines and Internetconnections to cater to the
needs of its guests. Additionally, the company has acquired the newest hospitality software in the
industry, the OPERA Property Management System, which is designed to help run the hotel
operations at a greater levelof productivity and profitability. This was installed last January 14,2003.

The hotel is conveniently located in front of the Mactan International and Domestic Airport, just a
three-minute drive to the Industrial Zone, a fifteen-minute drive to the beaches of Mactan Island and
just thirty minutes away from Cebu City's shopping and financialdistrict

^01^ This year 2016, the property extended the Annex parking to provide more slots for the guests and this
year also marks the 20^ anniversary of Waterfront Mactan Casino Hotel, Inc.

Davao Insular Hotel Company, Inc. or Waterfront Insular Hotel Davao, Inc.

Davao Insular Hotel Company Inc. was incorporated in the Philippines on July 3,1959 to engage in
the operation of hotel and related hotel businesses. The hotel is a 98% owned subsidiary of Waterfront
Philippines, Incorporated and is operating under its trading name Waterfront Insular Hotel Davao.
Waterfront Insular Hotel, the prestigious business hotel in a sprawling garden resort setting, is only
five to ten minutes to the downtown area. Nestled along the picturesque Davao Gulf, its open air
corridors provide a refreshing view of die hotel's beautifully landscaped tropical garden and the sea.

Widi a greater area than any other hotel facility in the city, it is unmatched in servicing large business
meetings, conventions, and exhibit groups. The hotel consists of four low-rise buildings of 159 guest
rooms and suites, 5 function rooms and 6 F&B oudets .Every room opens to a lanai overlooking a lush
garden the blue waters of the DavaoGulfor a sceniccoconutgrove.Features included in die newly
re-opened hotel are the 5 Gazebos located along the beach area. The hotel is every guesfs gateway to
die diverse,colorful and richcultural heritageof DavaoCity.
Discover the richcultural heritageof Davao which stems from the differentgroups and tribes that
populated the area throughoutits historyand be astonished of artworks in the hotel lobbywhere it

7
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showcases pieces of artifacts featuring the various object d'art from the different tribes and historical.

On 2015/ the property re-opiens itsgym with 48 square meters to continuously serve its guests and to
ensure guests satisfaction.

Acesite (Phils.) Hotel Corporation

The principal property ofthe Company is a 22-storey building known as the Manila Pavilion Hotel
located at the corner of United Nations Avenue and Maria Y. Orosa Street in Ermita/ Manila. The
Hotel has 337 guestrooms and suites that have individually controlled centrsd air conditioning,
private baduroom with bathtub and shower, multi-channel radio, color TV with cable channels and
telecommunications fecilities. It has 3 function rooms and one of this is Alcuaz which can
accommodate 250-300 guests. The hotel has approximately 2,200 s<j. meters of
meeting/banquet/conference facilities, and also houses several restaurants, such as Seasons Caf6
(coffee shop), theEl Rey (bar & lounge) and the Patisserie (bakeshop and deli items). Other guest
services and facilities include a chapel, swimming pool, gym, business center and a valet-service
basement carpark. Concessionaires andtenants include beauty salon, foot spa,photography services,
transportation services, travel agency, flower shop and boutiques. In addition. Casino Filipino -
Pavilion, owned and operated byPAGCOR, occupies partof the Erst, second, diird, fourth and fifth
floors (a total of 12,696.17 sq. m.) of the building.

The Company acquired 100% interest of QMAR, a former subsidiary of Acesite Limited (BVI) or
ALB, in October 2011. In July 2011, The Company and OMAR executed a Memorandum of
Agreement (MOA), which effectively settle all pending cases and controversies between the two
parties. In fulfillment ofalldieterms and conditions of theMOA, OMAR's stockholders including all
theirnominees, agreed tosign, sell, transfer and convey all existing sharesofstocks of QMAR to the
Company.

Year2015, Alcuaz function that can accommodate250-300 guests was renovated and 111rooms under
superior room category were opened.

Waterfiront Hotel ManagementCorporation{previously WaterfrontManagementCorp.)

G-Hotel by Waterfront locatedin 2090 RoxasBoulevard,Malate Manilaon November of 2006 is t)eing
managed by WaterfrontManagementCorporation. It is a seven-storybuilding with 10 deluxe suites,
20 deluxe king and 20 deluxe twin rooms which offers a personalized butler service. A boutique hotel
boasting with its trendy Caf§ Noir, pool bar Mirage and an elegant ballroom. Promenade, added to
the list of must-go places in the busy district of Manila. The black and white concept of its lobby is
distinctly-G-Hotel.

^0^ On October 01, 2014, the BOD approved the cessation of the Company's business operations.
Consequently, the Compan/s activities were confined mainly to the collection of receivables,
settlement of liabilities, and odter administrative matters, while maintaining its status as non-
operating entity seeking for other business opportunities.

Mayo Bonanza, Inc.

Mayo Bonanza, Incorporated (MBI),a 100% owned subsidiary of WPI was incorporated on November
24,1995 in die Philippines with principal activities in the operation and management of amusement,
entertainment, and recreation businesses. MBIis to extend the gaming business of the Company. Its
primary purpose is to establish, operate, and manage the business of amusement entertainment, and
recreation facilities for the use of the paying public. The Company entered into an agreement with
the PhilippineAmusementand GamingCorfioration (PAGCOR) whereby the latter shall operate the
former'sslot machine outsideofcasinos in linewith PAGCOR's slot machine arcade project.

On May30,2016.BOD approved the cessationof the Company's businessoperations effective July 01,
2016.
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Wateifront Horizon Corporation (previously VJaterfront Entertainment Corporation)

WPI has successfully established the countrj^s first ever integrated hotel reservations and booking
system featuring a fuU-^rvice, round-the-clock/ 7 days a week Central Reservation Office. This
service ranges from systems and solutions specializing in the operations hotel h'amework. It offers
specialize hotel consultancy services to hotel ownerS/ operators, brands, developers, lenders and
investors with the supportof hand-picked networks of experts covering all elements of the hotel or
hospitality business within a global perspective.

Wateifront Food Concepts, Inc.

Waterfront Food Concepts, Inc. is a pastry business, catering to pastry requirements of Waterfront
Cebu, Waterfront Mactan and other established coffeeshops and food service channels outside the
hotels. The propertyis located in die lobby levelofWaterfront CebuCity Casino HoteL It has started
its operation on May of 2006. Its pastry products include cakes, cookies and sandwiches. The
subsidiary has alreadycateredmostof the renownedcoffee shops in the cityof Cebu.

Waterfront Wellness Group, Inc.

This subsidiary is located in die Ground Level of Waterfront Cebu City Casino Hotel occupying
617.53 square meters. Previously WCitigyms and Wellness, Inc. is a fully equipped gym with
specialized trainers and state of &e art equipments. The gym offersvariety of services from aerobic
instructions to belly dancing, boxing, yoga classes and a lot more. It also has its own
nutritionist/dietician. Its highlytrained therapistsperformmassage and spa services to guests within
the hotel.

Citigjrm entices the public by opening -The Citigym Hit Zone. This is Citigym's "Do It Right" and
smart solution to Cebu's growing interest in high intensity workout routines.

Grand Ilocandia Resort and Development, Inc.

As of March 31, 2000, the Company carried its investments in GIRDI at cost since it intended to
dispose such investment in the near future. In November 2000, GIRDI sold all of its property and
equipment, inclusive of the hotel facilities and related operating assets and the investment in
martetable securities.

Waterfront Promotions Limite<VClub Waterfront International Limited

Watertiront Promotion Ltd. was incorporated on March 6,1995, under and by virtue of the laws of
Cayman Islands to act as the marketing arm for the international marketing and promotion of hotels
and casinos tmder tiie trade name of Club Waterfront International Limited (CWIL). It is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Waterfront Philippines, Inc., a domestic company. Under the agreement with
PAGCOR, WPL has been granted the privilege to bring in foreign players under the program in
Waterfront Cebu City Hotel and Grand Ilocandia Resort Development Corp. On the other hand,
CWIL is allowed to bring in foreign players in Waterfront Mactan Hotel. In connection to this, the
company markets and organizes groups of foreign players as participants to the Philippine
Amusement and Gaming Corporation's (PAGCOR) Foreign Highroller Marketing Program. The
company also entered into agreements with various junket operators to market the casinos for foreign
customers. Under these agreements, the company grants incentive programs to junket operators such
as free hotel expenses, free airfares and rolling commissions.

The company participated in a joint venture with Jin Lin Management Corporation, its sole marketing
agent and co-venturer on September 24,2001. This joint venture was terminated on April 15,2002.

The operations for Waterfront Promotions Limited and likewise for Club Waterfront International
Limited had ceased for the year 2003in March due to the bleak market
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Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Parent Company/ as well as diose of
its subsidiaries enumerated in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity if and only if, the
Group is exposed tO/ or has rights to,variable returns from its involvement with die entity and has
the ability to affect thosereturnsdiroughits powerover the entity. TheGroup reassesses whetheror
not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control.

The dnancial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the S£une reporting period as the Parent
Company and are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date when control
commences until the date when control ceases.

Theaccounting policies ofsubsidiaries are beingaligned with thepolicies adoptedby theGroup.
Losses applicable to the NCIin a subsidiary are allocated to the NCI even ifdoingso causesthe NCI
to have a deficit balance.

Segment Reporting
Anoperating segment is a component of theGroup that engages in business activities from which it
mayearn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses diat relate to transactions
widi any of the Group's other components. All operating results are reviewed regularly by the
Group's BOD, the chiefoperatingdecision makerof the Group, to makedecisions about resources to
be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance, and for which discrete financial
information is available.

Segment results that are reported to the Group's BOD includeitems directly attributableto a segment
as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly
corporateassets,head office expenses cmd incometaxassetsand liabilities.
Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire property and
equipment.

The Group's businesses are operated and organized according to the nature of business provided,
with each segment representing a strategic business unit, namely, the Hotel operations, Marketing
operations and Corporate and Odier Operations segments.
Ihe Group's only reportable geographical segment is the Philippines.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to theextent that it is probablethat the economic benefitswill flow to the
Groupand the revenue canbereliably measured. Income is measured at the fairvalueof the
consideration received, net of trade discounts, rebates, and other sales taxes or duties. The following
specific criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Rooms

Room revenue is recognized based on actual occupancy.

Food and Beverage
Food and beverage revenue is recognized when orders are served and billed.

Rent and Related income

Rent and related income on leased areas of the Group's properties is accoimted for on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease, except for cancellable leases which are recognized at amount collected
or collectible based on the contract provision.

Other Revenues

Other revenues are recognized upon execution of service or when earned.

Interest Income

Interest income is recognized as it accrues using the effectiveinterest method.

10
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1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cashin banksearn interestat the respective bankdepositrates. Short-term placements earn interestat
annual average of0.13% to2.88% in2018 and2017 andhave average maturities ranging from 30to35
days for both years.

2. Receivables

This account consists:

June 2018 June 2017

Trade 114,050,644 101,163,108

Others 130,237,032 173,655,600

244,287,676 274318,708

Less allowance for doubtful accounts -21,583,914 -20,024340

Total 222,703,762 254,79^68

3. Inventories

This account consists of:

June 2018 June 2017

Food and Beverage
Operating Supplies
Others

14,172,929
10,006,308

2,817,091

15,973336
10,602,084
1,189,499

Total 26,996328 27,764,819

4. Related Party Transactions

This represents interest bearing advances from TWGI and PRC. Non-interest bearing advances from
PHES, AFS investment and notes receivable wherein the Group extended loans to ALEC (Acesite
Leisure and Entertainment Corporation) at 4% per annum.

5. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

This accoimt consists of:

June 2018 June 2017

Trade

Accrued Expenses
Others

235,864335
213,002372

295385301

242,826,133
610354,923
440347,964

Total 744,152,708 1393,729320

6. Loans Payable

This account consists of:

SSS Loan

SSSvs WPI. Et al civil case no. Q-04-52629 at regional trial court Quezon City. On October 28,1999,
theParentCompany obtained a frve-year termloanfrom SSS amounting to P375.00 million originally
due on October 29, 2004. The SSS loan bears interest at the prevailing market rate plus 3% or 14.5%
per annum, whichever is higher. Interest is repriced annually and is payable semi-annually. Initial
interest payments are due 180 days from die date of the release of fte proceeds of the loan. The
repayment of the principalshall be based on eight (8) semi-aimual payments, after a one-yeargrace
period.

The SSS loan was availed tofinance thecompletion of thefacilities of WCCCHI. It wassecured bya
first mortgage over parcels of land owned by Wn and by the assignment of 200 million common

11
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shares of the Parent Companyowned by TWGI. The commonshares assigned were placed in escrow
in die possession of an independent custodian mutually agreed upon by both parties.

On August 7, 2003, when the total loan obligation to SSS, including penalties and interest amounted
to P6D5.00 million, the Parent Company was considered in default with the payments of the loan
obligations, thus, on the same date, SSS executed a foreclosureproceeding on Ae mortgaged parcels
of land. The SSS's winning bid on the foreclosure sale amounting to P198.00 million was applied to
penalties and interestamounting to P74.00 million and P124.00 million, respectively. In addition, the
Parent Company accrued penalties charged by SSS amounting to P30.50 millioncovering the month
of August until December 2003, and unpaid interestexpenseof P32.G0 million.

TheParent Company, WD and TWGI were given the right to redeem the foreclosed property within
one (1) year from October 17, 2003, the date of registration of the certificate of sale. The Parent
Company recognized the proceeds of tiieforeclosure saleas its liability to Wn and TWGI. TheParent
Company, however, agreed withTWGI to offset tiiis directly against its receivable from tiielatter. In
August2004, theredemption periodfor theParentCompany, WII and TWGI expired.

The remaining balance oftheSSS loan issecured bytheshares ofstock oftheParentCompany owned
byTWGI andsharesofstock ofWII numbering 235 million and80million shares, respectively.

TheParentCompany, at various instances, initiated negotiations with theSSS for restructuring of the
loan but was not able to conclude a formal restructuring agreement

OnJanuary 13,2015, theRTC ofQuezon City issued a decision declaring null and voidthecontract of
loan and therelated mortgages entered into by theParent Company with SSS on theground thatthe
officers and theSSS are notauthorized toenter thesubject loanagreement In the decision, the RTC of
Quezon City directed the Company to return to SSS tfie principal amount of loan amounting to
P375.00 million and directed the SSS to return to the Company and to its related peirties titles and
documents held by SSS as collaterals.

OnJanuary 22,2016, SSS appealed with theCA assailing tf\e RTC ofQuezon City decision infavor of
tiie Parent Company, et al. SSS filed itsAppellant's Brief and theParent Company filed a Motion for
Extensionof Time to fileAppellee's Briefimtil May 16,2016.

OnMay 16,2016, theParent Company filed itsAppellee's Brief with theCA, furnishing theRTC of
Quezon CityandtheOffice oftheSolicitor General withcopies. SSS wasgiven a period to reply butit
did not file any.

OnSeptember 6,2016, a resolution for possible settlement was received by theParentCompany from
theCA.However, on February 7,2017a Notice to Appeardated December 7,2016 was received by
theParentCompany from thePhilippine Mediation CenterUnit- CourtofAppezds (PMCU-CA)
directing the ParentCompany and S^ to appear inperson and without counsel at the PMCU-CA on
January 23,2017to choosetheir mediatorand the date of initialmediationconferenceand to consider
the possibility of settlement Sincethe Notice to Appear was belatedly received, the parties were not
able to appear before the PMCU-CA.

On February 27,2017, a Second Notice to Appear issued by the PMCU-CA directingall parties to
appear on February 27,2017at a specified time was receivedby the Parent Company only on
February 27,2017after the specified time of the meeting.The Parent Company failed to appear.

On June 30,2017,a resolution issued by the CA, resolved to submit the appeal for decision.

As at the report date, there had been no updates on the matter.

12
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7.The earnings (loss) per share is computed as follows:

June 2018 June 2017

Net Income (Loss) 232,822,105 238,450,871

Weighted Average Number of Shares
Outstanding 2,498,991,753 2,498,991,753

Earnings (Loss) per share 0.093 0.095

There are no dilutive potential shares as of June 30,2018 and 2017.

8. Lease Agreement with Philippine Amusement and Gaming Corporation (''PAGCOR')
TheParentCompany, in behalfof WCCCHl and WMCHI, enteredinto leaseagreements with
PAGCOR. Theleaseagreement ofWCCCHl with PAGCOR covered the Main Area (8,123.60 sq.m.).
SlotMachine Expansion Area(883.38 sq.m.). Mezzanine (2,335 sq.m.) and 5fli FloorJunketArea (2,336
sq.m.) fora totalareaof13,677.98 sq.m. which commenced on March 3,2011 and March 16,2011, for
theMain Area andSlotMachine Expansion Area, respectively. Thelease agreement ofWMCHI with
PAGCOR coveredthe Main Area(4,076.24 sq.m.) and Chip Washing Area(1,076 sq.m.) fora totalarea
of5,152.24 sq.m.which was lastrenewed on March 21,2011. Both leases expiredon August2,2016.
Therea^r, PAGCOR paidtheWCCCHl and WMCHI rental ona month-to-month basis. Thelease
was renewed on February 15,2018, for a period of 1 year.

APHC also has a lease agreement with PAGCOR covering theMain Area (7,093.05 sq.m.). Expansion
Area A (2,130.36 sq.m.). Expansion Area B(3,069.92 sq.m.) and Air Handling UnitArea (402.84 sq.m.)
for a to^ lease area of 12,696.17 sq.m. The lease agreement was last renewed on December 1, 2010
and expired onDecember 31,2017. Asat December 31,2017, PAGCOR continued to operate a portion
of the lease area on a month-to-month basis while completing its pullout from APHC.

9. Other Lease Agreements

Group as Lessor
Lease Agreements with Concessionaires
WCCCHl, WMCHI and DIHCI havelease agreements withconcessionaires for the commercial
spaces available indieir respective hotels. These agreements typically runfor a period of less than
one year, renewable upon the mutual agreementof the parties.

Group as Lessee
Land under Operating Lease
OnSeptember15,1994, Waterfront Hotel and Resort Sdn.Bhd. (WHR), a former related party,
executed a leasecontract (theAgreement) with Mactan CebuInternational AirportAuthority
(MCIAA) forthelease ofcertain parcels oflandwhere thehotels wereconstructed. OnOctober 14,
1994, WHR assigned itsrights andobligations undertheMCIAA contracts toWCCCHl and WMCHI.

10. Commitments and Contingencies

The followingare the significantcommitmentsand contingencies involvingdie Group:

a. On November 10,2008,the Parent Company receiveda preliminary assessment notice from the BIR
for deficiency taxesfor the taxableyear 2006. On February9,2009,the Parent Company sent a protest
letter to BIR contestingthe said assessment. On February18,2009,the Regional Officeof the BK sent
a letter to the Parent Company informing the latter that the docket was returned to Revenue District
Office for reinvestigation and further verification.

On December8,2009,the ParentCompany receivedBIR's FinalDecision on Disputed Assessmentfor
deficiency taxesfor the 2006 taxableyear.The hnal decisionof the BIR seeks to collectdeficiency
assessments totaling to P3.30million. However, on January 15,2010, the Parent Company appealed
the final decision of the BIRwith the Court of Tax Appeals (CTA)on the grounds of lack of legal and
factual bases in the issuance of the assessments.

13



17Q-2i^ quarter 2018
In its decisionpromulgatedon November13,2012,the CTA upheld the expanded widiholding tax
(EWT)assessment and cancelled the VATand compromise penalty assessments. The Parent
Company decided not to contest the EWTassessment The BIRfiled its motion for reconsideration
(MR) on December4,2012and on April 24,2013, the Court issued its amended decisionreinstating
die VAT assessment The Parent Company filed its MRon the amended decision diat was denied by
the CIA in its resolution promulgated on September 13,2013.

The Parent Company appealed the case to the CTAsitting En Banc on October21,2013.The CTAEn
Banc decision promulgated on December 4,2014afBrmed the VAT and EWT assessments. TheEWT
assessment was paid on March 3,2013.

TheCTA EnBanc decision wasappealedto dieSCon February 5,2015 covering the VAT assessment
only.

As at December31,2017,the Parent Company is still awaiting theSCs decision.

OnMay 02,2018, thelegal counsel served copies ofthe reply inthecase pending before theCourt of
Tax Appeals.

Management anditslegal counsels believe that theposition oftheParentCompany issustainable,
andaccordingly, believe diattheParent Company does nothave a present obligation (legal or
constructive) with respect to the assessment

14
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OF FINANCIAL CONDmONS AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Below are the results of operations of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries, for the period ending
June 30,2018and 2017 togetherwith its finandal conditionsas of die same period.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

June 2018 June 2017

Revenues 1,002,017,477 1,009302338

Less:Costs and Expenses 658,493,636 623,154,951

Net Income (Loss) Before Fixed Finandal and Other
Charges

343,523,842 386,147387

Less: Fixed Finandal and Odier Charges (Dep'n and
Amorfn, and Interest)

135,830,273 129304,595

Income (Loss) before Income Tax
207,693,569 256343392

Income Tax Expense (Benefit) 0.00 0.00

Income (Loss) before Share in Minority Interest 207,693,569 256343392

Share of Minority Interest -25,128,537 18,092321

Net Income (Loss) 232322,105 238350371

Earnings (loss) Per share 0.093 0.095

HNANCIAL CONDITION

June 2018 June 2017

Assets

Current assets 4,737,514,668 2,432348,089

Non-current Assets 5,866,462,835 6,922,225,053

Total Assets 10,603,977303 9,354373,142

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

Current Liabilities 1,437,941,560 1,785335342

Non-current Liabilities 2,936,611,110 1,462358,723

Total Stockholders' Equity 5,390,724,458 5,196,890,224

Minority Interest 838,700375 909388353

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity 10,603,977303 9,354373,142

15



17Q-2n{I quarter2018

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Period ended June 30,2018compared to Period Ended June 30,2017

Income Statement

Hotels and other subsidiaries gross revenues for the2ndquarter of2018 and 2017 are Php1.00 billion
and Php 1.01 billion respectively, slight decreased of 1% from last year. Consolidated costs and
expenses for all properties increased by 6% as compared from last year.

Seasonality or Cyclicality ofInterim Operations ^

1STquarter

The occupancy for the two (2) hotels, WCCCHI and WMCHI, arehigh during the months ofJanuary
andFebruary because of thecelebration oftheFeast ofSto. Nifto better, renowned as the"Sinulog" as
well as the celebrationof the Chinese New Year.Many visitors come to Cebu during tiiis time just to
witness and participate in the festivities. Sinulog isoneof thecity*s main pull for tourists as well as
other locals. The celebration of the Chinese New Year also added to the Company*s revenues. As we
allknow, toecountry isfull ofChinese nationalities andbusinessmen and celebrating their New Year
would really be an advantage to toe hotels in terms of revenues.

On March18,2018,, a firebrokeout at toe Hotel of Acesite (Phils.) Hotel Inc.damaging several floors,
casinos and restaurants. Operations have beensuspended since then. It is expected that operations
will continue after damages are repaired.

2n«i QUARTER

For most aspects of operations, 2018 continued the upward trajectory seen in the past year.
Concurrently, however, challenges havepresented themselves, slowing the growth potential in some
areas ofour operations. We areconfident that these challenges canberesolved byemploying theright
strategies towards setting toe entire group back in syncand on track.

Inaddition, ournewtagline, "We'reat thecenter of itall." and ournewrevitalized brandsignify our
leadership in the industry, ourstrengthand ability todraw toemarket It demonstrates an sdignment
ofobjectives, a powerful, unified message and a confident voice. Waterfront continues to leverage its
strengths, both of its infrastructure and itsnetwork,to maintain a competitive edge in thehospitality
industry.

June 2018 Jtme 2017

Occupancy Percentage 75% 74%

Average Room Rates 2,651 2,478

Food Covers 613,904 611,810

Average Food Checks 405 386

Average Food Costs 37% 35%

Occupancy Percentage
The occupancy percentage is up by 1% as compared to 2nd quarter of last year. Occupancy
percentage is computed by dividing the total number of rooms sold over the total number of rooms
available for sale.

Average Room Rate
Average room rate is 7% higher as compared from last year. Average room rate is computed by
dividing toe net rooms revenue over the total number of rooms sold.
16
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Food Coveis

Food covers this quarter increased by 0.3% compared to the 2nd quarter of last year. Food covers
pertains to (lie number of guests that availed of the restaurants services.

Average Food Check
Theaveragefood check or averageconsumption per guest thisquarter increased by 5% comparedto
the 2nd quarter of last year. Average Food Check is derived by dividing tiie total food and beverage
revenue by total food covers.

Average Food Cost
The average food costs increased by 2%. AverageFood Cost is computed by dividing d^e total food
and beverage revenue by total food cost.

Revenues and Earnings per Share
Revenues decreased by 1%, Php 1.00 billion for the 2nd quarterof 2018 and Php 1.01 billion of the
same quarter last year and operating expenses increased by 6%.

GOP at Php 343.52million in 2018and Php 386.15 million in 2017.

Earnings per share this quarter is at Php 0.093 while same quarter last year was at Php 0.095.

^ Fixed Financial andOtherCharges
Total fixed financial and other charges, Php 135.83 million, reflecting an increase of 5% from the
previous year's EHDP 129.60million.

This account includes the depreciation and interest expense fi'omSSSLoan.

FINANOAL CONDITION

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as of the 2nd quarter of this year is at Php 585.07million higher by
Php 135.94 millionfrom lastyear or 30%.

Receivables

Receivables for flieperiod decreased by 13% from Php 254.79 million 2nd quarter last
year to Php 222.70 million2nd quarter this year.

Notes Receivable

The Group extended loans to Acesite Leisure and Entertainment Corporation (ALEQ and bear
interest at 4% per annum. The loan is guaranteed by another entity in behalf of ALEC.

Insurance Receivable

On March 18,2018, a fire broke out at the hotel of Acesite (Phils.)Hotel Inc. damaging several floors,
casinos and restaurants. Operations have been suspended since then. The Hotel has insurance
coverage to answer for the damages sustained. It is expected that operations will continue after
damages are repaired.

Inventories

Inventory tliis year showed a decreased of 3%.

Due from related parties-current portion
This account increasedby 69% from last year's 2nd quarter. This represents interest bearing advances
from TWGl and PRC. Non-interest bearing advances from PHES and AFS investment Notes
receivable wherein the Group extended loans to ALEC (Acesite Leisure and Entertainment
Corporation) at 4% per annum.

Due from related parties-noncurrent portion
Crisanta Realty at a rateof twopercent(2%) per aimum isclassified as non-current due in 5years.
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Property; Plant and Equipment
The account decreased by16% or Php1.06 billion from lastyear. Significant decrease wasbrought by
die fire incident

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
This account had decreased to 42% or Php 549.58 million from last year.

Loans Payable
The accountremainsstaticat Php 375million. This refersto loanwith Social SecuritySystem.

Key Variable and Other Qualitative and Quantitative Factors:
a. AnyknownTrends,Events or Uncertainties-(material impacton liquidity)-NONE
b.There are noevents thatwilltriggerdirector contingent financial obligation that is
material to thecompany, including any defaultor acceleration ofan obligation.
c. There are no material off-balancesheet transactions, arrangements, obligations
(including, contingent obligations), and otherrelationships of thecompany with
unconsolidated entities or otherpersonscreatedduring the reporting period.
d. Thereare no material commitments forcapitalexpenditures, general purposeof
such commitments, expected sources of funds for such expenditures.
e.From continuing operations, theCompany is notexposed toanysignificant elements of income or
loss except for those already affecting proEt or loss.
f. Thereare no significant elements of income or loss that did not arise ffom the issuer"s continumg
operations other than those already affectingprofit or loss.

Risk Management Structure
The BOD is mainly responsible for theoverall risk management approach andfor theapproval ofrisk
strategies and principles of the Group. It also has the overall responsibility for the development of
risk strategies, principles, frameworks, policies and limits. It establishes a forum ofdiscussion of the
Group's approach to risk issues in order to make relevant decisions.

Risk Management Committee
Risk management committee is responsible for the comprehensive monitoring, evaluation and
analysis of &e Group's risks in line with the policiesand limits set by the BOD.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
TheGroup's principal financial instruments comprise of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, due
from related parties, AFS investment, accounts payable and accrued expenses (except for local taxes
andoutputVAT, withholding taxes anddeferred income), other current liabilities, loans payable, and
odier noncurrent liabilities. These financial instruments arise directly from operations.

The main risks arisingfrom the financial instruments of the Group are credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk. There has beenno change to the Group'sexposure to risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risks in prior ffnancial year. The Group's management reviews and
approves policiesfor managing each of these risks.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group's cash in
banks, receivablesand advances to related parties. The Group has established a credit policy under
which each new customer is analyzed individually for creditworthiness before the Group's standard
payment zmddelivery terms and conditions are offered. The Group's review includes external ratings,
if they are available, financial statements, credit agency information, industry information, and in
some cases bank references.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by establishing credit limits and maximum payment
period for each customer, reviewing outstanding balancesto minimize transactions with customers in
industries experiencing particular economic volatility.

With respect to credit risk from other financial assets of the Group, which mainly comprise of due
from related parties, the exposure of the Group to credit risk arises from the default of the
18
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counterparty, witha maximum exposure equalto thecarrying amount of these instruments.
There is no other signi^cant concentrationof credit risk in the Group.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity riskis the risk that theGroup will not beable to meet its financial obligations as dtey ^11
due.

TheGroup monitors and maintains a level of cash deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group's operation and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Additional short-term
fundingis obtainedthroughrelatedpartyadvances and from bankloans, whennecessary.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the BOD, which has established an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management oftheGroup's short, medium
and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk
by maintaining adequate reserves, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and
matching die Enaturity profiles offinzuicial assets and liabilities. For the Group's short-term funding,
the Group's policy is to ensure that thereare sufficient workingcapital inflows to match repayments
of short-term debt

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or cash flows of a financial instrument of the Group will
fluctuate due tochange in market prices. Market risk reflects interest raterisk, currency risk andother
price risks.

Since the Group's loan in US. dollar had been fully paid in March 2016, die Group is not anymore
signidcandy exposed to changes in foreigncurrency exchange rates.

Interest Rate Risk

Cash flow Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flow of the financial instruments will
fluctuate because of thechanges in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that
the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.
The Group's financial instrument that is exposed to interest risk is the interest-bearing funds made
available by the ParentCompany to WCCCHI to finance the construction of the Cebu City Hotel
Project Suchfunds weresubstantially sourced firom a P375 million loanfirom SSS, as well as thestock
rights offering of the Parent Company. The Parent Company is charging WCCCHI on the related
interests and penalties on thecontention that the latterbenefited from the proceeds of dieSSS loan

Equity Price Risk
Equityprice risk is the risk that fair value of future cashflowsof a financial instrument wUl fluctuate
because of changes in marketprices (otherthan thosearisingfrom interestrate risk or currency risk),
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its
issuer, or factorsaffecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market

TheGroup is exposed to equitypriceriskbecause ofits investment in sheures ofstockof WU whichare
listed in the PSE totaling to 86,710,000 shares as at December 31,2017and 2016.

The Group monitors the changes in the priceof the sharesof stockof WIL In managingits pricerisk,
the Group disposes of existingor acquiresadditional shares basedon die economicconditions.

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, current portion of due from related
parties, accounts payable and accrued expenses and other current liabilities approximate their fair
values due to the short-term maturity of these instruments.

The fair value of interest-bearing due from related parties and loans payable is based on the
discounted value of expected future cash flows using the applicable market rates for similar types of
instruments as of the reporting date; thus, the carrying amount approximates fair value.

The fair value of AFS investment was determined using the closing market price of the investment
listed on the PSE.
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Capital Management
The primaiy objective of theGroup's capitalmanagementis to ensure its abilityto continueas a going
concern and that it maintains a strong credit ratingand healthy capitalratios in order to support its
business and maximize shareholder value. Capital is defined as the invested money or invested
purchasing power, the net assets or equity of the entity. The Group's overall strategy remains
imchanged t^om 2018 and 2017.

TheGroup manages its capitalstructureand makesadjustments to it, in lightof changesin economic
conditions. Tomaintain or adjustthe capitalstructure,theGroupmayadjust the dividend paymentto
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes in 2018 and 2017. Forpurposesof theGroup'scapitalmanagement,
capitalincludes all equityitems that are presented in the consolidated statementof changes in equity.

The Group is not subject to externally-imposed capital requirements.
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WATERFRONT PHILIPPINES,INCORPORATEDAND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE OF AGING OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE FOR SEC REPORTING

Trade Receivables 0-30 days 31-60 days 61-90 days 91-120 days 121 days over Total

Waterfront Cebu CityCasino Hotel Inc.
WaterfrontAirport Hoteland Casino
Waterfront Insular Hotel Davao

Manila Pavilion Hotel

24,852,908.17
10,423,209.14

5,486,721.53

4,935,811.28
1,431,924.17

789,231.21

2,119,386.06
1,467,634.41

443,18638

4,605,868.01

354,686.38

347,547.04

16,015,520.68
14,881,822.06

3,167,148.46
16,693,389.19

52,530,494.20
28,559,276.16
10333,834.62

16,693,389.19

Total 40,762,838.84 7,156,966.66 4,030,206.85 5309,101.43 50,757,880.39 108,016,994.17


